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Dear Shareholders:

2020 was an extraordinary year, in which we experienced
the COVID-19 pandemic that was unprecedented in a
century and witnessed the tremendous changes in the
industry environment. Faced with various challenges and
opportunities, the ability of strategic management and
contingency of the Company’'s management team has been
proved, and the execution ability and entrepreneurial spirit
of all employees have been reflected. In this year, we have
overcome many difficulties and finally achieved outstanding
results with higher key operating indicators, better asset
quality, stronger resistant ability against risks, and more
project reserves, as well as improved sustainability. | am
very proud of our team.

At the beginning of the year, the unexpected outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic had material impact on
our production and life and the lives and health of our
employees were threatened. In view of this, strict epidemic
prevention measures were adopted across the country,
such as restrictions on economic activities and logistics
and quarantine, as a result of which, business travel was
restricted and project development could not be carried
out normally; project construction was restricted, materials
and equipment could not be supplied as scheduled, and
the progress of grid-connected operation was lagged;
equipment in failure could not be repaired in time, and
power curtailment increased in some regions as a result of
limited output channels. All these factors had significant

impact on the Group’s operations.
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In face of the severe COVID-19, the Group formulated
epidemic prevention and control measures and adjusted
business development strategies and plans in time, adhered
to normalized epidemic prevention and control, increased
the investment in purchase of epidemic prevention
materials, and scientifically formulated strategies for
prevention and control of COVID-19 in line with its
development. The Group had no COVID-19 infection case,
effectively protecting the lives of its employees. As for the
production, we made every effort to carry out equipment
repair and maintenance to ensure safe production;
fully resumed project construction as soon as possible;
endeavored to facilitate the supply of equipment as
scheduled and the progress of project construction. As for
project development, we made plans in advance, operated
flexibly and kept a close eye on project applications; the
employees of the Group has stayed on the front line, and
managed to cope with the impact of COVID-19 by resuming
work in a timely manner, quickly recovering and vigorously
expanding, which reversed the unfavorable situation
at the beginning of the year, and improved the annual
performance. The Group’s revenue recorded a year-on-year
increase, and the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Group, together with its project development indicators,
the scale of production in the year and attributable power
generation, hit a record. The renewable energy subsidies
owed to the Group decreased and the liability-to-asset ratio
of the Group declined as compared to the same period of

last year, with the improved asset quality of the Group.

In 2020, the Group materialized a revenue of RMB 2.001
billion, representing 9.0% increase over the same period
of last year, and realized a profit of RMB 673 million,
representing an increase of 11.4% over the same period
of last year. The liability-to-asset ratio was 66.74%,
representing a year-on-year decrease by 3.25 percentage

points.
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A total of 13 projects (1,608MW in total) were included
in the wind power and PV power generation construction
plans for 2020 issued by the state and provinces, with an
increase of 662MW attributable installed capacity which
was put into operation throughout the year.

The Group’s attributable power generation amounted to
4.75 billion kWh, representing an increase of 8.7% over last
year. The net profit of power generation business from the
Group’s wholly-owned power plants amounted to RMB732
million, representing an increase of 16.5% over the same
period of last year. The weighted average utilization hours
of the Group’s wholly owned wind power plants increased
by 227 hours to 2,504 hours as compared with the same
period of last year, which were 407 hours higher than the
national average level.

In 2020, by implementing the “build and transfer” strategy,
the Group sold certain renewable energy subsidied power
plants with a total installed capacity attributable to the
Group of 643.7MW, and the renewable energy subsidy
receivables and contract assets decreased by RMB856

million in total.

Looking forward, China has made the promise of achieving
peak carbon emission before 2030 and carbon neutrality
before 2060 to the world. By 2030, the installed capacity
of wind power and solar power generation will reach
1.2 billion KW or above, which brings an opportunity
of accelerated development for renewable energies.
It is foreseeable that the scale of planned renewable
energy projects will increase, and the conditions for grid
connection of renewable energy projects will be improved
more quickly; renewable energy technologies will advance
rapidly, leading to continuous lowering of the Levelized

Cost of Energy ("LCOE"); green finance market will develop
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rapidly; all these favorable factors will provide a strong
support for the development of renewable energies, and
further stabilize and enhance the advantages of renewable
energies. Meanwhile, it should be seen that as the level
of scale, centralizing and marketization of the renewable
energy industry has continued to improve, many traditional
energy companies, large companies from other sectors, and
overseas capital are all rushing into the renewable energy
sector, which will cause more intense competition in the

industry.

After 15 years of development, the Group has laid a solid
foundation and accumulated rich human resources, financial
resources, intangible assets and industry experience. It also
has strong capabilities for development and professional
construction in the industry, and its competitiveness in the
industry has been greatly improved. We are confident to
seize the opportunities for development in the industry and
implement the policy of steady growth, so as to achieve the
sustainable and healthy development in the long run.

We should strengthen our strategic research and actively
adjust our operation strategies according to changes in the
industry. In 2021, we will focus on:

1. INCREASE PROJECT CONSTRUCTIONS EFFORTS TO
ENSURE THE COMPLETION OF NEW PROJECTS FOR
PRODUCTION AS PLANNED

Seize the favourable opportunities arising from
China’s vigorous development of the renewable
energy industry, and put more efforts in project
constructions to achieve the addition of over 1 million
KW in production capacity during the year.
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2. AGGRESSIVELY DEVELOPING THE SERVICE

08

BUSINESS TO EXPAND THE SCALE OF SERVICE
BUSINESS

The Group will aggressively develop its service
business. Our entities in the service business segment
should improve their capabilities in exploring external
businesses to expand their business scales, and build

influential service brands in the industry.

MAKING PREPARATION FOR THE ENTRANCE INTO
MARKET-ORIENTED TRANSACTIONS BY STRIVING
TO LOWER THE LCOE

Continuously lowering the LCOE is a long-term goal
pursued by the Group. The Group will continue to
pursue the strategy of the lowest LCOE, improve the
asset quality and operate efficiency of power plants
and enhance the core competitiveness of the Group
in the era of competitive bidding and grid parity,
such that we will be well prepared for the full entry
of the renewable energy power generation into era
of market-oriented trading and the competition with
other forms of energy.

INCREASING EFFORTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF
PV PROJECTS

Project development has always been the Group’s
strength. Recently, we should focus on strengthening
the development of PV projects, organizing large scale
projects and base projects, and actively developing
various forms of integrated resource development
projects such as fishery photovoltaic, agriculture

photovoltaic and forest photovoltaic power projects.
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5.  CONTINUOUSLY OPTIMIZING ASSET QUALITY

The Group will continue to measure project
investment income dynamically, implement the “build
and transfer” strategy, and increase the replacement
of power plants that have low capital return and rely

on renewable energy subsidies.

2021 is the 15th anniversary of the Group, we will continue
to maintain our entrepreneurial spirit to meet challenges,

creating yet another higher level of success.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Company, | would
like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our Shareholders

and friends from the community for their trust and support.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2020, while the global economy was struggling,
the Chinese economy had illustrated great resilience
and vitality. Under the effective measures by the
Chinese government, the COVID-19 epidemic was
under control and the economy recovered sooner
than expected and the Chinese economy became the
only major economy in the world to achieve a positive
economic growth. China increased its efforts in
developing renewable energy, and the whole energy
industry continued to head towards the direction of
green, clean and low-carbon development, increasing
the proportion of clean energy consumption and
production.

In 2020, China proposed the targets of peaking
carbon dioxide emissions before 2030 and achieving
carbon neutrality before 2060 and listed it as one
of the key tasks of Central Economic Work in 2021.
New energy power generation such as wind and PV
power generation is an important means to achieve
the targets of peaking carbon dioxide emissions
and achieving carbon neutrality, as well as the
goal of "the total installed capacity of wind power
and solar power generation reaching 1,200GW or
above by 2030" proposed by China. Wind and PV
power generation will usher in the opportunity of
accelerated development. The targets of peaking
carbon dioxide emissions and achieving carbon
neutrality will accelerate the pace of development of
green and low carbon transformation of the energy
industry, encourage the accelerated innovation and
application of new energy technology, speed up the
optimization of green financial product and market
system, creating much more long-term and broad
room for development for wind power and PV power
generation in the era of grid parity and competitive
bidding.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

2020 was a critical year for the grid connection
deadline of China’s subsidized wind power projects.
Despite the impact of epidemic in the first half of
the year, installed wind power capacity still achieved
rapid growth with the newly installed wind power
capacity in 2020 reached a record high of 71.67GW.
The newly installed PV power generation capacity also
exceeded expectations, reaching 48.20GW.

(1) Clear Regulations on Renewable Energy
Subsidies and Industry Advancement to the
Era of Grid Parity

During the Year, the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC issued a number of policies which specified
the regulations for the subsidies on renewable
energy projects. All disputes in relation to the
issue of subsidy were settled, which cleared
the obstacles for market-oriented operation of
renewable energy power projects hereafter.
These policies include the following: on 3
February, the Ministry of Finance published
the Several Opinions on Promoting the Healthy
Development of Non-Hydro Renewable Energy
Power Generation (Caijian [2020] No. 4) ({f
RIREIFKABEREREERRERNETE
B ) (Bf #[2020]45%)), which improved the
means of subsidizing in accordance to the new
and existing projects. The total annual new
subsidies and scale of subsidized project of
new projects will be determined through the
strategy of “determination of expenditure based
on revenues”, while the amount of Central
government subsidies of existing projects will be
determined through the reasonable utilization
hours. At the same time, the subsidy payment
process will be optimized, and there will not
be any further publications of the Renewable
Energy Tariff Catalogue, instead, power grid
enterprises will determine and regularly publish
the renewable energy power generation subsidy
project list. On 21 October, the Supplementary
Notice for the Several Opinions on Promoting the
Healthy Development of Non-Hydro Renewable
Energy Power Generation (B8R < 2 # IF
KATBARRESRREERNETER>ABSE
TER TR EE)) was published, which specified
the reasonable utilization hours of the full life
cycle of wind power and PV power generation
projects and regulations on the settlement of
subsidy funds, and the maximum subsidized
period of projects as well as the total subsidized
amount were consequently determined.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(1

(2)

Clear Regulations on Renewable Energy
Subsidies and Industry Advancement to the
Era of Grid Parity (CONTINUED)

As at the end of the Year, the policies of wind
power and PV power generation industries in
China are complete in all aspects including
project development, construction, grid
connection, operation, information monitoring
and power consumption, thus improving the
management of wind power and PV power
generation and achieving the smooth transition
to grid parity.

Accelerating the Improvement of the
Electricity Transmission and Consumption
Conditions to Continuously Alleviate the
Conflict of Renewable Energy Electricity

Consumption

During the Year, under the rapid advancement
of "new infrastructure construction”, the
investment and construction of ultra-high
voltage project, NEV and charging stations
has accelerated, which promote electricity
consumption. Several ultra-high voltage AC
and DC projects were completed and put into
production, which have further enhanced the
capacity of new energy power grid connection,
as well as inter-provincial and inter-regional
transmission. According to the China Electricity
Council data, the national inter-regional power
transmission recorded a total of 613,000 GWh,
representing a year-on-year increase of 13.4%,
while the national inter-provincial power
transmission recorded a total of 1,536,200 GWh,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.4%.
Meanwhile, the Chinese government adopted
all sorts of measures to promote new energy
electricity consumption through accelerating the
establishment of green consumption system on

consumer end.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(2)

Accelerating the Improvement of the
Electricity Transmission and Consumption
Conditions to Continuously Alleviate the
Conflict of Renewable Energy Electricity
Consumption (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the accountability assessment
of renewable energy power consumption
gradually became stricter. In June, the NDRC
and the NEA jointly issued the Notice on Issuing
the Weight of Responsibility for Consumption
of Renewable Energy Power for Provincial
Level Administrative Regions in 2020 (Fa Gai
Nengyuan [2020] No. 767) (KBIRENE & &
THRIEE2020F A BARRE N HMEERE
BB AN ) (3R EEIR[2020]7675R%)). It specified
the weight of the total minimum amount of
responsibility for renewable energy power
consumption for 10 provinces (autonomous
regions or municipalities) exceeds 30%, and the
weight of minimum amount of responsibility for
non-hydropower consumption for 9 provinces
(autonomous regions or municipalities) exceeds
15%, facilitating the yearly increase of the
responsibility of renewable energy power
consumption. According to the NEA data, the
national average utilization hours of wind power
reached 2,097 hours, representing a year-on-
year increase of 15 hours, while the national
average utilization hours of PV power reached
1,160 hours, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 9 hours. The national average wind
power curtailment rate was 3%, representing
a decrease by 1 percentage point year-on-year,
while the national average PV power curtailment
was 2%, which were substantially consistent

compared with the same period of last year.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(3)

Continuous Advancement in Wind and PV
Power Generation Technology Promote the
Continuous Lowering of LCOE

During the Year, the wind power technology
continued to develop towards the direction of
high capacity turbines, high turbine towers, long
blades, low wind speed and intelligentization,
so to meet the economic needs of power
plant investment under different development
conditions. The increase in unit capacity
and the lengthening of the blades diameter
will effectively increase power generation
performance, increase the power generation and
lower the LCOE of wind power generation. In
terms of the prices for wind turbines, impacted
by the rush for wind power installations and
the COVID-19 epidemic, the supply of certain
key materials in the wind power industrial chain
was tight during the Year, resulting in increased
prices. However, with the end of the rush of
installation and the arrival of grid parity era,
the prices for wind turbines supplied in 2021
have already shown a significant drop, with the
lowest public tender price for wind turbines
delivered in 2021 down to roughly RMB2,700/
kW to RMB3,000/kW.

During the Year, the transformational
efficiency of PV modules was continuously
enhanced. Monocrystalline silicon technology
has shown diversified development, large-
size PV battery cells continuously introduced,
and the industrialization progress of advanced
battery technology such as heterojunction and
perovskite is steadily increasing. Larger and
thinner silicon wafers, higher power efficiency
modules as well as double-sided and double-
glass modules have become the development
trend. The continuous improvement of PV
power generation transformational efficiency
and single-cell modules capacity increases
the capacity for installed PV power plant in a
limited land area, increasing the amount of
power generated and effectively reducing the
LCOE of PV power generation. During the Year,
affected by the supply shortage and price hike
of PV auxiliary materials as well as the expected
increase in market demand, the price of modules
increased and remained strong in the second half
of the year. However, the bottlenecks in supply
of materials and module production will soon be
alleviated, and the advancement in technology
and increase of supply will still effectively lower
the LCOE of PV.
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L. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(4)

Continuous Policy Improvement on Market-
based Power Trading, Carbon Emissions

Trading and Quota System

During the Year, the Chinese government
continued to push forward market-based power
trading, allowing renewable energy power to
gradually enter market trading through gradual
policy improvement and regulation on market
operation mechanism. According to the China
Electricity Council data, the amount of electricity
traded in the national power market had a
year-on-year increase of 11.7% in 2020, and
the amount of electricity traded accounted for
42% of China’s total electricity consumption,
representing a year-on-year increase of 3

percentage points.

During the Year, the Ministry of Ecological
Environment accelerated the construction of
national carbon emission trading market and
issued a series of documents to implement
carbon emission rights and emission quotas. The
guota system and the national carbon emission
trading market will be essential in realizing the
target of peaking carbon dioxide emissions
before 2030.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(5)

Enhancement of Financial Support on the
Real Economy and Improvement of Credit

Environment

During the Year, the Chinese government has
successively introduced a series of relief policies
to promote the real economy and reduce the
burden on enterprises. In terms of finance and
taxation, tax reduction and fee reduction policies
were continued to be implemented. The burden
of enterprises in social insurance premiums was
alleviated by postponement and exemption
of social insurance payments. Preferential
treatments in value-added tax and income tax
were strengthened. In terms of financial support,
the deposit reserve ratio requirement was
reduced three times, the centralized shifting of
loan pricing benchmark from floating rate was
completed, the release of interest rate market
bonus by LPR reform was promoted, the loan
deferred principal and interest policy and credit
loan support program were implemented, the re-
loaning and rediscounting policy was launched,
green financial product and market system
were constantly improved, products including
green credit, green debt and green fund were
developed, carbon market was established,
carbon futures was developed and various
fees and management of credit financing were
regulated to effectively support the development
of real economy and reduce financing costs of

enterprises.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

At the beginning of the year, the sudden outbreak
of COVID-19 threatened the health of employees,
prevented production and construction from
commencing normally, hindered developers from
traveling to expand business, and power curtailment
in regions increased due to insufficient electricity
consumption, causing a significant impact on the
Group’s operations and even a decline in results at
one point. Facing the severe epidemic, the Group
made vigorous arrangements to maintain the
normalization of epidemic prevention and control,
formulated scientific and effective epidemic prevention
measures, increased input in epidemic prevention
materials and cared for employees who stayed on the
front line during the epidemic. There was no incident
of the Group's employees contracting COVID-19 virus.
In regard to production, the Group managed to carry
out equipment emergency repair and maintenance,
and resumed construction work as soon as possible.
The Group successfully coped with the impact of the
epidemic and the rush of installation of wind power
projects, and quickly resumed its businesses. Not only
did the Group recover quickly from the downturn,
but it also recorded improved results for the year. The
Group achieved a year-on-year growth in revenue, and
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group
reached a record high.

During the Year, the Group accelerated the progress
of project development and construction, significantly
increased project reserves, maintained the growth
of installed capacity and strived for safe production,
with the power generation of power plants and
profit from power generation both achieving year-
on-year increase. The Group fully adhered to the
strategy of “build & transfer” and enhanced the
intensity of transfers of power plants that were
dependent on renewable energy subsidies and
optimized asset quality and significantly lowered the
gross renewable energy subsidy receivables which
tremendously increased the asset quality. The Group
also implemented a more prudent financial policy,
optimizing the debt structure to lower the liability-
to-asset ratio of the Group and effectively control
financial risks. At the same time, the Group was
brave in innovation, boldly exploring the related
business along the renewable energy industry chain,
expanding the research, development and application
of intelligent O&M, energy loT, big data analysis and
artificial intelligence technology, thereby increasing
the scientific nature of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group materialized a
total revenue of RMB2,000,754,000 (2019:
RMB1,835,922,000), accounting for 9.0% increase
over the same period of last year. Profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Group amounted
to RMB673,405,000 (2019: RMB604,293,000),
representing 11.4% increase over the same period of
last year. The basic earnings per share were RMB8.18
cents (2019: RMB7.22 cents); and the diluted earnings
per share amounted to RMB7.86 cents (2019:
RMB6.86 cents).

As of 31 December 2020, the net assets of the Group
amounted to RMB6,494,502,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB5,969,201,000) and its net assets per share was
RMBO0.78 (31 December 2019: RMB0.70).

(1) Satisfactory Achievements in Power Plant

Development and Construction

i. Project Development Achieved
Excellent Results Once Again and

Significant Increase of Project Reserves

During the Year, the COVID-19 epidemic
resulted in the lagging in project
application in the first half of the year. The
Group took the initiative to actively plan
and scientifically formulate development
strategies. By integrating its resource
advantages, the Group vigorously
developed PV power projects and grid
parity wind power projects. The project
development had achieved excellent
results with the Group’s project reserves
significantly increased. The projects
developed during the Year were all high
quality PV power projects and grid parity
wind power projects that were larger in

scale and had better resource conditions.
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) s ¥EIEEEE)

EHAREERREEAE)

(1) Satisfactory Achievements in Power Plant (=)
Development and Construction (CONTINUED)

Project Development Achieved
Excellent Results Once Again and
Significant Increase of Project Reserves
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group had a total
of 13 projects (1,068 MW in total)
included in the Wind Power and PV Power
Construction Plans for 2020 published by
the state and various provinces. The newly
approved (recorded) capacity is 907MW,
with a total of 11 projects, including 6
wind power projects (497 MW in total)
and 5 PV projects (410 MW in total). New
construction index obtained and newly
approved projects during the Year were
all grid parity projects, which provided
sufficient guarantee for the Group's
strategy of replacing renewable energy
subsidized projects with grid parity projects

and the Group's sustainable development.

The Group strengthened its expansion
in and management of resources and
expanded resource reserves through
entering into new contracts for a total of
6,310 MW of wind resources and a total
of 7,550 MW of PV resources. Meanwhile,
effective investigation and dynamic
management of resources were launched
to ensure sufficient projects for the Group's
subsequent construction and sustainable

development.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1) Satisfactory Achievements in Power Plant
Development and Construction (CONTINUED)

ii.

Project Construction Overcame a Series
of Difficulties and Newly Installed
Capacity Reached a Historic High

During the Year, affected by the dual
impact of the COVID-19 epidemic and
the rush for wind power installation, the
construction period and resources were
tight, and the supply chain capacity and
supply delivery progress were affected.
Moreover, the adverse weather such as
flooding, rainstorm, snowstorms and
freezing in certain areas resulted in the
delays in the progress of some project
constructions in the beginning of 2020.
The Group timely formulated a general
plan for epidemic prevention, and all the
projects under construction had been
resumed as soon as possible. While sticking
with the normalization of COVID-19
epidemic prevention and control measures,
the Group formulated corresponding
measures in accordance to specific
projects, strengthening its efforts in project
management and coordination, closely
tracking the supply delivery progress and
construction resources, ensuring project
safety and fully promoting the progress
of project construction to ensure its
realization of grid connection target. The
capacity of new projects to be put into
production reached a historic high, and
the Group still maintained the growth of
installed capacity while transferring a large
number of renewable energy subsidized

projects.
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1) Satisfactory Achievements in Power Plant
Development and Construction (CONTINUED)

ii.

Project Construction Overcame a Series
of Difficulties and Newly Installed
Capacity Reached a Historic High
(CONTINUED)

For the Year, the Group put into operation
a total of 8 new power plants with a
total installed capacity of 798 MW, and
the attributable installed capacity was
662 MW, all of which were wind power

projects.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group
owned equity interest of 70 grid-connected
wind power and PV power plants with a
total installed capacity of 3,504 MW (2019:
3,446 MW), and an attributable installed
capacity of 2,413 MW (2019: 2,394 MW).
Among them, 56 were wind power plants
with an installed capacity of 3,340 MW
(2019: 3,113 MW) and an attributable
installed capacity of 2,263 MW, and 14
were PV power plants with an installed
capacity of 163 MW (2019: 332 MW), and
an attributable capacity of 150 MW.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had
39 wholly-owned grid-connected wind
power and PV power plants with a total
installed capacity of 1,686 MW. Among
these, 26 were wind power plants with
an installed capacity of 1,543 MW, and
13 were PV power plants with an installed
capacity of 143 MW.
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1. BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) - EBEEE)
(1) Satisfactory Achievements in Power Plant (—) EREREERREEAN(E)

Development and Construction (CONTINUED)

ii.  Project Construction Overcame a Series 2 HEHEZRZREEWEH 3
of Difficulties and Newly Installed RELBAEELEFLHF S
Capacity Reached a Historic High (4&)

(CONTINUED)

Attributable Installed Capacity of Power Plants (MW)

RHEERZHRE(MW)
The Group's Invested Power Plants | The Group's Wholly-owned Power Plants
SEBERENER He BEER
Change Change
Business Segments  EHRAR 2020 2019 Rate 2020 2019 Rate
and Regions EfH 2020 20195 2= 2020 20195 2%
Installed Wind Power &4 2,263 2,080 8.8% 1,543 1,369 12.7%
Capacity RE
Including: A
Northeastern China it EH 478 310 54.2% 349 149 134.2%
Northern China EE 431 219 96.8% 148 — —
Northwestern China ~ FJbES 103 103 0.0% — - —
Eastern China EZRE 424 346 22.5% 330 228 44.7%
Central Southern rEEY 826 1,022 -19.2% 716 912 -21.5%
China
Southwestern China  FiE &3 0 80 -100.0% 0 80 -100.0%
Installed PV FAREH 150 314 -52.2% 143 303 -52.8%
Power Capacity 5
Including: Heh
Northeastern China ~ RItEH 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0%
Northern China ZEE 6 26 -76.9% 0 20 -100.0%
Northwestern China ~ FEJt/&H, 9 9 0.0% 9 9 0.0%
Eastern China £RRY 0 44 -100.0% 0 40 -100.0%
Southwestern China ~ FERS, 115 215 -46.5% 115 215 -46.5%
Overseas Regions BEE 18 18 0.0% 18 18 0.0%
Total &t 2,413 2,3% 0.8% 1,686 1,672 0.8%

22



2020 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNRE DM

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2)

Achieving the Reduction of Renewable
Energy Subsidy Receivables through Asset

Optimization

During the Year, the Group decidedly carried
out its development strategy of replacing
subsidized projects with grid parity projects,
implemented the strategy of “build & transfer”
and constantly enhanced asset management and
asset optimization, tremendously increasing asset

quality.

In 2020, the Group has entered into cooperation
agreement with Three Gorges Renewables, China
Nuclear, Shanghai Shenneng, and Zhuhai Port
Risen, etc.. The Group sold certain renewable
energy subsidized power plants with a total
installed capacity attributable to the Group of
643.7 MW, and the renewable energy subsidy
receivables and contract assets decreased by
RMB856 million in total, effectively reduced
the reliance on renewable energy subsidies,
improved cash flow and asset structure as well

as lowered the financial risks.

As at the end of the Year, the renewable energy
subsidy recognized in contract assets and trade
receivables of the Group was RMB1,107,130,000
(31 December 2019: RMB1,422,460,000).

The Group strived to dynamically analyze the
economic benefits of existing power plants,
strengthen the monitoring and analysis of
cash flow and debt indicators, and replace the
existing power plants that were dependent
on renewable energy subsidies with newly
constructed, high-quality power plants. Asset
structure was optimized to increase shareholder
returns and guarantee the steady development
of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(3)

Increasing the Intensity on Project Financing

For our Group, the project finance costs are
lower than the Group-level debt financing
costs. During the Year, the Group strived to
increase the financing proportion of low cost
projects to reduce the reliance on Group-level
high cost financing and increase the return on
equity of power plants, but the Group’s liability-
to-asset ratio was reduced. During the Year,
the Group had realized financing replacement
or refinancing for seven existing power plants
with a net increase of RMB690 million in new
loans. The Group also completed the conversion
of the pricing benchmark of loan interest rate
of the existing financing contracts to LPR, and
the interest rates of the newly signed financing
contracts were lower than those signed in the
same period of last year.

In 2020, the Group had been actively expanding
new financing channels and maintained
good communication and cooperation with
various financial institutions, with the Group's
cooperating financial institutes increased to 19.
Meanwhile, the financing model has diversified,
a more flexible financing method is adopted
to satisfy the required funding for project
constructions.

In 2020, the Group successfully issued US$90
million of bonds in exchange for a portion of
the US$200 million of bonds that matured in
January 2021. Through various efforts, as at the
end of 2020, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio
was 66.74% (31 December 2019: 69.99%).
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) — - ¥EBBEE)

(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants

(M) EREEELRSRIFRES
Retained Positive Momentum

Rapid Recovery of Power Plant
Production and Steady Increase in
Attributable Power Generation

During the Year, the Group overcame
the insufficient power load, lagging in
the progress of grid-connected operation
and delays in fault handling as well as
the adverse situations such as decrease
in resources and increase of power
curtailment due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 epidemic at the beginning of the
year, and the power generation recovered
rapidly. The attributable power generation
in 2020 achieved a year-on-year growth
and recorded an increase of 8.7% over
the same period of last year, with the
amount of power generated by wholly-
owned power plants increased by 11.1%.
The Group’s attributable wind power
generation had a year-on-year growth rate
of 11.3%, of which power generation by
wholly-owned power plants had a year-on-
year increase of 15.3%, mainly due to the
improved asset quality of the newly added
power plants and the increased installed
capacities. Due to the decrease of installed
capacity, the increase of power curtailment
and the decrease of PV resources, the
annual attributable power generation of PV

power generation decreased by 11.2%.
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Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

i Rapid Recovery of Power Plant
Production and Steady Increase
in Attributable Power Generation

1 EREERZELF R
EERALER(E)

(CONTINUED)
Total Attributable Power Generation Output (GWh)
BRAZEE(GWh)
The Group's Invested Power Plants | The Group's Wholly-owned Power Plants
SERERENER Hi  BEER
Business Segments ~ EHRAK 2020 2019 Change Rate 2020 2019 Change Rate
and Regions B 2020 20198 Blx 2020 2019 Blx
Wind Power REREE 4,310.2 3,872.8 11.3% 2,939.1 2,548.0 15.3%
Generation
Including: A
Northeastern China ~ BJtEH, 649.2 3515 84.7% 379.0 1.7 -
Northern China Z R 662.7 4318 53.5% 1232 — —
Northwestern China ~ FtEH 156.4 145.4 7.6% - - -
Eastern China EREY 7149 729.8 -2.0% 5117 519.0 -1.4%
Central Southern hERE 1,911.5 1,995.2 -4.2% 1,709.8 1,808.3 -5.4%
China
Southwestern China AR, 215.5 219.0 -1.6% 215.5 219.0 -1.6%
PV Power Generation XAZEE 439.7 495.3 -11.2% 4233 471.7 -11.4%
Including: e
Northeastern China ~ RItEH 08 08 0.0% 08 08 0.0%
Northern China E R 38.9 44.4 -12.4% 273 32.0 -14.7%
Northwestern China  Fdt/&E 1 13.6 131 3.8% 13.6 131 3.8%
Eastern China ERES 55.2 60.3 -8.5% 50.4 55.0 -8.4%
Southwestern China ~ FiEE, 310.0 3554 -12.8% 310.0 355.4 -12.8%
Overseas Regions RS 213 24 -0.5% 213 24 -0.5%
Total &t 4,750.0 4,368.1 8.7% 3,362.4 3,025.7 11.1%
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(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

ii.

Continuous Improvement in Quality
and Efficiency of Power Plants and
Maintaining Growth in Revenue and
Net Profit of Power Plants

During the Year, benefited from the
improved asset quality of power plants
and the increased installed capacities, and
despite the adverse factors such as the
increase of wind and PV power curtailment
rates as well as decrease of resources in
certain areas, both the revenue and net
profit of the Group’s power plants achieved

a year-on-year increase.

In 2020, the Group’s wholly-owned
power plants achieved a total revenue
of RMB1,728,443,000, an increase of
5.6% over the same period of last year,
accounting for 86% of the Group's
revenue (2019: 89%).

In 2020, the Group’s wholly-owned power
plants achieved a total net profit from
power generation of RMB731,757,000, an
increase of 16.5% over the same period of
last year, and the Group shared net profits
totaling RMB131,852,000 from power
generation business of its associates and

joint ventures.

ZXBEREE)
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20204+ A £ B &
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1,728,443,0007C © & |k —
FEREEES 6%  (hEH
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89%) °
2020 - KEEH B E B K
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(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

ii.
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Continuous Improvement in Quality

and Efficiency of Power Plants and

Maintaining Growth in Revenue and
Net Profit of Power Plants (CONTINUED)

RO E)

(W) EMEEBLERFTRTF(AE)

2 EREENZIFHEREH B
BRARFFEREER

(#&)

Revenue and Net Profit of Power Plants (RMB)

EFRBARFRNEARS : T

2020 2019 Change Rate
2020 2019 F SR
Revenue of Wholly- HEEZR U A |1,728,443,000 |1,636,294,000 5.6%
owned Power
Plants
Including: Heh
Wind Power AE 1,385,295,000 |1,254,404,000 10.4%
PV Power R 343,148,000 | 381,890,000 -10.1%
Net Profit of BEER 731,757,000 628,204,000 16.5%
Wholly-owned = FE
Power Plants
Including: Heo
Wind Power ES 638,785,000 526,351,000 21.4%
PV Power FAR 92,972,000 | 101,853,000 -8.7%
Net Profit of BHEER 131,852,000 | 170,042,000 -22.5%
Jointly-owned A
Power Plants
Including: Hr
Wind Power EE 124,987,000 162,913,000 -23.3%
PV Power SR 6,865,000 7,129,000 -3.7%
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(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

Launching Deep Technological
Transformation to Maintain a Higher
Level of Availability of Power Plants

During the Year, following the total
resumption of work of enterprises as well
as the launch of technical transformation
on power plants, the availability of the
Group’s power plants has been gradually
recovering in the second half of the year.
The availability of the PV power plants
invested by the Group was 99.93%, of
which the availability of wholly-owned PV
power plants was 99.92%, both realizing
year-on-year growth and reversing the
decline in the availability of PV power
plants in the first half of the year. The
availability of the Group’s invested wind
power plants was 97.72%, of which the
availability of wholly-owned wind power
plants was 98.08%, and the decrease was
narrowed compared to the first half of the

—XBEREE)

(W) EMEEBLERFTRTF(AE)

3 HERERK BBITFNA
ERIFHERBKF

KFE - NEBERAF A
EHEELENEZEEL
LA B2 & R B 00 B iE TAE A
AR £ TFEEXHBR
HFE EEEERAER
EE K RERAFNAE R
99.93% * HHBEE A ER
AIFMARXAE99.92%  UE
RRAKEE  |ET E¥F
HAREBAFBETENR
e SEREFERENR
BERAI A A ERI7.72%
HbhBEREmFABEA
98.08% ' TRRIEEE ¥4
W -

year.
Availability of Power Plants (%)
ERTHAE(%)
The Group's Invested Power Plants | The Group's Wholly-owned Power Plants
SERERENER Ao BEER

Business 2020 Change 2020 2019 Change
Segments ES I 20205 2019% BiLE 2020% 2019% BILE
Availability of BERTFAE 97.72% 98.01% -0.29 98.08% 98.65% -0.57

Wind Power

Plants
Availability of PV ¥ REHAF 99.93% 99.78% 0.15 99.92% 99.74% 0.18

Power Plants A%
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

Launching Deep Technological
Transformation to Maintain a Higher
Level of Availability of Power Plants
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group initiated a total
of 52 key technological transformation
projects in power plants of various regions.
Initiatives such as extension of turbine
blades, ice prevention for turbine blades,
super double-feed induction, enhancement
of module’s master control program and
anti-corrosion for blade leading edge
effectively improved the power generation
performance of wind turbines and
increased the power generation of power
plants, and reduced the loss of electricity.
The Group's launch of the blade extension
technical transformation in power plants
in Anhui, Liaoning, and other places was
evaluated to increase the power plants
generation capacity of power plants by
5% to 7%. The Group’s launch of the
super double-feed induction technical
transformation in Hubei could increase the
annual equivalent power generation hours
of the wind turbines by more than 50 hours
after evaluation. Technical transformation
in respect of safety including technical
upgrade of lightning protection design,
grounding modification of wind turbines
and PV modules and safety monitoring
system of hub bolts improved the safety

and stability of power plants operation.
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(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

iii.

iv.

Launching Deep Technological
Transformation to Maintain a Higher
Level of Availability of Power Plants
(CONTINUED)

Meanwhile, the Group actively promoted
the work of equipment maintenance
and analysis. Problems of similar nature
of equipment were analyzed to improve
the availability of equipment as well as
to provide support for technological
transformation. Intelligent operation
and management of power plants were
promoted continuously by optimizing data
sharing solutions of POWER" and EAM
systems. Online and offline interaction
of various tasks were strengthened, thus
enhancing the efficiency of power plant
operation and level of intelligent operation.

Significantly Longer Utilization Hours
of Wind Power Plants with Minimal
Impacts from Power Curtailment

In 2020, benefited from the replacement
of the existing power plants with lower
utilization hours with the parity on-grid
power plants with higher utilization hours
and the increased technical transformation
of the power plants, the quality of
the Group’s power plants has been
improved significantly, and the average
utilization hours of the wind power plants
substantially increased. The weighted
average utilization hours of the Group’s
invested wind power plants reached 2,241,
representing an increase of 115 hours
over the same period of last year, which
was higher than the national average
level by 144 hours. The weighted average
utilization hours of wholly-owned wind
power plants was 2,504, representing an
increase of 227 hours over the same period
of last year, and 407 hours higher than the

national average.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

iv.

Significantly Longer Utilization Hours
of Wind Power Plants with Minimal
Impacts from Power Curtailment
(Continued)

In 2020, the weighted average utilization
hours of the Group's invested PV power
plants was 1,452, which was 292 hours
higher than the national average.

— - REOEE)
(W) EREEBERFRTF(E)

4 -

BEEFF)IEFEHA IFER
REFEBERER(E)

2020%F F REERERER
YR BRI TR A
INBE B A,452 /0N S T
FEI KT 292 /N o

Weighted Average Utilization Hours of Power Plants (Hour)

ERMETIRIANE ()E)

The Group's Invested Power Plants The Group’s Wholly-owned Power Plants
SEEERENER He  BEER
Change Change
Business 2020 2019 Rate 2020 2019 Rate
Segments £330 2020% 2019% Bl % 2020% 2019% Bl %
Average BEFHHA 2,241 2,126 5.4% 2,504 2,211 10.0%
Utilization NE
Hours of Wind
Power Plants
Average *RFEGFIB 1,452 -4.3% 1,436 1,505 -4.6%
Utilization NS
Hours of PV
Power Plants

In 2020, the power curtailment rate of the
Group’s invested power plants increased,
with a year-on-year increase on both
wind and PV power curtailment rate. The
average wind power curtailment rate of
the Group’s invested wind power plants
and the wind power curtailment rate of
wholly-owned wind power plants were
both 4.0%, of which the wind power
curtailment rate of wholly-owned wind
power plants increased by 2.7 percentage
points year-on-year, mainly attributable
to the slowdown of growth rate in social
electricity consumption due to the epidemic
and the increase of power curtailment in
regions such as Hunan as a result of limited
output channels during the flooding season
in southern regions. The average PV power
curtailment rate of the Group’s invested
PV power plants was 9.3%, of which
the PV power curtailment rate of wholly-
owned PV power plants was 10.2%, mainly
attributable to the lack of improvement in
PV power curtailment in regions such as
Tibet.

2020 AEEKERSE
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(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants (M) EMEEELGEERT(E)
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)
iv. Significantly Longer Utilization Hours 4y BEEFFHIEBEAFEEE
of Wind Power Plants with Minimal REZERSER(E)

Impacts from Power Curtailment

(Continuead)
Wind and PV Power Curtailment Rates of Power Plants (%)
ERERELE(%)
The Group's Invested Power Plants | The Group's Wholly-owned Power Plants
EESERENER Hi BEER
Business 2020 2019 Change 2020 2019 Change
Segments EBR 2020 20195 28 2020 219% 28
Wind Power A% 4.0% 3.1% 0.9 4.0% 1.3% 2.7
Curtailment
Rate
PV Power % 9.3% 7.0% 23 10.2% 7.6% 2.6
Curtailment
Rate
v. Average Feed-in Tariff of Power Plants 5 FEHIFEEEFETE B

Fell Slightly, Reduced Dependence of
Power Plants on Subsidies

During the Year, with the impacts of the
commencement of operation of grid parity
projects, transfer of power plants with high
subsidies, power trading and the increase
on allocated expense of ancillary services,
the weighted average feed-in tariff of
power plants invested by the Group fell
slightly. However, following the increase of
commencement of grid parity projects and
the transfer of renewable energy subsidized
power plants, the Group’s ratio of assets
that were dependent on renewable energy
subsidy was further decreased, while the
asset quality of power plants significantly
increased, thus reducing the dependence
of power plants on subsidies.
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(4) Production and Operation of Power Plants (M)
Retained Positive Momentum (CONTINUED)

v. Average Feed-in Tariff of Power Plants
Fell Slightly, Reduced Dependence of
Power Plants on Subsidies (CONTINUED)

EREEBERERY(E)

5. FHLHEEFETE B
B R e 7 B T BE (%)

Weighted Average Feed-in Tariff of Power Plants (RMB/kWh) (Including VAT)
ERNETYLRER(T/TRE) (SHEH)

The Group's Invested Power Plants | The Group’s Wholly-owned Power Plants
EESERENER A BEEH
Business 2020 2019 Change 2020 2019 Change
Segments EHRR 2020 2019% 218 2020 2019F g1LE
Weighted RENRTHL 05339 05499  -0.0160 0.5492 05800  -0.0308
REE
Average Feed-
in Tariff of
Wind Power
Weighted FRMETH £ 0.9452 0.9471 -0.0019 0.9125 0.9135 -0.0010
Average Feed-  HEfE
in Tariff of PV
Power
(5) Other Businesses () Hib¥R

During the Year, other business segments of the
Group contributed revenue of RMB272,311,000
to the Group (2019: RMB199,628,000),

representing a year-on-year increase of 36%.

While focusing on its core power generation
business, the Group also actively developed
related business along the renewable energy
industry chain and conducted extensive research
and development. In 2020, the Group has
actively overcome the epidemic impact and
spared great efforts in expanding the businesses
of intelligent O&M and Energy loT, engineering
consultancy and design as well as financial

leasing and made some achievements.

34
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(5)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

i.

Intelligent O&M Segment

The Group’'s subsidiaries Beijing Century
Concord Operation and Maintenance Co.,
Ltd. ("Concord O&M") and Beijing Power
Concord Technology Development Co., Ltd.
("Power Concord”) formed the intelligent
O&M sector of the Group. Concord
O&M and Power Concord deepened the
synergetic development, greatly exploring
the intelligent O&M service model,
improving the technological level of energy
loT, expanding the business coverage and
promoting the application of technology.
During the Year, the building of
professional talents in R&D, operation and
sales in the segment was strengthened,
and high-end talents were introduced to
continuously improve the business scale
and service quality of intelligent O&M.

Concord O&M and Power Concord greatly
explore the intelligent O&M service
model and continue to push forward
the product R&D of the intelligent O&M
platform POWER". On the foundation of
the intelligent O&M platform POWER",
EAM, mobile inspection terminal function
complementation and data interoperability,
Concord O&M and Power Concord
continued to deepen the integration of
online intelligent monitoring with offline
O&M, achieving the multi-functional data
collection, centralized monitoring and
control, intelligent analysis, intelligent early
warning and automated logbook of power
stations and forming a data-driven new
energy full life cycle asset management
and intelligent O&M solutions. Leveraging
the application of the intelligent O&M
platform, the professional support of the
technical service systems, the protection
of safety and quality system and the
interaction of three-tier management
system between headquarters + regions
+ power stations, the Group’s intelligent
O&M service model of online and offline
integration has been optimized gradually
and the level of intelligent O&M services
has continued to improve.

—XBEREE)

(R) HtpH (&)

1>

EBERRAE

EEMBLRHA EHR
ERMERQRHEE
#wl) - ARBHBERIEE

~NEl([BHa ) ER
@WT%.E?@%W%°
HEEHEAE NIHE IR
REE KRIGREEEH
RISER - = s R M 4
Rk - INRESHEER
B - piREERMER - K
FE - ZRBINKHE - B
g EEEREEEASK
HHEE: sl#EsmAL
BERASDZEBEELHRE
AR K o

HEBHEE NHERNE
REZBEHBRBERN  FE
HEHEPOWER EZEH F A
Em it E o ERPOWER'E
EEHTE BEEEESR
(EAM) ~ % 8 i &2 42 0 1Y
Iﬁﬁuﬁ%ﬁ%ifu%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
o RS ﬁé%%&;ﬁﬁ?@
ﬂ,%ﬁuxmvaﬂ/\wé/%{t
RBUMZREBERSE - &
FRESHE . ERE T - HEETE
Z. g8 RkEREDE B
W%EA%(TF%[@JE@%E BERE
Eunﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁéfi?@eﬂg
WEHRRARER - BREEE
FarmER - BT
MNEXEZE £2E8=
FRME - BP+EIFH+E
—HREEBRENY EJJ-
B EBETHEER
f/&ﬂlﬁ%ﬁtﬁinm B E
BERBKEFERA -

B Y
xR
’5‘3
EE
S
BE
&

rmwr@]ma%%ﬁr@

35



2020 £ %

HEHEREEERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERBNWE DA

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(5) Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

i.

36

Intelligent O&M Segment (CONTINUED)

During the Year, Concord O&M won “The
Most Influential O&M Enterprise” of 2020
Solar Cup, “Top 100 Distributed PV Power
Service Providers in China” of 2020 CREC,
as well as the Basic Safety Training BST
Certificate awarded by the China General
Certification (CGC) and authorized by the
Global Wind Organization (GWO). Such
awards illustrate that the service quality
and safety management system of Concord
O&M are highly recognized by the industry.

While leveraging on the accumulated
O&M experience of the Group’'s power
plants, Concord O&M and Power Concord
vigorously expanded their external business
and business scope. During the Year, both
the revenue and net profit of Concord
O&M increased. Newly signed external
contracts amounted to RMB75.67 million.
Concord O&M actively innovated new
business models and the business and
customer types were more diversified.
Apart from the traditional O&M services, it
also explored new businesses such as assets
management, technical transformation,
technical services, data products and
household photovoltaic system, and
achieved breakthroughs in off-shore
O&M businesses, with the O&M capacity
reaching 7.4 GW. In 2020, Concord O&M
undertook service contracts with a total of
129 wind power and PV power plants in
O&M, asset management, inspection and
wind turbine commissioning services, as
well as 63 service contracts covering the
areas such as preventive tests, technical
services, technical transformation and sales

of spare parts.
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(5)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

ii.

Engineering Consultancy and Design
Business

During the Year, the Group’s subsidiary
Concord Power Consulting & Design
(Beijing) Corp., Ltd. (“Design Company”)
strengthened the full process control
of projects. It continuously promoted
design optimization and standardized
construction, and improved its design
philosophy and service quality. In addition
to intensive expansion of the traditional
areas such as design consultancy markets
and EPC markets, it also actively expanded
into new business areas and enhanced its

market competitiveness.

During the Year, the Design Company
completed 399 technical service reports,
117 feasibility study reports, 34 microsite
selection reports and a total of 26
preliminary designs, construction drawing
designs and record drawing designs.
The Design Company expanded business
development and signed 30 exterior
contracts and won the bid of shortlisted
for 17 frameworks in 2020. It also won the
bids for the planning projects of wind and
solar power industries in Zhaotong, Yunnan
and wind power development in Yilan,
Heilongjiang. Furthermore, the Design
Company actively expanded new business
and launched the design consultation work
of gas power generation, integration of
wind, PV and hydrogen power and energy
storage, clean heating, biomass energy and

multi-energy complementation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

ii.

iii.

Engineering Consultancy and Design
Business (CONTINUED)

The Design Company comprehensively
improved its quality management level
and launched design optimization and
standardized construction. It was awarded
the third prize of the 2020 Outstanding
Quality Control Team Achievements in
the Power Engineering Industry with
its work result report of “Reducing the
Weight of Towers of the High-wheeled
Wind Power Turbine in Yangcun Village,
Tianchang, Anhui”. Furthermore, as a
member of the China Electric Power
Planning & Engineering Association,
Beijing Engineering Exploration and Design
Association and Beijing Association of
Engineering Consultings, the Design
Company actively fulfilled its duty and
was elected as a member supervisor of the
Supervisory Board to the China Electric
Power Planning & Engineering Association
during the Year.

Financial Leasing, Energy Storage and
Incremental Distribution Network
Businesses

Focusing on the renewable energy industry
chain, the Group actively explored new
business development models including
finance leasing, energy storage and
incremental distribution network during
the Year. The Group kept close track of
industry policies and the development
trends of renewable energy, monitored
technological development, strengthened
technical reserve and improved risk
management and control. It dynamically
tracked the investment returns of new
businesses, formulated investment
strategies and expanded into the Group's
new area of business growth according
to the degree of maturity of business

development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In addition to financial performance, the Group
believes that high-standard of corporate social
responsibility is of great significance in building a
positive relationship between the enterprise and
the society, motivating its employees and achieving

sustainable development and return for the Group.

(1) Ecological and Environmental Protection

While complying with national ecological and
environmental protection laws and regulations,
the Group has formulated its own environmental
protection management system and working
procedures. When managing the full life cycle
of power plants, the Group focused on the
investment and management in environmental
protection, conservation of water and soil
and biodiversity protection. Through various
measures including ensuring allocation of funds,
optimized designs, technology upgrades and
intelligent operation of enhancing environmental
standards and concept of environmental
protection, the Group practiced energy
conservation, emission reduction, ecological
environment protection, and guarded the lucid
waters and lush mountains while providing clean
energy to protect the natural environment. As
such, the Group has established a good image in
local investment and development.

During the Year, the Group achieved the
equivalent reduction of carbon dioxide, sulphur
dioxide, and nitrogen oxide emissions and the
saving of standard coal and water conservation
from the electricity generated by the Group's
invested wind power plants and PV power plants,
as compared with those by conventional power
plants. The reduction in pollutants positively
contributed to the reduction in air pollution,

greenhouse gas emission and haze.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE =
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(1) Ecological and Environmental Protection
(CONTINUED)

Ay

RERE SRRUEEEEE)

(=) SBRBRRE(E)

Emission Reduction by Power Plants

ERRHEE

Accumulated
Emissions Reduction 2020 Amount
Indicators R E 2020 F Rt ¥
CO, (Kilotons) CO, (Fmg) 5,205 34,734
SO, (tons) SO, (mg) 1,274 24,700
NO, (tons) NO, (1) 1,328 22,321
Standard Coal Saving (Kilotons) | & 491Z & ( F Mg ) 2,087 12,664
Water Saving (Kilotons) B 49 R 7K (FHE) 8,243 80,592

(2) Compliance

During the Year, the Group regularly identifies
laws and regulations relating to the Group’s
business, operations and employment, assesses
their potential impacts on the Group and
actively formulates corresponding measures.
While strictly complying with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Environmental Impact Assessment
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Work
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Construction Work Safety Management
Regulations, the Work Safety Permit Regulations,
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, "Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Social Insurance Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and other laws
and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group, the Group continuously improves
its management and sustainable development

capabilities.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(2)

Compliance (CONTINUED)

The requirements for environmental protection
and safe production for renewable energy power
plants such as wind power and photovoltaic
plants, which the Group invests in and operates,
are relatively more demanding. The government
has established supervisory and regulatory
authorities and set up stringent monitoring and
management procedures and implementation
standards. With the accelerated development
in fighting climate change and energy
transformation, regulatory requirements have
become even more stringent, bringing more
challenges to the Group's business development
and placing higher demands on the Group’s
power plant development, construction and
operation capabilities.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws
and regulations in its business, operation and
employment, by dynamically monitoring changes
for timely adjustments and formulation of
adaptive strategies. The Group has established a
comprehensive safety and quality management
system and a multi-level safety and quality
management structure with hierarchical
control. The life-cycle management of power
plants focuses on the protection of the
ecological environment, with a commitment
to environmental protection in the process
of development. The Group continuously
improves design standards, and actively adopts
new technologies, techniques and equipment
to optimize the safety and power generation
efficiency of power plants while reducing
the potential impact on the environment.
Meanwhile, the Group puts emphasis on
protecting the legal rights and interests of its
employees by securing the employees’ rights and
interests such as equal opportunity employment,
career development and occupational health.
It also adheres to the core value of people-
orientation and promotes the common
development of the Group and its employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(2)

(3)

Compliance (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, the Group has complied
with the relevant standards, laws and regulations
of our business, management and labour

standards.

Community Responsibilities

While focusing on the development of
clean energy business, the Group paid close
attention to the local livelihood and economic
development and actively fulfilled its social
responsibilities to give back to the society.
During the Year, the Group actively assumed
the social responsibility in supporting the
pandemic prevention and contain work all
over the country. Our subsidiaries from all
over the country timely allocated resources
and collected pandemic prevention supplies to
provide local monetary support and pandemic
prevention supplies. The Group actively carries
out poverty alleviation work in areas where
its power plant investments have been made,
through a combination of measures such as
poverty alleviation projects, poverty alleviation
through consumption, pairing and donations
to assist local poverty reduction and economic
development. The Group at the same time relied
on projects to carry out localized talent training
and personnel recruitment, facilitating local

employment.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(3)

(4)

Community Responsibilities (CONTINUED)

The Group has been keen on school-
enterprise cooperation. We facilitate the
educational advancement of renewable energy
in China while promoting the development
in local economy, culture, employment and
environment. The Group has entered into a
donation agreement with the North China
Electric Power University Education Foundation
and set up a scholarship. The Group has
donated an accumulated total of approximately
RMB3 million for 13 consecutive years,
subsidizing an accumulative number of 1,238
outstanding students with excellent conduct
and rewarding 57 outstanding teachers. A
modern apprenticeship system with cooperative
development class was set up jointly with
Ulangab Vocational College and Hunan
Polytechnic of Water Resources and Electric
Power, with an aim to develop talents in local
regions, provide employment channel and attract
outstanding talents. A total of 307 graduates
have been trained.

For details of the Group’'s ecological and
environmental protection, compliance and social
responsibilities, please refer to the independent
report “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report 2020” published by the Group.

Customers and Suppliers Relationship

During the Year, the Group maintained a good
relationship between customers and suppliers
with no major dispute.

During the Year, the Group’s top five customers
accounted for 59% of the Group’s total revenue,
including 13.2% from State Grid Anhui Electric
Power Co., Ltd., the largest customer.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(4) Customers and Suppliers Relationship
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group’s top five suppliers
accounted for 86% of the Group’s total
procurement, including 23% from the largest
supplier, Envision Energy Co., Ltd., which
supplied wind turbine equipment for wind power
projects invested by the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group always upholds its core values of “people-
orientation, value creation, working for a better
future and striving for excellence”. It protects the
legal rights of its employees, pays attention to their
career development, cares for their health and
safety, and puts efforts in achieving the common
development of the employees as well as the
Group. The Group continuously optimizes its human
resources management system based on the principle
of coordinated strategy, organization, talents and
incentives. The Group respects the value of talents,
seeks to develop their potentials and optimizes the
incentive mechanism, fostering a human resources
management system that is able to support the
strategic implementation and organizational
development of the Group.

During the Year, the Group continued to uplift the
intelligent operation and centralized management,
deepen regional management and optimize the
organizational structure and personnel allocation in
order to improve the employees’ productivity. The
Group provides a broad development platform for
its employees and set up a system of five major job
functions to build a career development path, while
constantly refining the remuneration and recruitment
qualifications system. The Group also stresses on
talent nurturing and refines the training system in
order to accelerate the establishment of talent pipeline
and training of talent reserves. The establishment of
the online training system was completed during the
Year, providing all employees through online cloud
classroom with technical and management courses
including professional technology, human resources,
financial management, office informatization,
corporate culture, anti-fraud propaganda, etc., for
employees to learn independently; In 2020, through
online, offline, internal and external training channels,
the Group provided training courses with a duration
of more than 1,000 hours to fully meet the learning
needs of employees of different categories and levels.
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V.

HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

The Group values the health and safety of its
employees, taking epidemic prevention and control
as part of its normal operations and accumulating
pandemic prevention supplies. In 2020, the investment
in epidemic prevention and control reached RMB2.24
million. Moreover, the Group supports its employees
through a variety of caring measures including staff
physical examinations, staff supplemental medical
insurance, festival benefits, employee support and

activities, establishing a good corporate culture.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,619 full-
time employees (31 December 2019: 1,448), 146
of whom worked at the Group’s headquarters, 299
in project development and management, 1,018 in
O&M, 71 in Energy loT technological development

and 85 in businesses such as design and leasing.

For details of the Group’s human resources, please
refer to the independent report “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2020" published by the
Group.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held cash and
bank balances of approximately RMB2,608,069,000
(31 December 2019: RMB1,605,128,000). The
net assets of the Group were RMB6,494,502,000
(31 December 2019: RMB5,969,201,000). The
balance of bank and other borrowings of the
Group was RMB7,754,497,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB7,841,675,000). The liability-to-asset ratio was
66.74% (31 December 2019: 69.99%).
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(CONTINUED)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the buildings and equipment
of the Group were pledged to secure borrowings
balance of RMB6,557,058,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB5,251,063,000).

Contingent Liability

With effective from 27 June 2019, the subsidiaries of
the Group provided joint liability guarantees for the
debts of Daoxian Century Concord Wind Power Co.,
Ltd. *(BHIH AR NEEFMRAF) ("Daoxian Century
Concord”) and Daoxian Jingtang Century Concord
wind Power Co., Ltd.*CGESHEHERNEEERA
7)) (“Daoxian Jingtang”) under the lease contracts.
As at 31 December 2020, the total principal debt's
balances of Daoxian Century Concord and Daoxian
Jingtang which the Group provided joint liability
guarantees were RMB436,120,000.

Save as mentioned above, there was no material
contingent liability of the Group as at 31 December
2020.

Commitments

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had capital
expenditure contracted for but not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements
is RMB2,441,692,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,471,579,000).
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(CONTINUED)

Convertible Loan

On 13 December 2018 (as amended and restated
on 16 January 2019), the Company entered into
the agreement (a) for the convertible loan of
US$30,000,000 with Goldman Sachs (the "GS
Convertible Loan”) which consists of three tranches:
(i) Tranche | being US$12,000,000; (ii) Tranche
Il being US$9,000,000; and (iii) Tranche Il being
US$9,000,000; and (b) to grant to Goldman Sachs
the option and the right to advance the additional
loan of up to an aggregate principal amount
of US$20,000,000 to the Company (the "GS
Additional Loan”) which consists of three tranches:
(a) Tranche | being US$8,000,000; and (b) Tranche
Il being US$6,000,000; and (c) Tranche Ill being
US$6,000,000. Goldman Sachs and other lenders
of the GS Convertible Loan and the GS Additional
Loan have the right to convert all or any part of the
outstanding principal amount of their respective
participation in the GS Convertible Loan and the GS
Additional Loan into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of (i) HK$0.5 per Share (for
Tranche 1); (ii) HK$0.55 per Share (for Tranche Il);
and (iii) HK$0.6 per Share (for Tranche IlI) (subject
to the adjustments as set out in the agreement for
the GS Convertible Loan (the “GS Convertible Loan
Agreement”)). The closing price per Share is HK$0.305
on the date of the GS Convertible Loan Agreement.
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(CONTINUED)

Convertible Loan (CONTINUED)

The GS Convertible Loan and the GS Additional
Loan are convertible into approximately 720,650,000
Shares (with nominal value of HK$7,206,500).
The net proceeds from the GS Convertible Loan
and the GS Additional Loan, after deducting the
commissions and other estimated expenses payable,
will amount to approximately US$29,650,000 and
US$19,770,000 respectively. As disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 25 February 2019, the
net proceeds of approximately US$29,650,000 of the
GS Convertible Loan are expected to be used: (i) as to
approximately US$6 million as working capital for the
daily operations of overseas offices during February
2019 to February 2020; (ii) as to approximately
US$7.9 million for repaying interest of US$ bonds
in or around July 2019; and (iii) as to approximately
US$15.75 million for funding the capital investment
for construction of wind power plant in the PRC
during February 2019 to June 2019. The net proceeds
of approximately US$19,770,000 of the GS Additional
Loan are expected to be used: (i) as to approximately
US$15 million for funding the capital investment for
construction of solar power energy projects in the
United States during June 2019 to March 2020; and
(i) as to approximately US$4.77 million for funding
the capital investment for construction of wind
power plant in the PRC during June 2019 to March
2020. The net price to the Company for each Share
upon conversion of the GS Convertible Loan and the
GS Additional Loan is approximately HK$0.536 and
approximately HK$0.535 respectively.

During the reporting period, as to approximately
US $1 million un-utilised net proceeds of the GS
Convertible Loan brought forward from 2019 were
used as working capital for the daily operations of
overseas offices during January to February 2020.

During the reporting period, the option and right of
Goldman Sachs in the GS Additional Loan has not
been exercised which was expired on 2 April 2020.
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VI. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

N
4
v

The Group's business development is affected by risk
factors including policies, market, climate, power
curtailment, capital, exchange rates and COVID-19

epidemic.

The project development and construction as well
as the revenue and profit of wind power and PV
power generation industries are greatly affected
by policy changes. In the era of grid parity, the
level of industrial concentration and scale is further
promoted, resulting in the more fierce competition
between enterprises in terms of controlling resources,
striving for grid-connected conditions and supply
chain management. The curtailment of wind power
and PV power to varying extents in certain regions,
as well as the safety risks created by climate change
and extreme weather conditions on power plant
production and personnel will adversely affect the
power generation, revenue and profit of power plants.
The investment in wind power and PV power plants
has a relatively high demand for borrowings. The cost
and amount of capital will have a direct impact on
the Group's operations. The distribution of renewable
energy subsidies will also affect the cash flow of the
Group. The Group also engages in foreign investment
and issues dollar bonds. Therefore, fluctuations in
Renminbi exchange rate will result in foreign exchange
losses or gains from the Group's operations in foreign
currencies. Besides, the unstable COVID-19 epidemic
situation poses a significant amount of uncertainties
to the economic development and the normal
corporate operation, which may lead to fluctuation in
power demand and higher difficulty in supply chain
management, and adversely affect the construction
and operation of the Group’'s power plants, power

generation and revenue.
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RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

In response to the risks mentioned above, the Group
will formulate all sorts of countermeasures to reduce
the risks according to the likelihood of occurrence
of various risks. The Group will closely follow the
direction of policies through strengthened analysis
and prudent judgement and make plans in advance.
The Group will continue to improve its development
capabilities and optimize its deployment of projects
by increasing development efforts in regions with no
power curtailment. The Group will make great efforts
in developing grid parity projects so to enhance asset
management, optimize asset quality and reduce the
reliance on renewable energy subsidies. The Group
will improve the design standards, perform stringent
safety management and control and strive to balance
or reduce the impact of climate on the safety and
efficiency of power plants. The Group will adopts a
number of measures to strengthen the management
of risks related to exchange rate and effectively
implement protective measures against risks associated
with exchange rate. Furthermore, the Group will
take epidemic prevention and control as part of its
normal operations and adjust the prevention and
control strategy according to the development of the
epidemic situation to prevent and reduce the potential
risks on the Group’s business caused by imported
COVID-19 cases and isolated cases occurring in China.
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In 2020, China made a solemn promise to the world
that China will strive to reach the peak of carbon
dioxide emissions before 2030 and achieve carbon
neutrality by 2060. China also clearly proposed at
the Climate Ambition Summit that the total installed
capacity of wind power and solar power in China
will reach more than 1,200 GW by 2030. In view of
this, there will be fundamental changes to the policy
of renewable energy industry in China. Governments
of all administrative levels will expand the planned
scale of renewable energy projects, grid companies
will actively adopt measures to include wind and solar
power on the grid, and the expansion of the market
size will promote technological advancement, reduce
the LCOE of renewable power generation, making
renewable energy a more commercially competitive
form of energy. In our interpretation, the renewable
energy industry will usher in a golden period of rapid
development. At the same time, however, many
companies including big power enterprises, traditional
energy enterprises, sizable enterprises in other
business areas and foreign capital will compete in
the renewable energy field. Unlike in the past, these
enterprises are generally quite sizable and have a
strong manageable capability, thus the competition in
the industry will become more intensive.

After fifteen years of development, the Group has
laid a solid foundation and formed multi-business
synergetic development layout composed of power
plant investment, intelligent O&M and R&D of energy
loT, engineering consultancy and design as well as
financial leasing, accumulating extensive experience in
human resources, financial resources, intangible assets
and industry experience. The Group has sufficient
project reserves, and possesses strong development
capability and professional construction capability in
the industry.
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PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Looking forward to the era of grid parity, the Group
will seize on the industry opportunities and adopt
a proactive development strategy to vigorously
develop grid parity projects, PV projects and base
projects, expedite the construction and production of
projects, and adopts a “build & transfer” strategy to
actively dispose existing projects, replace renewable
energy subsidized projects with grid parity projects
and replace economically unfavourable projects
with projects of low LCOE, in order to improve the
Group’s overall asset quality and achieve sustainable
and stable development of the Group. Meanwhile,
the service businesses will be vigorously developed,
investment in R&D and marketing expansion will be
increased and technological aspects as well as market
competitiveness of design, operation and maintenance
services will be improved.

In 2021, the Group will strive to achieve the following:

i. Increase Project Construction Efforts to
Ensure the Completion of New Projects for
Production as Planned

The Group will seize the favourable opportunities
arising from China’s vigorous development of
the renewable energy industry, and put more
efforts in project constructions to achieve the
addition of over 1 million KW in production
capacity during the year. It will also will
strengthen the capability of the engineering
construction team and the co-ordination of
projects, enhance the control of project nodes,
keep a close eye on equipment supply and
construction resources, pay close attention to
the progress of the connecting systems and
the progress of delivery works, analyse and
implement the boundary conditions for the
commencement of project constructions, so as
to ensure the progress of project construction
and guarantee the achievement of the annual
production target.
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Aggressively Developing the Service Business
to Expand the Scale of Service Business

The Group will aggressively develop its service
businesses. Our entities in the service business
segment should improve their capabilities in
exploring external businesses to expand their
business scales, and build influential service
brands in the industry. We will continue to
accelerate the R&D on Energy loT technology and
products, enhance the level of intelligent O&M,
increase its efforts in marketing expansion, and
improve all aspects of professional services and
create intelligent energy management products
on the foundation of the system interaction
between POWER™ new energy intelligent O&M
platform, EAM system and mobile inspection
terminal. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to improve the standard of design and quality
of service, actively develop the financing and
leasing business, and innovate development
strategy in accordance to the development trend
to boost production through financing and
promote the synergetic development of service
businesses including design, financial leasing and
intelligent O&M.

Making Preparation for the Entrance into
Market-Oriented Transactions by Striving to
Lower the LCOE

Continuously lowering the LCOE is a long-term
goal pursued by the Group. The Group will
continue to pursue the strategy of the lowest
LCOE, improve the asset quality and operation
efficiency of power plants and enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group in the era
of competitive bidding and grid parity, such
that we will be well prepared for the full entry
of the renewable energy power generation
into era of market-oriented trading and the
competition with other forms of energy. The
Group will actively carry out technical renovation
and equipment management and improve the
level of intelligent operation and maintenance
and refined management of power plants with
the help of loT technology and POWER®, by
optimizing design, applying new models, new
technologies and new processes, optimizing
procurement strategies and speeding up
construction progress to effectively reduce the
construction costs of new projects.
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PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

iv.

Increasing Efforts in the Development of PV

Projects

Project development has always been the
Group’s strength. Recently, we should focus
on strengthening the development of PV
projects, organising large scale projects and
base projects, and actively developing various
forms of integrated resource development
projects such as fishery photovoltaic, agriculture
photovoltaic and forest photovoltaic power
projects. The Group will strengthen the tracking
and estimation of project benefits, and select
projects with good economic benefits and strong
risk resistance for development early in the

development stage.

Continuously Optimize Asset Quality

The Group will continue to calculate the
investment return of projects dynamically,
“build & transfer”

accelerate the replacement of power stations

implement the strategy and
that rely on renewable energy subsidies and have
a low return on capital. At the same time, the
Group will accelerate the construction of grid
parity projects, strengthen refine management
of power plants and strictly control cost of
capital. We will also improve the efficiency of
grid parity projects through means of technical
innovation, intelligent operation, technical
transformation, equipment maintenance and
innovative financing. Our priorities also include
enhancing asset quality and investment returns
through optimizing asset structure and cash flow

structure.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shunxing, aged 59, joined the Group in 2007. He
has become the Chairman of the Company since June 2009.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree of Electricity Generation
from Tianjin University and a Master degree of Energy
Source Economy Management from the Management
College of Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Liu is an
executive director of China Energy Council. He was formerly
the Vice CEO of China Energy Conservation Investment
Corporation.

Ms. Liu Jianhong, aged 52, joined the Group in 2007. She
has become the Vice Chairperson of the Company since
January 2016. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Ms. Liu holds her Master degree from the
Law School of Renmin University of China and an EMBA
from China Europe International Business School. She
was the Chief Legal Officer of China Energy Conservation
Investment Corporation.

Mr. Gui Kai, aged 62, joined the Group in 2015. He has
become the Chief Executive Officer (“the CEO") of the
Company since August 2020. Mr. Gui holds a Master
Degree of China University of Mining & Technology. He
had served as General Manager of Shenhua Trading Group
and Shenhua Science and Technology Development Co.,
Limited.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Niu Wenhui, aged 50, joined the Group in 2010. He is
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and has become
an Executive Director of the Company since January 2017.
He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration of
Beihang University. He had served as vice president of
China Ruilian Industrial Group and Chief Financial Officer of

Rainbow Group Shenzhen Branch.

Dr. Shang Li, aged 47, joined the Group in 2012. He has
become an Executive Director of the Company since January
2018. He holds a Ph. D degree in Computer Engineering
from Princeton University, USA. He was an Associate
Professor of the Department of Electrical, Computer and
Energy Engineering in University of Colorado at Boulder and
the Chair Professor in Tongji University. He was formerly the

vice president and Chief Architect of Intel China Research.

Mr. Zhai Feng, aged 54, joined the Group in 2019. He
has become an Executive Director since January 2020. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in law from Fudan University and
a master’s degree in business administration from Peking
University. He was formerly a director and vice president of
Shanghai Shenhua Holdings Co., Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Feng, aged 51, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since February 2019. Mr. Wang
holds a Master’s degree in North China Electric Power
University. Mr. Wang is currently the General Manager of
Planning and Investment Department of Huadian Fuxin
Energy Corporation Limited (“Huadian Fuxin”, a substantial

shareholder of the Company).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, aged 75, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2006. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
from the University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, in the
United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Yap is also an independent non-
executive director of Frontier Services Group Limited, which
is listed on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Brockman
Mining Limited, which is listed on The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Australian Securities Exchange.

Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang, aged 74, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since January
2018. He holds a doctorate degree from the University of
Nebraska-Lincoln. He was the global vice president of Intel
and founded Intel Labs China, ILC as its first dean.

Ms. Huang Jian, aged 52, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since December
2012. Ms. Huang holds a Master degree from the Central
University of Finance and Economics of the PRC. She is also
a certified public accountant in the PRC. Ms. Huang is the

partner of ShineWing Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Zhang Zhong, aged 51, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since June 2018.
Mr. Zhang received a Master of Laws degree from Renmin
University of China and is currently a partner of Zhong Lun
Law Firm.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Xigang, aged 41, joined the Group in 2009. He
is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a Master
degree from Peking University. He has worked for Aviation

Industry Corporation of China.

Mr. Lu Yichuan, aged 42, joined the Group in 2019. He
is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a Ph.D
from the University of Dortmund. Mr. Lu has worked for

Longyuan Power Group and the Energy Foundation.

Mr. Wang Meihai, aged 48, joined the Group in 2019. He
is the Vice president of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
degree of Harbin University of Science and Technology. Mr.

Wang has worked for Datang Corporation.

Mr. Zhou Xiaole, aged 40, joined the Group in 2007. He
is the Vice president of the Company. He holds a Master
degree of Marietta College of United States of America. Mr.
Zhou has worked for Yili Group.

Mr. Gui Bo, aged 43, joined the Group in 2018. He is the
Vice President of the Company. He holds a Master Degree
of University of Science and Technology Beijing. Mr. Gui

has worked for China Longyuan Power Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Shang Xuelian, aged 57, joined the Group in 2008.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Shandong University. Mr. Shang has
worked for Shandong Lubei Enterprise Group Limited.

Ms. Shang Jia, aged 58, joined the Group in 2011. She is
the Vice President of the Company. She holds a Bachelor
Degree in Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
Ms. Shang has worked for State Electricity Regulatory
Commission.
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, BUSINESS REVIEW AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 1 to the financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 10 to 54 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.
An analysis of the Group’s income and contribution to
operating profit for the Year is set out in Note 6 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 103. The
interim and final dividends for the Year are set out in Note
16 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year
are set out on pages 107 and 294 and in Note 52 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company are set out in
Note 17 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 41 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of
111,690,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company on the
Stock Exchange. All the repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled by the Company during the Year. Details of the
share repurchases during the Year are as follows:

AAFBE HEREE LHES

al

FA AR RBEXMER-DRLASH
111,690,000 R F & 0.01 BT 2 - FTB
BRRNDEERFAWANAREHE - FAME
B 2 FFIBT ¢

Purchase price per share

EREBEE
Number of
share
repurchased Aggregate
Month and cancelled Highest Lowest amount
BER
B % HEHEROEE BeE REE HwEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T BT
January 2020 40,060,000 0.375 0.350 14,707,000
—ET_THF—A
February 2020 8,810,000 0.355 0.340 3,052,000
—ETF_A
April 2020 29,910,000 0.315 0.285 8,907,000
—ZE_TFMA
May 2020 10,580,000 0.315 0.300 3,232,000
—ET-ZFTRA
June 2020 19,680,000 0.325 0.295 6,073,000
—ETFEXA
July 2020 2,650,000 0.325 0.320 853,450
—E-TFL+A
Total
K5t 111,690,000 36,824,000

The repurchase of the Company’s shares by the Directors
during the Year was made pursuant to the mandate granted
by shareholders at the last annual general meeting of the
Company held on 1 June 2020, with a view to benefiting
shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value
per share and earnings per share of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2020 are set out on Note 52 to the financial

statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and of the assets, liabilities and
equities of the Group for the last five financial years is set

out on page 300.
DIVIDEND

The board of directors recommends to declare a final
dividend of HK$0.03 per ordinary share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$0.025), subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Based on the number
of issued ordinary shares as of the date of approving this
consolidated financial information, the proposed final
dividend amounted to HK$251,006,000. This consolidated
financial information does not reflect this amount as
dividend payable as at 31 December 2020. It is expected
that the final dividend will be paid out before the end of
June 2021. Further announcement will be made by the

Company for the date of closure of register of members.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board has adopted a Scheme on 15 June 2015, which
is revised on 29 June 2017, and issued 113,000,000 shares
on 15 November 2019 pursuant to the Scheme. The Scheme
does not constitute a share option scheme for the purpose
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Reference is made to the
announcement dated 15 June 2015, 29 June 2017, 2 April
2019 and circular dated 3 June 2019. Capitalised terms
therein should contain the same meanings unless otherwise
specified. The principal terms of the Scheme are outlined
below.

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to (i) recognize the
contributions of the Employees; (ii) provide additional
incentives in order to retain the Employees to continue to
work for the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption Date.

Administration

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Board (or a committee from time to time authorized by the
Board to manage the Scheme) and the Trustee in accordance
with the rules of the Scheme and the Trust Deed. The Board
may, from time to time, at its sole discretion determine the
number of Awarded Shares to be awarded to the Selected
Employees. The Board is entitled to impose any vesting
conditions, as it deems appropriate in its absolute discretion
with respect to the entitlement of the Selected Employees
to the Awarded Shares. Any grant of the Awarded Shares
to the connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company must be approved by the independent
non-executive Directors (other than the independent non-
executive Director who is the Selected Employee). The Board
shall not instruct the Trustee to deal in any shares in the
market during the period when any Director is in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company
or when the dealings in the Company’s securities by Directors
are prohibited under any code or requirement of the Listing
Rules or any applicable laws.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further Awarded which will
result in the nominal value of Shares awarded by the Board
under the Scheme exceeding five (5) per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date (the
“Scheme Limit").

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded
to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not exceed
one (1) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date (the “Individual Limit").

Each of the Scheme Limit and the Individual Limit shall
be refreshed automatically on each anniversary date of
the Adoption Date during the duration of the Scheme as
stipulated under the above stated in the Duration, such
that (I) the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall not exceed five
(5) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as
at each anniversary date of the Adoption Date: and (ii) the
Individual Limit so refreshed shall not exceed one (1) per
cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at each

anniversary date of the Adoption Date.
Operation of the Scheme

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall (i) issued as new Shares by the
Company to the Trustee held on trust for the Selected
Person or (ii) purchased by the Trustee on the market, in
either case out of cash paid by the Company by way of
settlement to the Trustee pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme. The Company shall pay the Trustee sufficient funds
for any purchase including the cost of the Awarded Shares

and the relevant expenses.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Scheme (Continued)

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall inform the Trustee the names
of the Selected Employees, the number of shares awarded
to them, the vesting date, the vesting conditions (if any)
and other relevant information under the Scheme and
the Trust Deed. Within 20 business days (on which the
trading of Shares has not been suspended) after the Trustee
receives the cash for the acquirement of new Shares or
the purchase of the Awarded Shares, the Trustee shall
apply the same towards the purchase of the Awarded
Shares at the prevailing market price at its discretion. The
Awarded Shares so purchased will be kept by the Trustee
until the relevant vesting conditions are met and until then
the Awarded Shares will be transferred to the Selected

Employees accordingly.
Vesting and Lapse

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme and the
fulfillment of all vesting conditions, the relevant Awarded
Shares and Related Income held by the Trustee on behalf
of any Selected Employee shall vest in such Selected
Employee on the Vesting Date and the Trustee shall cause
the Awarded Shares and Related Income to be transferred
to such Selected Employee. If the Selected Employee fails
to deliver the signed and completed transfer documents to
the Trustee within the stipulated period, unless the Board
determines otherwise, the Awarded Shares and the Related
Income shall not vest and shall revert to the Trustee as the
Returned Shares.

In the event that prior to the Vesting Date the Selected
Employee ceases to be an Employee, any unvested Awarded
Shares and Related Income that the Selected Employee
is entitled to shall lapse accordingly, unless the Board
determines otherwise.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Vesting and Lapse (Continued)

In the event that a Selected Employee dies before any
Award to him as vested, unless the Board determines
otherwise, the Award to him shall lapse immediately and
the Awarded Shares to which the Award relate and the
Related Income shall revert to the Trustee as Returned
Shares. If Awarded Shares have vested before the death
of the Selected Employee but have not been transferred
by the Trustee to him, such vested Awarded Shares and
Related Income shall be held by the Trustee for the personal
representative(s) of such Selected Employee and the Trustee
shall transfer to such personal representative(s) such
Awarded Shares and Related Income pursuant to the terms
of the Scheme and the Trust Deed.

Where any Awarded Share does not vest in accordance with
the relevant provision herein and becomes Returned Share,
the Board may grant Award(s) of such Returned Shares
to other Selected Employees subject to such conditions or
limitations as the Board may decide.

Notwithstanding any other provisions provided in the Share
Award Scheme, if there occurs an event of change of
control of the Company, whether by way of offer, merger,
scheme of arrangement or otherwise, unless the Board
determines otherwise, all the unvested Awarded Shares
shall immediately vest on the date when such change of
control event becomes or is declared unconditional and
such date shall be deemed to be the Vesting Date.

Rights

The Selected Employees shall not have any interest or rights
(including the right to vote or receive dividends) in any
Awarded Shares or in the Related Income unless and until
the Trustee has vested the ownership of such Awarded
Shares in the Selected Employees.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any Shares held under the Trust.

IR 10 SR a8 (&)

BERRN(E)

ERTEEREERBEMRB2ASE K
HEZFSRHERTE > BRIRERTHRES
SLEIRRY - ELEREN A RE 2 BE R A 0 AN AR RE IR
BRERERERNER TEFEA - FREBK
MEEEREAUMNERRE  BEFEAHEK
1 2@F - BIE 578 &Y 22 B A {0 70 A0 B M 2
HHREXFAREECRENEENEARE
BEFRARIZRZAT BIME RO R -
#5 S B AL D MAERR U et B P TRA B EIEA -

EAAI AR 2 7 R 16 357 I8 ) B2 ) A 10 S 1B AR
BB EFSUABRFRERNOETH
B ERE  UREFTGZRTER TIHREX
FR il

@B D B A 8 A B A E AR SR
EoHEMARBEEENELH(FHAR
K B BRI EMITNET)  RIFE
EFERHARE IBARERE 2 ZBEN
ARZERHREHEZENRARE S RE
GRIF 2 BEISZ B T AR B - ek B BB AR
REEEH -

2

i

NSNS

.

R

EEREB TSI B ) S AE B Y e
A TR SRR (B RER R RS S
A - BEMEFEARA R RE ) P A 1
FETETES -

EEATERER THANTRABROITER

e

65



2020 £ %
HEHEREEERAA

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Termination

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the 10th
anniversary date of the Adoption Date or such date of early
termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of the

Selected Employees.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares that can be
awarded under the Scheme is 447,311,748. On 5 April
2016, 61,700,000 Shares have been awarded to the
Selected Employees pursuant to the Scheme. On 4 April
2019, 33,000,000 Shares have been awarded to the
Selected Employees pursuant to the Scheme. on 20 June
2019, an aggregate of 113,000,000 New Awarded Shares
have been granted to 32 Selected Persons by way of
allotment and issue of the New Awarded Shares pursuant
to the Specific Mandate, out of which (a) 55,600,000
Connected New Awarded Shares have been granted to 12
Connected Grantees and (b) 57,400,000 Non-connected
New Awarded Shares have been granted to 20 Non-
connected Grantees by way of allotment and issue of new
Shares. Details of the movements in the Scheme is set out
in Note 42 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this

report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shunxing

Ms. Liu Jianhong

Mr. Yu Weizhou (resigned on 18 August 2020)
Mr. Gui Kai

Mr. Niu Wenhui

Dr. Shang Li (resigned on 19 March 2021)

Mr. Zhai Feng (appointed on 16 January 2020)

66

IR 10 SR a8 (&)

#&1E

R RBASARNKABBMETBFZH
FEEFERERFRIEZBETTERETER
BZHRARN) 2 BRHARTERE)KL -

BEZTEABTERZEDROEZ A
447,311,7480% - R2016%F4A5H ° &KX A
RIERIEZ T ElME E & 8%t 61,700,000
REEERNRE 19 - R2019F 4 A48 ARQAEIR
YR Z AT 81738 T 8 8 % H 33,000,000 A% 22 E)
BE1n o R2019F 6 A20H » AR B RIEE
RIS B ITHRERG 2 AR [32%
#EE AL A £ H 113,000,000 % 51 22 B A%
5 » Erh(a) 55,600,000 f% BE 8T BN IR D iE
BEERBEITHRMD 2 AR T 12 B ER
A ¢+ K (b) 57,400,000 A% 3F 385 5 22 B A% ()
FRCE RBITHRGD 27K T 205 36
HARA o ZETEIE B BRI NP B mE
BizE42 o

E=

RAFEEAMBEARSAHZESER

2 g £ o A

B4+

SN LA (20204 8 B 18 BHEHT)
YT E

B E

BB (R 202163 A 19 BEHT)
BiRSE(R2020F1 B16 BEZRT)



2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Feng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry
Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang

Ms. Huang Jian

Mr. Zhang Zhong

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Gui Kai, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, Ms. Huang Jian and
Mr. Zhang Zhong shall retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forth coming annual

general meeting.

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for as specific
term and will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and the Company considered that they are
independent.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and
the senior management of the Group are set out on pages
55 to 58 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS'’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which requires the Company to give a period of
notice of more than one year, or to pay compensation or
make other payments equivalent to more than one year’s

emolument.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates had
an interest in a business, apart from the businesses of
the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of each director and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the”Model
Code"”) under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), or known to
the Company, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

()

Long positions in the shares of the Company (the

“Shares”):

Name of the Directors

BEsps

Liu Shunxing
2B

Liu Jianhong
Blzar

Gui Kai

Niu Wenhui
HE

Shang Li

o e
=l lval

Yap Fat Suan, Henry
EEE

Jesse Zhixi Fang
2

Huang Jian

=

HME

Zhang Zhong
®EB

Personal

EPN

27,000,000"

23,710,000?

11,600,000

12,000,000

8,000,000

2,000,000

1,800,000

1,800,000

1,800,000

Approximate percentage of the total issued share capital

EERFEITRAERA D A SHIEMB
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HERTRIABH2BNE D (%)

Family

Corporate Total

AF At

1,845,484,242'

1,872,484,242

150,000,000

173,710,000

- 11,600,000

— 12,000,000

— 8,000,000

— 2,000,000

— 1,800,000

— 1,800,000

— 1,800,000

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital
RERTRAAH
ZBAEAL

(%)

22.38

2.08

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

()

70

Long

Notes:

1.

positions in the Shares: (CONTINUED)

1,147,877,155 shares are held by China Wind Power
Investment Limited (“CWPI") and 697,607,087
shares are held by Splendor Power Limited. CWPI is
wholly-owned by Permanent Growth Limited. Mr. Liu
Shunxing held as to 46.77% of the issued shares of
Permanent Growth Limited and held as to 99% of
the issued shares of Splendor Power Limited. Mr. Liu

Shunxing beneficially holds 27,000,000 Shares.

150,000,000 shares are held by a discretionary
trust for which Ms. Liu Jianhong is the founder and
settlor and can influence how the trustee exercises
its discretion. Ms. Liu Jianhong beneficially holds

23,710,000 Shares.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

(ii) Long positions in the underlying Shares:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
none of the directors and chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying shares and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the Year
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated
corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors (including their respective spouse and children
under the age of 18) to acquire benefits by the means
of the acquisition of the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any of its associated

corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, save as disclosed under the
section
or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation”
above, the Company had been notified of the following

substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the

“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/

FERR
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BITRAR 5% A E 2 HERR) ©

Company’s issued share capital under Section 336 of the

SFO.
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(i)
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Long positions in the Shares:

Name of shareholder

RERERE

Cwel

Huadian Fuxin
SRR

Splendor Power Limited?

Long positions in the underlying Shares:

Name of shareholder

BRER

Goldman Sachs®

IFC*

() REROZHR:
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BA BRAR B S M &R R 2D -« 48
MIRD RESPHRA 2 ER R SKE ] 8
RAREMNE T EEZRFR
m(ARIBEBEF RBEROIEIB6HKERATE

Approximate percentage

Number of the
Shares held

FRROHE

1,147,877,155

880,000,000

697,607,087

(i) REBERGDZEFR :

of the total issued
share capital
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(%)

13.72

10.52

8.34
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. 1,147,877,155 shares are held by CWPI, which is wholly
owned by Permanent Growth Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing held
as to 46.77% of the issued shares of Permanent Growth
Limited.

2. The shares are held by Splendor Power Limited. Mr. Liu
Shunxing held as to 99% of the issued shares of Splendor
Power Limited.

3. On 13 December 2018, the Company entered into the
convertible loan agreement (the “Convertible Loan
Agreement”) with Goldman Sachs, pursuant to which
Goldman Sachs agreed to lend and the Company agreed to
borrow the convertible loan (the “Convertible Loan”) in a
principal amount of US$30,000,000. Goldman Sachs has the
right to convert all or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of their respective participation in the Convertible
Loan into Shares (the “Conversion Shares”). Assuming a
conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) of (i) HK$0.5 per
Share (for tranche 1); (i) HK$0.55 per Share (for tranche
I); and (iii) HK$0.6 per Share (for tranche Ill) and there
is no adjustment to the Conversion Price pursuant to the
terms of the Convertible Loan Agreement, the aggregate
principal amount of the Convertible Loan of US$30,000,000
is convertible into approximately 432,390,000 Conversion
Shares. Details can be referred to the announcements dated
13 December 2018 and 16 January 2019 and the circular
dated 25 February 2019.

4. IFC held 101,140,000 Shares. On 28 December 2017, the
Company entered into the convertible loan agreement (the
“Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International Finance
Corporation (“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend
and the Company agreed to borrow the convertible loan (the
“Convertible Loan”) in a principal amount HK$233,800,000.
IFC has the right to convert all or any part of the outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Loan into the Shares
(the “Conversion Shares”). Assuming a conversion price (the
“Conversion Price”) of (i) HK$0.5 per Share (for tranche I);
(i) HK$0.55 per Share (for tranche II); and (iii) HK$0.6 per
Share(for tranche Ill) (subject to the adjustments as set out
in the Convertible Loan Agreement), the aggregate principal
amount of the Convertible Loan of HK$233,800,000 is
convertible into approximately 186,960,000 Conversion
Shares (for tranche I); 127,472,727 Conversion Shares (for
tranche 1l) and 117,016,666 Conversion Shares (for tranche
IIl). Details can be referred to the announcement dated 28
December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there
were no other persons who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all losses and liabilities
& etc. which they may incur or sustain by reason about
the execution of their duties, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors. The
Company has also arranged appropriate Directors’ and
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest 5 customers
accounted for 59% of the total sales for the Year, and the
largest customer included there in amounted to 13.2%.

Purchases from the Group's 5 largest suppliers accounted
for 86% of the total purchases for the Year, and the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 23%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’'s share capital, had interests in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy for its employees is set
up and approved by the Remuneration Committee and
the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board, as authorised by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting, having
regarded to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share award scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the share award scheme are set out in the Report of the
Directors on pages 62 to 66 of the annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 76 to
93 of the annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of all related party transactions during the Year
is set out in Note 47 to the financial statements. All the
related party transactions described in this note do not fall
under the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, there was sufficient of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG were appointed as auditors of the Company on 20
November 2020 upon the resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shunxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March, 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate

governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
has reviewed the Group's corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“the
Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon
enquiry by the Company, all directors of the Company
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy adopted by the Company in December
2019 is intended to be prudent and sustainable, and will
be evaluated from time to time. There is no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
particular period. Subject to compliance with applicable
rules and regulations, the Board may, at its discretion,
determine the declaration of payment of dividend(s) to
its shareholders in any amount, frequency in any financial
year depending on, among other things, the Company’s
operation and financial performance, liquidity condition,
capital requirements, future funding needs, contractual
restrictions, availability of reserves and prevailing economic
climate.
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THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised of eleven
Directors, including six executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent on-executive
Directors. On 16 January 2020, Mr. Zhai Feng was
appointed as executive Director. On 18 August 2020, Mr.
Yu Weizhou resigned as executive Director. Biographical
details of the Directors are stated under the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

The major shareholder of the Company, CWPI holds
1,147,877,155 shares of the Company. CWPI is held
indirectly by, amongst others, two executive Directors

namely, Mr. Liu Shunxing and Ms. Liu Jianhong.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between the

Board members.

For a Director to be considered independent, that director
should not have any direct or indirect material interest in
the Group. In determining the independence of Directors,
the Board follows the requirement set out in the Listing
Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors (“INEDs")) are appointed for a
specific term and will be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the

Company.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and
overseeing, the functioning of the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interest for the Group. The Chairman
is responsible for approving the agenda for each Board
meeting, after taking into account the matters proposed
by other Directors. With the support of the executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chairman also actively
encourages all Directors to be fully engaged in the Board'’s
affairs and make contributions to the Board's functions. The
Board has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to provide

effective communication with shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the business of the
Group, attending to the formulation and implementation
of group policies, and assuming full accountability for the
Group's operations. Acting as the principal manager of the
Group’s business, the CEO develops a strategic operating
plan that reflects the long-term objectives and priorities
established by the Board, and is directly responsible for
maintaining the operational performance of the Group.
Working with the senior management and the Board, the
CEO ensures that the funding requirements of the business
are met and closely monitors the operating and financial
results against the plans and budgets. He also takes
remedial actions when necessary and advises the Board of
any significant developments and issues of the Group.

Ongoing dialogues are maintained with all Directors to keep

them fully informed of all major business developments and
issues.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly, and at least 4 times a year.
Between meetings, senior management of the Group
provides to Directors the information on the activities and
developments in the business of the Group on a timely basis
and when required, additional Board meetings are held. In
addition, Directors have full access to the information of the
Group and the independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. During the year ended
31 December 2020, a total of 30 board meetings and 2
general meetings (“2020 AGM” and “2020 SGM") were
held and the attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of directors

EEpnA
Chairman Liu Shunxing
E3i 2211 22
Chairperson Liu Jianhong
EES= ElfELSE
CEO Yu Weizhou'
ITHAER REEM

Gui Kai®
Executive Directors Niu Wenhui
BITES 4-308E

Shang Li

\D/g

Zhai Feng’

By
Non-executive Director Wang Feng
FHITES Tig
Independent Non-Executive Directors Jesse Zhixi Fang
BYFHTES 772 B

Yap Fat Suan, Henry

329

Huang Jian

=

Zhang Zhong
iR A
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Number of meetings attended in
the year ended 31 December 2020/
Number of meetings eligible to attend
BZE2020512A83181

FEHEZEEEE

EEREFEZERHE
Board 2020 2020
meetings SGM* AGM*®
2020 FRR 2020 FR R
EEgeR HRlkE* BEAE®
30/30 171 171
30/30 171 11
18/18 171 171
30/30 171 171
30/30 171 171
30/30 171 171
29/29 11 11
30/30 171 171
30/30 171 171
30/30 171 171
30/30 11 171
30/30 iVl 11
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Notes:

! Mr. Yu Weizhou resigned as an executive Director and the

CEO of the Company on 18 August 2020.

? Mr. Gui Kai was appointed as CEO on 18 August 2020.

Mr. Zhai Feng was appointed as an executive Director on 16
January 2020.

¢ 2020 SGM was held on 13 May 2020.

3 2020 AGM was held on 1 June 2020.

Professional training for directors

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the Group’s
businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. The Group also provides
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all existing
Directors have received relevant trainings by reading
relevant materials on the topics relating to corporate
governance and regulations and have provided their
training records.

BOARD COMMITTEES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Besides, the Company has set up four
committees including the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee ("ESG
Committee”). Each committee has its specific terms of
reference with reference to the Code:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhang
Zhong with Mr. Liu Shunxing, Ms. Liu Jianhong, Mr.
Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang being the
members. The Remuneration Committee meets for the
determination of the remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management of the Group. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters such as making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior

management.

Under its term of reference, the Remuneration Committee
assists the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest caliber and
experience needed to shape and execute strategies across
the Group’s operations. The Committee also assists the
Group in the administration of the fair and transparent
procedure for setting policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. The
written terms of reference are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held
4 meetings with all members present. The Committee has
reviewed the remuneration packages for Directors and

senior management of the Group.

Remuneration of senior management other than directors
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

ExzrEE(H)
FHEES

¥FMZESRsUKEEK - HFEE SR
BEEEEERE  RERBEELE - B2
ALt EERAELERDZREL - HFWME
BERTERIEBETETRASEREEE
B2HMEE - 1IN FTHEREEKIES
BOTEH UBRRFHEREE O
BeBREREEREMEEABZHMA
BIRhER -

A
&5
=
S

REEBESE FHEZEEeHHESSE
PREB AR - BIR |~ (RE EEE&RA A REM
BEBZAT  BAKEETEKEEHE
HITHRE -ZESTBBAKEEEAFM
BEREZRERF AUNEESTHRAEES
BEBEABZHFMEK E0BEHESH
AN ) Ko Bt S P s o

RAFER  FMEESRITTA4REE &
BREHALF ZEECRIESZEAKE
EERERAB ZHINTE

SHREEEB(EEHRINREE2020F12 A
31 BIEFEZFHEBOT -

Number of Executive

Total Remuneration Bands AR zEEE THAEHE
RMB1,400,000 to RMB 2,900,000  AR¥ 1,400,000 7t AR# 2,900,000 7T 8

81



2020 £ %
HEHEREEERAA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERARSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members,
namely Mr. Liu Shunxing (Chairman), Ms. Liu Jianhong, Mr.
Zhang Zhong, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Ms. Huang Jian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been determined with reference to the Code and are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) to review the structure, size and diversity (including

without limitation, gender , age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’'s corporate

strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. In identifying suitable individuals,
the Nomination Committee shall consider individuals
on merit and against the objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board,

(c) to assess the independence of INEDs with reference to

the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules;
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Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

(d)

to review the Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive, taking into the
Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future; and

the chairman or another member of the committee
shall attend the Company’s annual general meetings
and be prepared to respond to questions raised
by shareholders on the committee’s activities and
responsibilities.

The Nomination Committee has been provided with

sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to

independent professional advice according to the Diversity

Policy and its terms of reference, if considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

The nomination policy stipulated the key nomination criteria

and procedures for identifying and nominating suitably

qualified candidates to join the Board. The selection criteria

specified in the nomination policy include:

1.  Selection Criteria

84

in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate, the Nomination Committee will
consider the factors (as reference), including
reputation, integrity, accomplishment and
relevant experience in relation to the principal
businesses of the Company from time to time,
commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest, diversity in all its aspects,
age (18
cultural and educational

including but not limited to gender,
years or above),
background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. These
factors are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate;

retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by
the Board to stand for re-election at a general
meeting. For those who have served as INEDs
for a period of nine consecutive years standing
for re-election, the Nomination Committee will
consider the independence of such Director for
nomination by the Board to stand for election
at a general meeting and state the reason in the
circular to the Shareholders for the re-election;

REZEE(#)

%%ﬁ“%*

BRI MR EENEERHIR

BARMAEESNBARELBRERER -
RARRMAFIANIRESRERRE

1. FHEEE

REIEIRBRBRARTHER - 17
LEEERERNEZ(HERZE)
BEEE - HfE KR RERAR
TRZEEZXKBRAMNES - 71F
ARMRAEEN Sz &% - &5 @
WZENE - BREETRAMER - F
(18 A L) « SUEM#HBE B
=Bk BELR - KiE - AE
MRBHEE - ZFEREHRSZE -

i%%éﬂgﬁﬁﬁ&m&ok%
ZEENRABEERAENBRS
FEfRIAL

RIESEERBEESSRENK

BARG FERET - BROEEIF

BB IRTEENERETE

EME  REZECTERLES

B WEEEZERREARE

RZBE  WHRBBRREZBHPI
EEBRMIEA



2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERARSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

Nomination Procedures

the secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
call a meeting of the Nomination Committee,
and invite nominations of candidate(s) from
Board members if any, for consideration by the
Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidate(s) who are not nominated by Board
members;

for filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidate(s) to stand for election at
a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

2.

Nomination Procedures (CONTINUED)

Shareholder(s) (i) represent not less than 5% of
the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) are no less than
100 shareholders of the Company, can serve a
notice to the company secretary of its intention
to propose a resolution to elect a certain person
as Director. When appropriate, the Company
shall convene a general meeting to consider
the resolution and a circular containing the
particulars of the candidate(s) so proposed
will be sent to all Shareholders for information
before the general meeting.

In respect of the Diversity Policy (as defined below), the

Board is cognisant of the benefits of diversity and the

Nomination Committee monitors implementation of this

policy as part of the process of selecting and nominating

candidates for appointment to the Board. Candidates

are considered against the broad and diverse range of

aspects specified in the nomination policy, which among

other aspects also include gender, ethnicity and cultural

background.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
board appointments are based on merit and contribution,
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee reviews the Diversity
Policy on a regular basis and discusses any revisions that
may be required, and recommends any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

Having reviewed the Diversity Policy, the nomination policy
and the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee is
satisfied that the requirements set out in the Diversity Policy
had been met.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and the other members of the
Committee are Mr. Zhang Zhong and Ms. Huang lJian.
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry is a chartered accountant in
England and Wales and is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the Code and are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under its terms
of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors, to review the Group's interim and annual financial
statements, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control system,
and to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies.

The Audit Committee has held 7 meetings during the year
with all members present.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.
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ESG COMMITTEE

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

(ESG Committee) was founded on 8 December 2020 by the

Board. The ESG Committee comprises three Directors and

is chaired by Ms. Liu Jianhong. The other members of the

Committee are Mr. Gui Kai and Ms. Huang Jian.

The duties of the ESG Committee shall include:

(@) To give recommendations about the Group’s ESG
strategies and identify significant ESG risks and
opportunities.

(b) To approve and review ESG-related policies.

() To monitor the effectiveness of ESG management.

(d) To review the ESG report.
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is as
follows:
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ZEERIFZEURTS 2 B ARSI

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
2020 20194
Nature of the services PR MHE 12A31H 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRB¥FT AREF T
Audit services ZH IR 3,200 3,510
3,200 3,510

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS EREERAIDERE
The Company has formulated risk management and internal ARBIEKTREEREERE BEEB B

control policies covering the management of targets,
management of values and management of beliefs, and has
established a set of risk management and internal control
procedures encompassing the Company’s organisational,
institutional, procedural systems as well as information
system, in order to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ investment by means of ensuring that risk
control and strategic goals are compatible and within the
manageable scope, ensuring the proper maintenance of
accounting records and reliability of financial reporting, and
ensuring the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

The Company has established a comprehensive set of
risk management and internal control and monitoring
organisational systems. There is a risk management system
comprising the Board of Directors, the Risk Management
Committee; and there is an internal monitoring system
made up of the Audit Committee and the audit department
which reports to the Board. This set of systems ensure
the continuous improvement and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and the review of
their effectiveness. The Risk Management Committee is
made up of the Group’s management, which is responsible
and reports to the Board. The committee is responsible for
the design, implementation and monitoring of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system, in order to
ensure the continuous effectiveness of the system.

The Company has formulated regulations and systems
relevant to risk management and internal control, including
the “Risk Management System” ((E&E R HE)), “Internal
Control and Work Management Guidelines” ({7 ZB ¥4
TEEE#L)), “Anti-corruption Management System”
(=EEREEHIE)), "Internal Audit Management System”
(KR BFFTEEGIZ )), “Audit Management Guidelines
for Employment Termination” ((Bf 1T 2| 5 & 18 % )% ))
and “Professional Ethics and Code of Conduct” (B
W17 A%8))), etc. The risk management and internal
monitoring system aims to ensure the formulation and
effective implementation of financial, operational and
regulatory monitoring and risk management functions. The
process and information systems guarantee the effective
execution of the risk management and internal control
systems. Through the establishment of the process system,
the Company will be able to carry out risk identification,
risk assessment, risk response, risk monitoring and risk
improvement. During the year, the Company has continued
to carry out risk management and internal control.
Knowledge dissemination related to risk management and
internal control has been strengthened through internal
platform, covering all employees effectively.Content
promotion and fraud information collection upholds
the fundamental principles of “Prevention Precedes
Punishment” and “Protect Those Who Report, Avoid Those
Who are Being Investigated”.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

The Board has conducted a review of and is satisfied with
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control system of the Group.

The Company has established an independent audit
function. The dedicated general manager of the function
is independent of the daily operation of the Group. The
Board and the Audit Committee believe that the internal
audit function of the Company has the capacity to
independently report to the Audit Committee in respect of
the matters including audit plan and resources, executed
audit procedures and material audit findings, and is capable
to conduct analysis and independent assessment on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view
and are in compliance with the statutory requirements and
applicable financial reporting standards. As at 31 December
2020, the Directors was not aware of any material
misstatement or uncertainties that might put doubt on the
Group's financial position or continue as a going concern.
The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,

position and prospects in financial reporting.

A statement by the auditor about the auditor’s responsibility
is set out on page 94 to 102 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
the activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and
effectively. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
to prepare agendas and Board papers for meetings and
disseminates such documents to the Directors and board
committees in a timely manner. The Company Secretary
is responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully briefed
on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments when making decisions. The Company
Secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, including publication and dissemination
of Report and Financial Statements and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely
dissemination of announcements and information relating
to the Group to the market and ensuring that proper
notification is made when there are any dealings of the

Director in the securities of the Group.

The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensure that the standards and disclosures required by the

Listing Rules are observed.

During the year, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, the Company
Secretary of the Company, has undertaken no less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and

knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (“SGM")

Subject to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”) and Bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, shareholders holding in aggregate not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

Any number of shareholders representing not less than
5% of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act for putting

forward such proposal at a general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Suite 3901, 39/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 28660281

Email: cs@cnegroup.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed in providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of interim and annual reports. In
addition to the circulars, notices and financial reports sent
to shareholders, additional information of the Group is also
available to shareholders on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice
is given. The Chairman and Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the meeting.
Subject to the Act and the bye-laws of the Company, all
shareholders shall have statutory rights to call for special
general meetings and put forward agenda items for
consideration in the general meetings. All resolutions at the
general meeting are decided by a poll which is conducted
by the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort
to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.
Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.

CONSTITUTION AN DOCUMENT

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
document during the year.
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To the Shareholders of Concord New Energy Group
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 103
to 299, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code") together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

REETEREGE)

of investment in wind power plants

HEESRERSELBENAZEEHEREZTE

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill in relation to the group of cash generating units

FEHERS M BHRRMIE 19 MHE3 Il 2 S5 K

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.

The Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How the matter was addressed in out audit

RAEFESPONEERRETSER

As at 31 December 2020, the goodwill allocated

to the group of cash generating units (“CGU") of
investment in wind power plants arising on this
acquisition amounted to Renminbi800.0 million.
2020F 12 A31H  EEERESRERTELE
T EBHARKE8.00ETT °

The Group conducted an annual impairment
assessment on goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of the relevant group of CGUs to which

the goodwill has been allocated based on their fair
value less costs to disposal using discounted cash
flow method.
EREERBAENRRERI A EATRREELE
THENBEA R BEHNREEKARNE 2 ATWE &5
HREBNTFERER -

The impairment assessment performed by the
management involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, particular in estimating
future sales volumes and future on-grid tariffs

as well as in the estimation of the discount rates
applied.
HERENTHREANA S REEEEHBERHE -
LEEMFARREESE AR E-EEEBMTRIEZR

B +
R o

We identified goodwill impairment assessment

on the group of CGUs of investment in wind

power plants as a key audit matter because the
carrying amount of the goodwill is material to the
consolidated financial statements and also because
management’s judgement and assumptions involved
as part of the impairment assessment are inherently
uncertain and could be subject to potential
management bias.
HREERABEYEEEAHMREEARN L H
ERMENE—Ho 2 EREBHEMBRRAFAEFDT
HEMMAREXINEEEREBRECTE &K
REISIRERSELE THE B EEERERHEA
REARESEE -

Our audit procedures to address potential
impairment of goodwill in relation to the group of
CGUs of investment in wind power plants included
the following:
HEHRESRERCELSE A BEBERER
MEAEABSRE
o assessing management’s identification of
CGUs and the allocation of assets to each
CGU with reference to our understanding of
the Group's business and the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;
2REMEEEERBE 2 EBEMRITE LR
MEXR  FEEEEYURSELE T ZHAM
BEDE

o comparing the actual results for the current
year with management’s forecast in the
previous year to assess the historical accuracy
of management’s forecasting process and if
there is any indication of management bias;
BRAE AT EREEERLFEEREER
Bl R EEENTERNBRUNEERE
FERBRZELERE  ULKEEERAFE
"R

o involving our internal valuation specialists to
evaluate the valuation methodology used in
determining the recoverable amount of the
relevant group of CGUs, and assess whether
the discount rates applied in the impairment
assessment were within the ranges adopted by
other companies in the same industry;
SINEFRMEZER  TEARBTEEER
CEAETHAZ AN 2B HEFTE - WAT
BREANATRANTREXERERITEEM
REFKAZBER :
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

REETEREGE)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill in relation to the group of cash generating units

of investment in wind power plants

HEESRENSELENACEETHEREZNE

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.

F2REEUBRRME19MMOES I 2 S5 BR

The Key Audit Matters
HRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRESAPTONEERREESSER

challenging management’s basis on the
estimation of the estimated future sales
volumes of wind power plants in operation by
comparing with the historical sales volumes
and on-grid tariffs and government’s policies
on on-grid tariffs and validating management’s
reason of significant deviations, if any;
BALHEES  THEEBECELEMNNALK
FEWBEBBEK  EREEEMLTELRES
AREBEZBRER  BREETHEEMLLE
ZEXRRERRA :

evaluating the assumptions of the estimated
sales volumes and on-grid tariffs of wind
power plants under construction by checking
to the feasibility reports and by considering
the future development plans from the
local government, on a sample basis, and
government’s policies on on-grid tariffs;
FEMEREER F - BAmE A TR ERE A
REBEWBRNAKRERES  ABERRASE
i FREEEN FTEEEMAPEAZRE;
evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis of
the key assumptions adopted and considering
if there were any indicators of management
bias; and

AEEEEHRBONBERRR ZBRIESN
EMAESSFEEMNERERRENR
assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the impairment assessment of
goodwill, including the key assumptions
and sensitivities, with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

S2RATEFEYNZER  FEBAHMBRE
PREBREN G CEESEN  BEBRER
MBREFE -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

ESHGREVBBRRAREZEEHE)

ERGIGaMBEHRERE EFAETHEES
EREERNETHELE Lﬁﬁaﬂ&? 35%
Zti“<**$BF'EJZ$IE WERFELLETE
RIEEZAREFEERENK LEENR
BEEMERERTRERIN -

H\

B REEMDEFETEESEYBRE
MEZHE -
RBMREAFESUBRRAREZE
=5

BRZEEEREBEIARAR GG %90
k- BREFFAVEHRREBENSERE
HERGFHEARKRFFXERMEM 2z EAR
HAEABRERRBESEREEHMER
ZZBENRE - BRIz AR ELEEAM
B AP HEMERMALRAREZA
BAGELM EEAEE -

EEREBNSNKERE  BETERIER
BIBEABEERNIT 2B AT AR 2 E
FREZERNERBRM - $HRRA R AELES
WEFRER  WRAEEHEE HER
AREFEEREREAAHVBRRIFELE
FORERE - BRZERRABER/ER -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the

consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

9 March 2021
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBESERK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”))

HE2020%F 12 A31 BIEEE (UAREST)

2020 2019
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
ora AR¥FT AREFT
Revenue WA 56 2,000,754 1,835,922
Cost of sales and services rendered  ARFGACAN 2 $5 & A AN 13 (759,700) (714,842)
Gross profit EF 1,241,054 1,121,080
Other income E A 7 41,341 31,669
Other gains and losses, net Hiam R EE - JF5E 116,327 104,886
Impairment losses under expected ERREEX
credit loss model, net of reversal 9 (10,899) (40,560)
Distribution and selling expenses HEBER (12,335) (11,695)
Administrative expenses EIEER (322,720) (287,160)
Other expenses Hf X — (35,500)
Finance costs UL I RN 12 (404,420) (384,809)
Share of profit of joint ventures, net E{RAE DS @ T8 118,265 136,889
Share of (loss)/profit of associates, — JE(REE AR (EE),/
net Wz - 558 (3,987) 17,406
Profit before income tax BRET BB ANER 13 762,626 652,206
Income tax expense FriS i X 14 (78,418) (39,087)
Profit for the year REZRBER 684,208 613,119
Profit for the year attributable to: XEERFIFEBR :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR FIRERE 673,405 604,293
Non-controlling interests FEPE R A 10,803 8,826
684,208 613,119
Earnings per share BREF 15
Basic (RMB cents) BEXRARES) 8.18 7.22
Diluted (RMB cents) e ANRKES) 7.86 6.86

The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for
the year are set out in Note 16.

F1N1E299 B 2B ZENERE 3
ne BHISREMOEBAMFMISE
AN ER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBERRkEMEZAEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in RMB)

HZE2020F 12 A31 BIEFE(UAREZFR)

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Profit for the year RERERF 684,208 613,119
Other comprehensive income: Hib2HE WK :
Item that may be reclassified RlBEE S E 1B em 2 HH

subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of & EHFrE =58

foreign operations 26,852 (4,086)
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEERKES
for the year, net of tax HBRBIE 26,852 (4,086)
Total comprehensive income AEE2HENRERE
for the year 711,060 609,033
Total comprehensive income 2HEWNEAERS .
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company RAFRRER 698,296 602,258
Non-controlling interests FEPES R = 12,764 6,775
711,060 609,033
The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these financial F111 2299 B 2T BRZET K —3f
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2020 (Expressed in RMB)

R 2020F 12 A 31 B(UAEEZITR)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥FoT AREFor
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MERE 17 9,335,866 9,222,240
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 503,990 548,816
Intangible assets EILEE 19 874,259 904,814
Interests in associates REE DT 2R 20 476,814 472,072
Interests in joint ventures REEDE R 21 1,509,941 1,659,770
Financial assets at fair value ERAREBEFARR
through profit or loss TREE 22 50,416 34,845
Contract assets ERIEE 23 48,126 697,545
Trade and bills receivable EWE SRR EE 24 — 28,796
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTRIE ~ ek
receivables E R Y GRIA 25 988,712 1,175,437
Finance lease receivables Bh & & pE Y TE 26 18,814 13,578
Loan receivables FEL &5 2R 27 20,248 69,571
Deferred tax assets EIERIBE B 38 37,650 40,686
13,864,836 14,868,170
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 28 12,148 12,958
Contract assets BREE 23 669,655 594,913
Trade and bills receivable JEWE SRR R EE 24 1,148,588 612,547
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIE ~ ek
receivables H At EUFRIE 25 1,098,489 534,659
Finance lease receivables R EEEEWFRIE 26 5,326 4,276
Loan receivables e E X 27 9,146 14,476
Amounts due from associates NI E O] 20 77.860 39,134
Amounts due from joint ventures UL & &> IE 21 34,164 42,255
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREFEIEE 29 2,280,459 1,462,082
Restricted deposits SRR B F R 29 327,610 143,046
5,663,445 3,460,346
Assets classified as held for sale BREREEESEZEE — 1,563,921
5,663,445 5,024,267
Total assets BEERE 19,528,281 19,892,437
LIABILITIES 88
Non-current liabilities 3Fuu,§.7}ﬁ1$
Bank borrowings HRITER 33 1,336,002 2,821,165
Other borrowings HiER 34 5,834,431 4,349,758
Senior notes and bonds payable BLREENESZ EMNKE 35 552,803 1,392,941
Convertible loan Al E R 36 355,270 418,232
Lease liabilities HEAE 37 65,552 81,205
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIB A E 38 4,626 12,390
Deferred government grants IR E BT 465 B 39 14,693 15,643
Payables for construction in HH %iﬁZF‘éﬁ%ﬁlﬁ :
progress, other payables and H b FIE R
accruals fETE 31 518,552 489,799
Financial guarantee contract MBEREREE
liabilities 40 22,542 33,808
8,704,471 9,614,941

The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these financial

statements.

F1N1E299 B 2B ZENERE 3

AN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

REUBRRRE)

As at 31 December 2020 (Expressed in RMB)

7R 2020F 12 A 31 B(UAEEZITR)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR¥TFT ABRETFT
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payable BE SRR EE 30 959,970 1,081,632
Payables for construction in T B s A 2R -
progress, other payables and E IR
accruals JEETE R 31 1,779,996 1,362,755
Contract liabilities aRaE 32 63,681 95,471
Amounts due to joint ventures JE A ENETE 21 4,873 53,943
Bank borrowings RITER 33 171,245 506,364
Other borrowings HA g 34 412,819 164,388
Senior notes and bonds payable Eﬁ?éfﬁﬁ%zrﬁmﬁ 35 811,215 —
Convertible loan AR B R 36 76,395 —
Lease liabilities HEaE 37 10,562 11,502
Financial guarantee contract BB ERERABE
liabilities 40 8,599 9,098
Current income tax liabilities BT FTS TR 29,953 13,187
4,329,308 3,298,340
Liabilities associated with assets SREAIGTEFEZAE
classified as held for sale - 1 009955
4,329,308 4,308,295
Total liabilities aRBE | 13,033,779 13,923,236
Net current assets REEEFE 1,334,137 715,972
Total assets less current EEABERRBAE
liabilities 15,198,973 15,584,142
Net assets BERE 6,494,502 5,969,201
EQUITY &=
Share capital RN 41 72,412 73,652
Reserves ] 6,347,456 5,869,651
Total equity attributable to AR EESL
equity shareholders of the RRERE
Company 6,419,868 5,943,303
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 74,634 25,898
Total equity R 6,494,502 5,969,201

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 9 March 2021.

Liu Shunxing

2IE R

Chairman and Executive Director

EFRTERYWTEF

The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEERRBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in RMB)

BZE 2020512 A31 BIEFE(UAREZT)

Attributable to owners of the Company
KAARENEL
Premium
arising on
acquisition
and disposal
of non- Non-
Share  Treasury Share  Contributed  controlling  Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital shares  premium surplus— interests reserve  reserves  eanings  Subtotal  interests equity
(Note 41(a)) ~ (Note 41(b) (Note 41(c) (Note 41(c) ~ (Note 41(e))
WiEREE
b2l
REfEE
B EfE BROEE  #ARB EE  ENRE  MMRE  RERA E
(gt (W) (W) (kgany)  (Eane)

RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB'0O0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBUOO  RMBOO0  RMBUOO  RMBY00
ARETE  ARBTT  ARETZ  ABRTR  ARETE  ARRTE  ARETL  ARBTT  ABRTR  ARRTR  ARETE

=

FEHRRE  RRER

At 1 January 2020 HUNE1R1R 13,652 (46,417) AT64 2,359,063 (53,105) (6,167) 109689 3158947 5943303 25898 5969,201
Profit for the year TERER - - - - - - - 673,405 673,405 10,803 684,208
Other comprehensive income Ef2Eds - - - - - U/ - - pIL] 1,961 2685
Total comprehensive income rER2ENREE

for the year - - - - - 2,891 - 673,405 698,296 12,764 711,060

Cancellation of reasury shares BRI

(Note 41alfi) (i) (1240 41854 (061 - - - - - - - -
Repurchase of ordinary shares~~ £EREE

(Note 41(a)fi) (416 - (3w - - - - - - (B - (B
Vesting of shares under share award 81172 58

scheme (Note 42) (i - 5,636 6,753 - - - (12.389) - - - -
Share-based compensation

(Note 42) - - - - - - 15179 - 15,179 - 15,179
2019 final dividends WI9EERS - - - - - - - (19097)  (19097) - (190,971)
Disposal of partal interest in RENBLAA

subsidiaries i - - - - 20,261 - - - 20,261 44,540 64,801
Acquistion of non-controllng  FFiEEIERIE

interests - - - - (32,926) - - - (32,926) (14) (33,000)
Divdends paid to non-contolling X IREFsER/4

interests fEg - - - - - - - - - (8,4%) (8,494)

Balance at 31 December 2020 12005124318 nam (3220 313780 2359063 (65,770) 18.724 12479 3641381 6,419,868 4634 6,494,502

The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these financial F11E2998 BN ZEVBRE—
statements. PN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REREREBR(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in RMB)
BZxE 2020512 A31 BIEFE(UAREZT)

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATRBARH
Premium arising
on acquisition
of non- Non-
Share Treasury Share ~ Contributed ~ controllng ~~ Exchange Other Retained controling Total
capital shares premium surplus interests Teserve TESerVes gamings Subtotal interests equity
(Note 41(3)  (Note 41(b)) (Note 41(c)) (Note 41(d) ~ (Note 41(e)
YR
ERffEL
i EEE BhEE  #ARE ZEE  EXRR  EBBE  RERW B mtEs  EmE
(Hza)  (HEab) (Hdane) (g (dae)

RUBOOO  RUBOGO  AMBOL0  RMBODD  AMBOOD  AMBOOO  RMBOOD  AUBOO  RMBODD  RMBOOD  AMBOO
ARETT  ABRTT  ARETE  ARETE  ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2019 H21951A18 74,049 (49,814) 39,199 2,359,063 (53,105) 4132) 91641 2704327 5518228 28511 5546739
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - - - 6M23 60429 8826 613119
Other comprehensie expense £ 2ERS - - - - - 203) - - (2039) 205) (4,086)

Total comprehensive (expense)l A4 ERE(RE)
income for the year /NEgE - - - - - (2,039 - 604,293 602,258 6,775 609,033

Ordinary share isued as treasuy  {EABTERER
shares (ote 41(a)i) LEAR
(416l 1012 (1.012) - - - - - - - - -
Cancellation of treasury shares ~ EEEER

(Note 41(a)) () (1409 49313 (47,904 - - - - - - . _
Repurchase of ordinary shares LigfoE

(Note 4163 (Histaral) - W50 - - - - - A N VAT
Vesting of shares under share award %854 258

scheme (Note 42) &4) - 2636 (654 - - - (1.982) - - - -
Share-based compensation WEOEREZ [T

(Note 42) (iz4) - - - - - - 20,030 - 20,030 - 20,030
2018 final dividends WiBEERE - - - - - - — (19673 (149673) - (19673)
Contrbutions by non-controling B HfE B E

Interests - - - - - - - - - 500 500
Acquiston of non-contolling BB R

inferests - - - - - - - - - (500) (500)
Dividends paid to non-controllng X8 F3EEslM

intersts fER - - - - - - - - - (9,389) (9,388)

Balance at 31 December 2019 R20195128318 13,65 (dod17) 37641 2359083 (53,109) (6167 109689 3158947 5943303 5898 5,969,201

The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these financial F11E2998 2 MFENZENBRE—
statements. PN
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in RMB)
BZE 2020512 A31 BIEFE(UAREZT)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hist AREF AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RERETHZRERE
Cash generated from operations REEBHMGEIRE 43(a) 1,042,138 967,948
Income tax paid FHRFEH (76,980) (31,846)
Net cash generated from operating RETEHMEL RS T
activities 965,158 936,102
Cash flows from investing activities REREETHZRERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment EBEWE - BiE k& (1,307,742) (1,291,223)
Payments for right-of-use assets EEDREEE (123,576) (98,690)
Capital injection to joint ventures and e EbERBENR
associates HE (10,459) (62,440)
Net cash inflow on disposal/ BE/THEMEAR
de-registration of subsidiaries FriesiE 35 43(b) 1,139,534 414,172
Net proceeds from disposal/ BB/ FHHAELE
de-registration of joint ventures FrigsIE F8 43(c) 61,577 —
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BELLE
plant and equipment FT1S5kIE 43(d) 2,395 6,173
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEF ARSI RIE (23,734) —
Payments for purchase of financial assets at ~ BEIR AL BEF ABHE
fair value through profit or loss ZERMEE (13,054) (27,288)
Proceeds from disposal of other financial HEEMEREEMS
assets F7eE] 3,707,052 2,605,577
Payments for acquisition of other financial BEHMSH
assets BE (3,689,782) (2,584,680)
Dividends received from joint ventures and ~ BUA L ¥ KL DT
associates 2B 200,674 5,820
Deposits received for disposal of subsidiaries  Fz & i B A 7 T8 YA HE R — 30,100
Proceed from dividends received from WEIAREEREENE
disposed subsidiaries AEIRH 45,968 -
Refund of deposits paid for project WEIBRIEE
investments SEENES 37,860 80,000
Repayment from joint ventures WEAEREZBR — 26,244
Receipts of government grants B B 2 YR 3,350 330
Interest received BUYH A 10,964 9,605
Placement of restricted deposits FTIE 05 57 3 (327,610) (143,046)
Withdrawal of restricted deposits X EIFRRE 143,046 12,692
Net cash used in investing activities RETBFMAZRSFE (143,537) (1,016,654)

The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these financial

statements.
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2020 £ %
HEHEREEERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
fan IE%/)ILE% (/é%)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in RMB)
BZE 2020512 A31 BIEFE(UAREZT)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
iz AR¥TFT ANRETFT
Cash flows from financing activities REMETBHZHERE
Payment for share repurchase W38 2 BB 41 (33,274) (47,540)
Proceeds from bank borrowings fﬁfﬂﬁt’"ﬁﬁ%ﬁ 314,840 266,447
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (1,100,483) (640,366)
Proceeds from other borrowings H A g5k PT1S EUR 2,173,286 1,584,032
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMER (549,888) (104,698)
Deposits placed FRRE (72,408) (75,695)
Repayment of lease liabilities f ﬁfﬁfﬁﬁi\ (11,005) (13,710)
Issue of senior notes, net of issuance BITEERE
expense MBRETER 35 28,242 -
Repurchase of senior notes BERBOHE 35 (20,767) —
Repayments of bonds BEES 35 — (300,000)
Issue of convertible loan, net of issuance BT E RN EST
expense & 36 — 199,839
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the X E FARIRE
Company (190,971) (149,673)
Dividends paid to non-controlling XTRR BT IR M R AR
interests %7@}\ (6,245) (9,388)
Proceeds from disposal of partial interests in D HEHNB A R
subsidiaries without losing control Fﬁg’f%\ 64,801 —
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of W B B A R FE A 1
subsidiaries = (33,000) —
Contributions by non-controlling interests FEEHMEREE — 500
Interest paid BRFE (578,274) (502,744)
Net cash (used in)/generated BMETH(FA)FEEZ
from financing activities BE&EE (15,146) 207,004
Net increase in cash and HeRBEEEHEBEREM
cash equivalents R 806,475 126,452
Cash and cash equivalents at the FzRekReEE
beginning of the year 1BH 1,482,566 1,353,613
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes -7 (8,582) 2,501
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZEGRRLEE
end of the year 1HH 2,280,459 1,482,566
Analysis of balances of cash and cash ReRBeSEBALHZ
equivalents 2T
Cash and bank balances We MRITHES 29 2,608,069 1,605,128
Restricted deposits 2R & F R 29 (327,610) (143,046)
Cash and bank balances attributable to the ~ DEAFHEFEEE
disposal subsidiaries classified as held CEREWBLRRZ
for sale Ao RRITHES — 20,484
2,280,459 1,482,566

FINE299 B2 WEBRZEFM B HRE 8

statements. Ao

110

The notes on pages 111 to 299 form part of these financial



2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Suite 3901, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The address
of principal place of business is Rooms 204 to 205,
China Wind Power Building, No. 9, South Shou Ti
Road, Haidian District,Beijing, the People's Republic of
China ("PRC").

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) were involved in the following
principal activities of operating and investment in
power plants, provision of power plant operation and
maintenance services, provision of design, technical
and consultation services.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi ("RMB").

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

2.1 New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for the current
accounting period

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") has issued the
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group's consolidated financial
statements:

EXEH

e REBEGRQAB(KRAE)E
EARABSHMK I ZBR QG -
NRARNEBEBESXSGALETUE
BEFRG]) o RAFIFMI A
Suite 3901, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong
Kong ° FE& i K EARHME
([ BRI RE S 58 9 5%
B[E E A E 204-205 % ©

RAFER  ARFREKERF R
BIAKEDEZRETINES : ER
BERKRE  BRETTREERS 12
FRRET Bl R AR o

KB BHRRIGAARETIRK -

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
AT ERMBRELER D)

21 FREERFERZEBUBREE
Rz 38 RAERT

BEEMARCEBE BV R
FEBDELATERT » &R
EARKEERM S MEERER -
Hep - UTMERTRRIEAKE 2 &
HHBHRRBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE VBRI

112

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for the current
accounting period (CONTINUED)

Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Definition of a Business

HKFRS 3

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s result and financial
position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting
period, except for the amendment to HKFRS
16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions, which
provides a practical expedient that allows lessees
not assess whether particular rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and,
instead, account for those concessions as if they
were not lease modifications.

2.

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
A(TERMBRERER D (&)

2.1

REEBREERZEBPBRESE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

BEGENFE1RE EEY

BREHEAFESRE TH
(1E5TA)
BRY B ImEER KB TH
£ 3 UERIA)
BRY B ImEER FEHK
£ 165 (EFTA) Viz[
itk
=

Fany

ELERT R R AR B A
VAR A 2 S4B AN A AR 2 4 1
FINMARELEERTE - KEE
RERB IR G 5 HIRE M R £
ZHERIKIRE - B EM B RS
AR 16 5 2 BT A b X1
A BB RERTARERE T
—REBEETE  AFAEAZ
BFHERATEMAXRTTERER
ZETRAREERASEENE
R BEMEYWIFHEEE K -



2020 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE VBRI

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issue a number of
amendments and a new standard HKFRS 17,
Insurance contract, which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which
have not been adopted in the consolidated
financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the group:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS Reform — Phase 2!
4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework *

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use *

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract *

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts ’

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
BRI (TEBMBHREER D (&)

2.2

B AR E o R A B2 FTE BT R ARAE
2B BN BREER

BEAMBHREBEHLAN  FES
A ERME TR -1
HEMONBE BN G RELERNF 17
o REESA  BREREREC
ZREF_A=T—HILFEH
RER - IARES I F R &R
Mo BLBEAT A EEE AR
ZITm

BEMBREER FIERENE —
EON  BEEH £2BE
EBF39%  F
BB ER
7%

BERBRE
EREARRER
B R 2R
F16RMETA

BEMBRERER  HERERER’
FIFABIA

BAGERE 16 V% BERR
pIEHEN #  BEESTEA]

A E

BRGIERNE3T BEMLAH —

FRBETA BT E#8
7.
2018 FZ 20205
HMEBIBRS

ERIMFESE’

ERUKREEDN REAH’
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

January 2021

January 2022

January 2023

To be determined

Presentation of financial
statements “Classification
of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current”?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates ’

Extension of the temporary
exemption from applying
HKFRS 9°

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture *

Effctive for annual periods beginning on 1

Effctive for annual periods beginning on 1

Effctive for annual periods beginning on 1

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
RI(TEBMBHREER D (&)

2.2

B AR B o R A B2 FTE T R ARAE
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to
sell.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realizable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

FEEFHHE

KAV BRRRBEBLGHMOSH
2 ZEAYBHRELENEGHBEMAE
BRI EESBHRELER - BB R
(IEEEER ) RERERS - UL
HAVBBRESKEEBERSM
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HARREMERARAABEFABZRL
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Az B2 AAEE -
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REEREZREERNBEETIR -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of
the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices(unadjusted)in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
shareholder of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the equity shareholder
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

3.

TESTHEE)

BHFER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation. Unrealizes losses relating from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of the relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognized directly in equity and attributed to equity
shareholder of the Company.

3.
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognized. A gain
or loss is recognized in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the equity shareholder
of the Company. All amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at
their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognized and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (CONTINUED)

o lease liabilities are recognized and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognized and
measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at the acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period,the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joints ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or joint venture is initially recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture, unless it is
classified as held for sale.

Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognized as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognized
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognized forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognized in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is
highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as
held for sale when the criteria described above are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
noncontrolling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9, which
continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortized.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognized over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9.
represents the Group's unconditional right to

In contrast, a receivable

consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for presented on a net
basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis, except for the allocation of
variable consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

3.

FTREHBERE)

BEFEHNWEE)

AEREERAKBCATPEEDMM
BB ENER - BZEFNEURR
RRERA 22 iR E - AREER
RBBMBREERNE R HIRE -
MmEKEREARERRNEAKEE
fERAFWER B 2 B - BIMEEREE R
Z A BRI YR o

ERAEEASECK(EEK TPR
EmEREFPEEEmARE &R

HE-ARBEBZEREENARAR
BLAFERDITR

REZHBHEHZER(BEXSE
V-l )

ERTEEMANSZEBROES - A%
BRI EREE  $XHEROH
EREHBENEY  HEFENATERE
L BERRIN

TIAME QTS PR IB A 5 72 7 dn SR TS
MEBEEEARMBEREE  KK7T
AEBEAEFPERLEMAH A MK
R#ZEE - HEBEETREREE
Z‘J C AEREREREE RS E TS
B UEREIREE-BHBEBZXR
5 B8 e MR A SR B TR B B i Pk
HEMIBEFPZRGZEHETHE -



2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

Bt 35 R AR B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognize revenue on the basis of
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed
to date (service contracts in which the Group bills a
fixed amount for the time of service provided), the
Group recognizes revenue in the amount to which the
Group has the right to invoice.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the
Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using either (a) the expected value
method or (b) the most likely amount, depending
on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

Variable consideration (CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

For contracts where the Group transferred the
associated goods or services before payments
from customers in which the Group adjusts for the
promised amount of consideration for significant
financing components, the Group applies a discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. The Group recognizes interest
revenue during the period between the payment from
customers and the transfer of the associated goods or
services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the
Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognizes revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract (Continued)

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis
when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not
differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognized as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognizes and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)

Lease liabilities (CONTINUED)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-ofuse
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract ("lease modification") that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out
in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognized the
change in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognized as receivables at commencement
date at amounts equal to net investments in the
leases, measured using the interest rate implicit in
the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest revenue is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognized as an expense on a
straightline basis over the lease term.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessor (CONTINUED)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions
The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15

to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

3.

TESTHEE)

HE(E)

FEBMERHBEA(E)

BRI B 77 21 1B 1Y 77 B
ERHNRRKEREENIFHER K -
AEBREBEEMB RS ERNE 1558
HaNPHHESBREHEMFREL

7 FHEMORBEEEBEEFERE
HEHH DR

REBERES

EXNAREESRESRET BV
BEEEIRETERE  WIRAFE

EITIAS B © MIRRABEATE
BERAARAAZEMAENK -

HEEX

AEBBERIEM REFEEHEE
RIMEEETE  YHEREEER
M ERBEN S EFHENRIERHEE
MBS N — & D

EXRBERS
AEEEABEEVHREERF 1552

BE - HEEREORZEEBRAE
B2 HE -

139



2020 £ %
HEHEREEERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

140

Bt 35 R AR B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (CONTINUED)

Sale and leaseback transactions (CONTINUED)

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements
as a sale, the Group as a seller-lessee accounts for
the transfer proceeds as financial liabilities within the
scope of HKFRS 9.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a
sale of asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does not
recognize the transferred asset and recognizes a loan
receivables equal to the transfer proceeds within the
scope HKFRS 9.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (CONTINUED)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “Exchange reserve” (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualified assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognizes as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The Group’s
PRC companies are required to contribute certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.

3.

FTREHBERE)
B # B

BFAB R B HENGEREAEE
76 F B Z B {514 32 B B8 5 U4 5 485 BY
R T IARERR ©

BRI 8 B FEBR AR Rt 2 T R E AN R B
AR BB E 2 MR AN R R E
ZHBAET AR - HRlE - WRRE
BB e ERNGHRAREREES -
BEI AR T ARG ERBEE - A
P& 5 TR 78 B FE AR & B IR R 3% o HE AR
RIELWA - A EHBEEZERFR
NIZRFABZTEB AR -

ERAEBCEELEZERNBRZM
& AR/ AEERMEEVBEIEM
ARG 3 A TR ARRE AN AN 2 B WK R I
B - B H AR E WK IR 2 I ET A

1B o

BRAKBNER

ERECRERHUFEHBEEMNESRERF
BARBNFEZREFEZRBEE - AR
ERTFERBMNE N2 S EEER

AEETEEANEERTEBNES 2
BxERRAEMNFENE - XEEZ
PEARFEREEIETEL —EL
Plz e BN ERKBHETE - BEF
REEDS R - AEEERKEN S
ZHBAEEHE/REBEFEBNAEL L

K o



2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognized as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Group, namely the share award
scheme.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (other reserves). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the other reserves.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment arrangements (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(CONTINUED)

Under the share award scheme, when the awarded
shares are vested the related cost of the vested shares
is released from the other reserves to eliminate the
related amount of treasury shares held for the share
award scheme. Any difference between the cost of
the vested shares and the related amount of treasury
shares is transferred to share premium.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, and interests in associates and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realized,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognized at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is
probable that the relevant tax authority will accept
the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be
use by individual group entities in their income tax
filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes
are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected
by using either the most likely amount or the expected
value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings for
use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss.
Cost include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the
cost of assets (other than construction in progress)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortization of right-of-use assets provided during
the construction period is included as part of costs
of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary
for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortization method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognized separately from goodwill and are
initially recognized at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (CONTINUED)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measureable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Costs of inventories are determined
using the specific identification of their individual
costs. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
revenue and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortized cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in far value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (CONTINUED)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortized cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i)

Amortized cost and interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognized using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortized cost and receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
revenue is recognized by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest revenue is
recognized by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognized in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial
assets (including cash and cash equivalents, restricted
deposits, trade receivables, loan receivables and
amounts due from joint ventures and associates, other
receivables), and finance lease receivables, contract
assets and financial guarantee contracts which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables (CONTINUED)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life
12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that

of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade
receivables (including trade-related amounts due
from joint ventures and associates), finance lease
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these

assets are assessed collectively or individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognizes lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognized is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables (CONTINUED)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables (CONTINUED)

(i)

160

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables (CONTINUED)

(ii)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables (CONTINUED)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’'s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognized in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used
in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease recejvables (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount rate
that reflects the current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the
extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting
the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Interest revenue is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest revenue is calculated based on amortized
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognized at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognized less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognized over
the guarantee period.

3.

FTREHBERE)

SWMIAE)

EHEE (&)

THEE  AREERHBEHERKN
e (#8)

v)

FEHERBRNGERERE)

RN EAET BRI R 2B HER
BR%EFEHR CBHEREBX
AR BRI IR R e R R &
EENEREEREENRRERE
R E R T IS G - ATEER(E
Bl ERRERBHRBRTRE(M
FRBEEEFTRNRSIEHR) TIA

MBWARIEE B EENREER
HitE  BEEREERLERRE
FIBIERSN - BB A B ARE S
BEEMNBBRKAAGTE -

BRMBRERARMS - BRER
RIREEBY B REERF IS
ENBRERBSRMIIGER S
BRIEREERBARER LRI
ATBZEANERSE o



2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and
lease receivables (CONTINUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group recognizes an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, contract assets,
other receivables, and amounts due from joint
ventures and associates where the corresponding
adjustment is recognized through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortized cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, senior notes and bonds payable, trade
and bills payable, accruals and other payables,
amounts due to joint ventures and associates, are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured
at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized
over the guarantee period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(CONTINUED)

Convertible loan contain debt and derivative
components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and
derivative components are recognized at fair value.
In subsequent periods, the debt component of the
convertible loan is carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan are allocated to the debt and
derivative components in proportion to their relative
fair values. Transaction costs relating to the derivative
component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are
included in the carrying amount of the debt portion
and amortized over the period of the convertible loan
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognized
in profit or loss.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In preparation of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales of
electricity

Tariff subsidy represents subsidy received and/or
receivable from the relevant authorities in respect of
the Group's power generation business. Tariff subsidy
is recognized as revenue at its fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the additional tariff
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions, if any.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales of
electricity (CONTINUED)

According to the tariff notice released by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (the
“Tariff Notice”), for power plants which obtained on-
grid approval and commence in generating electricity
will be eligible for on-grid tariff subsidy, which is
determined by deducting the basic electricity price
from the total electricity price set out in respective
electricity purchase agreement.

Pursuant to the Tariff Notice, a set of standardized
procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy
has come into since 2013. The approvals for the
registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
List (AT BARREEMINESMHBEE) (the "List”)
on a project-by-project basis are required before the
allocation of funds to the state grid companies, which
then would make settlement to the Group. In 2020,
the government authorities jointly issued several new
notices to crystalize the registration and vertification
process to apply tariff subsidy for wind and solar
power plants, which simplify system management of
the List and optimize subsidy settlement process.

In making their judgement, the directors of the
Company, taking into account the legal opinion as
advised by the Group’s legal advisor, considered
that all of the Group’s power plants (including
power plants held by the Group’s joint ventures
and associates) of which tariff subsidy is recognized
as revenue but yet to register in the List currently
in operation had been qualified for and had met,
relevant requirements and conditions for the
entitlement of the tariff subsidy when the electricity
was delivered on grid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales of
electricity

The directors of the Company are confident that all
of the Group’s operating power plants (including
power plants operated by the Group’s joint ventures
and associates) are able to be registered in the List in
due course and it's highly probable that the accrued
revenue on tariff subsidy will be received but only
subject to timing of allocation of funds from the PRC
government.

As disclosed in Note 23, as at 31 December 2020,
the tariff adjustment receivables of RMB329,385,000
(2019: RMB867,605,000) was recognized in contract
assets by the power plants which have not been
included in the List.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME
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(20194 : AR¥867,605,0007T) °

AT REE 2 EERR

AT RERSHRBREARRZARERR
MEFTAEEEZEMERIR2E
A EFESERH T EEFFEL
BERBSBFLEAHABZEXRR

B -

171



2020 £ %
HEHEREEERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

172

Bt 35 R AR B

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"”) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use
or fair value less costs of disposal. The calculation of
recoverable amount calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision
of future cash, a material impairment loss may arise.

As set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the annual impairment review performed
by the management involves assumptions, including
estimated sales volumes and on-grid tariff of each
wind farm, and discount rate, amongst others, that
are subjective in nature and the Company is required
to use judgement in applying such information.
Depending on the complexity of deriving reasonable
estimates of the recoverable amount of the CGU, the
Group may perform such assessment utilising internal
resources or the Group may engage external advisors
to counsel the Group in making this assessment.

An impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of a CGU or groups of CGUs exceeds its
recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of goodwill was RMB873,557,000 (2019:
RMB900,904,000). No impairments (2019: No
impairments) was recognized during the current year.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 19.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Business segments

The management has determined the operating
segments based on the internal reports reviewed
and used by executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision markers
("CODM"), for strategic decision making.

The CODM considers the business from a
product and service perspective. The Group is
organized into certain business units according
to the nature of the products sold or services
provided. The CODM reviews operating results
and financial information of each business
unit separately. Accordingly, each business
unit (including joint ventures and associates)
is identified as an operating segment. These
operating segments with similar economic
characteristics and similar nature of products
sold or services provided have been aggregated
into the following reporting segments.

° Power generation segment — operation
of wind and solar power plants through
subsidiaries, generating electric power for
sale to external power grid companies,
investing in power plants through joint
ventures and associates;

o “Others”segment — provision of power
plant operation and maintenance
services, provision of design, technical
and consultancy services, undertaking
electrical engineering and construction of
power plant projects (the "engineering,
procurement and construction business”),
provision of finance lease services and
energy internet services.
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Bt 35 R AR B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Business segments (CONTINUED)

The CODM assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of
adjusted earnings before interest and income
tax. This measurement basis excludes the effects
of non-recurring income and expenditure from
the operating segments.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted
with reference to the selling prices used for sales
made to the third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in Note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ remuneration,certain other income,

finance income and finance costs.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, all assets and liabilities are allocated
to operating segments other than assets and
liabilities attributable to head office.
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(a)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DHEERE)
Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) %BoE(E)
Segment revenues and results, and segment DEUAREE ROFEEHS
assets and liabilities. =
The following is an analysis of the Group's THRPIRAEFBELSHDE W
revenue, results, assets and liabilities by A EE L CBERAE -
reportable operating segment.
Power Segment
generation Others total Elimination Total
REEY -4 ARE g &3t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETE  ARETR  AREFT ARETE AREFR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020%12A31BLEE
Segment revenue ARUA
Sales to external customers* ETHNER: 1,728,443 272,311 2,000,754 - 2,000,754
Inter-segment sales SENEREE - 551,745 551,745 (551,745) -
1,728,483 824,056 2,552,499 (551,745) 2,000,754
Segment results AEEE 991,606 42,486 1,034,002 1,034,092
Unallocated other gains and losses, et~ AFATZZHNEREE - 38 105,428
Unallocated income AFAEZUA 30,376
Unallocated expenses AFARCER (13,814)
Finance income ABUA 10,964
Finance costs BITAA (404,420)
Profit before income tax BAataR 762,626
Income tax expense HERER (78,418)
Profit for the year FERRT 684,208
At 31 December 2020 20205124318
Segment assets AREE 16,348,975 3068410 19,417,385 19,417,385
Unallocated assets AP AR 110,896
Total assets SERE 19,528,281
Segment liablities AREE (11,197,561 (1,376,804)  (12,574,365) (12,574,365)
Unallocated liabiltes i AL (459,414)
Total liabiities gReE (13,033,779)
* Revenue from power generation comprised * EBEBWADRIZRE RS %

revenue generated from wind power plants and
solar power plants of RMB1,385,295,000 and
RMB343,148,000 respectively.

BEMEKGREER  ED A
A AR 1,385,295,000 7T & A
R 343,148,000 7T °
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DHEERE)
(@) Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) ¥EBoEE)
Segment revenues and results, and segment DEUAREE ROFEEHS
assets and liabilities. (CONTINUED) &E(E)
Power Segment
generation Others fotal Elimination Total
¥EEH ity Pk i e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT  A\REFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019E12 831 ALLEE
Segment revenue ARUA
Sales to external customers* EsnRE* 1,636,294 199,628 1835922 - 1835922
Inter-segment sales SEOBEEE - 321148 321148 (321,148) -
1,636,294 520,776 2,157,070 (321,148) 1,835,922
Segment results AREE 949,187 11,40 960,427 90,427
Unallocated other gains and losses, et~ AFAE 2 AMMHREE 38 64,326
Unallocated income APAEIHA 16,621
Unallocated expenses AFAELER (13,964)
Finance income AHUA 9,605
Finance costs i (384,809)
Profit before income tax RERAET 652,206
Income tax expense HERER (39,087)
Profit for the year KEEE 613,119
At 31 December 2019 20195124318
Seqment assets NEEE 17,549,857 2,077.433 19,827,290 19,827,290
Unallocated assets AP EE 65,147
Total assets EEBE 19892431
Segment liablities AEEE (120166300 (1473691 (13490321) (13.490,321)
Unallocated liabiltes IS WA (432915)
Total liabilties BEEE (13,923,236)
* Revenue from power generation comprised

* BHEEBWAD BIZRE AR 3
BN KGEERER - DB
B ANREE1,254,404,000 T & A
R 381,890,000 7T °

revenue generated from wind power plants and
solar power plants of RMB 1,254,404,000 and
RMB381,890,000, respectively.
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5.

(a)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DHEERE)
Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) %BoE(E)
Other segment information H 5 BEHF
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F512831BLLEE
Power
generation Others Unallocated Total
BEEK Aot FFAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFZ ABETFT AREFT AREFT
Amounts included in the measure &K FHEEHA 7L
of segment profit or loss or EiEZRE:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets ~ FEREIEEZEIN(AE
(including property, plant and n% - BE - RER
equipment and right-of-use RAEEE)
assets) 3,007,188 25,720 3,032,908
Depreciation of property, plant and %)%  BE REZEITE
equipment 473,073 22,059 495,132
Amortization of other intangible ~ EMEFAEEER
assets and depreciation of right- ~ FREEEZHE
of-use assets 36,252 4,628 40,880
Share-based compensation R BEE 2 3 12,805 2,374 15,179
Interests in joint ventures and REBRERBENRZ
associates B 1,967,156 19,599 1,986,755
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ElEEetERBERR
ventures and associates, net E2sh/ (B8)
e 131,852 (17,574) 114,278
Amounts reqularly provided to the  FHia T B4 £ FE/E
CODM but not included in the # - BURGTASFE
measure of segment profit or loss: ~ ZiFEZ & :
Loss on disposal of property, plant, HE¥E « BERREZ
and equipment BB 3,960 279 4,239
Write-down of inventories FERE - 3,669 3,669
Write-down of property, plantand %1% + BER&ERE
equipment 2,123 21,304 23,427
Reversed of impairment losson ~ ARZEREZEED
contract assets (635) — (635)
Reversal of impairment loss on ERE FETAE 2R
trade receivables (5,182) (1,454) (6,636)
Impairment loss on other Bt AR R E
receivables 3,359 13,611 16,970
Impairment loss on amounts due ~ [EMAZPERZE
from joint ventures - 1,200 1,200
Finance income B 1 UN (1,223) (9.741) (10,964)
Finance costs PBRE 395,083 9,337 404,420
Income tax expense FrERAx 57,770 20,648 78,418
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MR
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DHEERE)
(@) Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) %EBoE(E)
Other segment information (CONTINUED) Bt 7 BEH (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE2019F 12831 BLLEE
Power
generation Others Unallocated Total
BEEH Eth AR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ANRETFT ANRETT ARETFT
Amounts included in the measure ~ BER 7 EER 7 EE
of segment profit or loss or EHEZRE
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets  FERBEEZEIN(BE
(including property, plant and n% BE - RER
equipment and right-of-use TREREEE)
assets) 2,150,812 23,997 - 2,174,809
Depreciation of property, plantand #1% - BRE L& E2 15
equipment 445,798 19,715 - 465,513
Amortization of other intangible ~ Ef&FEE 2 HHR{F
assets and depreciation of right- ~ BEEEZITE
of-use assets 35,794 4,628 319 40,741
Share-based compensation IR BELEZ F3 17,664 2,301 65 20,030
Interests in joint ventures and REECERBERAL
associates s 2,094,818 37,024 - 2,131,842
Share of profit/(loss) of joint AR ERBENT
ventures and associates, net Ala s/ (B8)
A 170,042 (15,747) - 154,295
Amounts reqularly provided to the  FHiaT B4 £ FZ/E
CODM but not included in the # - BURGTASFE
measure of segment profit or loss: ~ ZiFEZ &
Loss on disposal of property, plant, HEME - BERREZ
and equipment BB 605 4,672 — 5,277
Impairment loss on contract assets  AF&ER(E 6,970 - — 6,970
Impairment loss recognized/ FERESRTAERR/
(reversed) on trade receivables () 4,524 212) - 4312
Impairment loss on other A EEERE
receivables 13,540 5,929 — 29,469
Reversal of impairment loss on EYaetERTAEL
amounts due from joint ventures &[] - (2,498) - (2,498)
Impairment loss on amounts due  JEUUBE & A AR E
from associates — 2,307 — 2,307
Finance income BHIA (1,507) (8,098) - (9,605)
Finance costs BB 376,635 8,174 - 384,809
Income tax expense FHAS 18,188 20,899 - 39,087
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5.

(b)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. o8EERE)
Geographical segments (b) #HESE
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the AREFFBELMUNAEARL
PRC and the remaining operations are located in MEB([HE])  EM&EiaR
the United States of America and Hong Kong. ERBNEE o
Information about the Group’s revenue from REFBIINGRE 7 I AREINEE
external customers is presented based on the B IR BT RYIR - KEH
location of the customers. Information about the IR EERTN(BIELERER
Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred BENSREENBEEEME
tax assets and financial assets) is presented HIERI B IR LR -
based on the geographical location of the assets.
Revenue Non-current assets
['ON FRBEE
Year ended 31 December At 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE ®12H31H
2020 2019 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AR®FT ARETT
The PRC s 1,975,023 1,806,778 12,797,720 12,824,885
Others E bl 25,731 29,144 700,043 975,434
2,000,754 1,835,922 13,497,763 13,800,319

Information about major customers

Four (2019: five) external customers individually
contribute more than 10% of the total revenue

(c)

FREFEM

W& (2019 - HZ)IEELH D
BME AR E B AB10% ° Lt F I

of the Group. The revenue of these customers is AZEPHMaET -
summarised below:

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Customer A Z2E A 264,079 263,785
Customer B 2FE B 258,087 300,462
Customer C BEC 240,335 211,412
Customer D 2FED 215,228 241,082
Customer E BFE N/A* 215,077

Revenue from customers above are attributable
to power generation segment.

* The corresponding revenue did not contribute
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

HEPZWALGEBNEEER

S
D .

* HEZWARBARBBEE 2

WA 10% °
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6. REVENUE 6. WA
6.1 For the year ended 31 December 2020 6.1 #H12020F 12831 LFE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year

HZE2020F12 A31HIEFER

ended 31 December 2020 is as follows: EEZIMASTTIT :
Power
generation Others Total
BEWB Hith et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARMTFT AREFT AR¥FrT
Revenue from contracts EREFERZBA
with customers ®R
Sales of electricity: EEWA
Basic electricity price BEHEBRA 1,019,897 — 1,019,897
Renewable energy subsidy Al A BRI RL
(Note) WA (H1aE) 708,546 — 708,546
Power plant operation and BRGETT
maintenance services A — 128,950 128,950
Engineering, procurement A BB RELT
and construction WA — 52,605 52,605
Provision of technical and R REAR
consultancy services UL A — 46,257 46,257
Provision of agency service FEHERERA
on sale of equipment — 16,739 16,739
Provision of design services RERFTRB A — 14,541 14,541
Other revenue HABWA — 2,227 2,227
1,728,443 261,319 1,989,762
Finance lease income EERERA — 10,992 10,992
Total revenue WA 5 1,728,443 272,311 2,000,754

Note: Renewable energy subsidy is provided by the Bt st < ] B A BE R AR B U AR R B R AT

relevant PRC government authorities to the wind BOPTET R R BR NS A 1R
and solar power plants operating in the PRC, B2 RN RKGEEERIERA

SANPR EE 4 5 - FE R B AR R X
FEBP D BL AT B AE BB IR B 2
registration in the List is required before the Al WARBAMESEL TUE
allocation of renewable energy subsidy by the # o

subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions.
As further explained in Note 4, approval for the

relevant PRC government authorities.
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. WAE)
6.1 For the year ended 31 December 2020 6.1 E1E2020F 12 B31LLEE(4E)
(CONTINUED)
An analysis of timing of revenue recognition ERZ B A R AR A FERE R
for revenue from contracts with customers is as 2ESINT
follows:
Power
generation Others Total
BEEK Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥EFT ARETRT
Point in time: LB HER
Sales of electricity BEBBA 1,728,443 — 1,728,443
Engineering, procurement WET  RER
and construction e A — 52,605 52,605
Provision of design services RERFTRB A — 14,541 14,541
Provision of technical and REFI R
consultancy services AR UA — 46,257 46,257
Provision of agency service JEHERERA
on sale of equipment — 16,739 16,739
Other revenue H A — 2,227 2,227
1,728,443 132,369 1,860,812
Over time: REERR
Power plant operation and BERETR
maintenance services HEEIA — 128,950 128,950
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREFEARUA
customers 1,728,443 261,319 1,989,762
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

6.1 For the year ended 31 December 2020

(CONTINUED)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue

6. WA#E)

6.1 BH1E2020F 12 A31LLEE(E)

with the amounts disclosed in the segment 7 HEE o
information.
Segment
revenue Elimination Consolidated
DEWA £ St A
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFT AR¥EFT ARETRT
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREFEARKA
customers: TR
Sales of electricity EEWA 1,728,443 — 1,728,443
Power plant operation and BHETR
maintenance services HEWA 207,082 (78,132) 128,950
Engineering, procurement RET HER
and construction U A 329,062 (276,457) 52,605
Provision of agency service FEHERERA
on sale of equipment 56,239 (39,500) 16,739
Provision of design services R RB A 40,036 (25,495) 14,541
Provision of technical and R AR
consultancy services AR A 170,720 (124,463) 46,257
Other revenue E A A 9,757 (7,530) 2,227
Revenue from contracts with ~ ERESARKA
customers 2,541,339 (551,577) 1,989,762
Finance lease income MEHEEWA 11,160 (168) 10,992
Total revenue WAL 2,552,499 (551,745) 2,000,754
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. WA ()
6.2 For the year ended 31 December 2019 6.2 HIL2019F 12 8311LEE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year EEHIE2019F 12 A31H IEHF
ended 31 December 2019 is as follows: BEWAZSHTWMT :
Power
generation Others Total
BEEL HAtb @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT ARETFT
Revenue from contracts EREFERAZBA
with customers ’R
Sales of electricity: BERA :
Basic electricity price ZFEBERA 956,356 — 956,356
Renewable energy subsidy Al A g RL
(Note) WA (H1aE) 667,604 — 667,604
Power plant operation and BEHETR
maintenance services HEEWA — 120,637 120,637
Engineering, procurement REF - RER
and construction I A - 29,114 29,114
Provision of design services RHBRET ARG UA — 15,117 15,117
Provision of technical and R R AR
consultancy services HUA — 14,885 14,885
Provision of agency service RIBIHERIBWA
on sale of equipment — 11,101 11,101
Other revenue H g A — 1,904 1,904
1,623,960 192,758 1,816,718
Finance lease income mEMREUWA — 6,870 6,870
Financing component interest Bt & B2 F B WA
revenue 12,334 — 12,334
Total revenue WA #aET 1,636,294 199,628 1,835,922

Note: Renewable energy subsidy is provided by the

relevant PRC government authorities to the wind

and solar power plants operating in the PRC,

subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions.

As further explained in Note 4, approval for the

registration in the List is required before the

allocation of renewable energy subsidy by the

relevant PRC government authorities.

HiaE <A BAEREIRFE BRI A R P B

EPISTHRN R BEIR AL ETE &
2B AR KGR BRI HA -
AN FE 4 RFAL - FE D BCAR BIIK
FFAERABRPIMRE 2 AT - /AR
FEB BN T AL -
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FEMBHRRMET
6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. WA ()
6.2 For the year ended 31 December 2019 6.2 EIL2019F 12831 LEE(4E)
(CONTINUED)
An analysis of timing of revenue recognition HERR P E R AIRIE AT R
for revenue from contracts with customers is as BESHAOTR -
follows:
Power
generation Others Total
BEE Hh @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFrr AREFT AREFT
Point in time: B EER -
Sales of electricity EBWA 1,623,960 — 1,623,960
Engineering, procurement BET - RER
and construction U A — 29,114 29,114
Provision of design services RERFTRB A — 15,117 15,117
Provision of technical and FE AR AT A
consultancy services AR UA — 14,885 14,885
Provision of agency service FEHERERA
on sale of equipment — 11,101 11,101
Other revenue Hapig A — 1,904 1,904
1,623,960 72,121 1,696,081
Over time: REERR
Power plant operation and B ETT M EE
maintenance services WA — 120,637 120,637
Revenue from contracts with HEREFARWA
customers 1,623,960 192,758 1,816,718
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

6.2 For the year ended 31 December 2019

(CONTINUED)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue

6. WA#E)

6.2 BHIE2019F 12 A31LLEE(E)

with the amounts disclosed in the segment 7 HEE o
information.
Segment
revenue Elimination Consolidated
SEWA 35 EXON
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT ARETFT
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREFEARKA
customers: R
Sales of electricity EBWA 1,623,960 — 1,623,960
Power plant operation and BHETR
maintenance services HEWA 201,841 (81,204) 120,637
Engineering, procurement RET  HER
and construction U A 142,958 (113,844) 29,114
Provision of agency service FEHERERA
on sale of equipment 13,653 (2,552) 11,101
Provision of design services TR IR U A 44,710 (29,593) 15,117
Provision of technical and R &
consultancy services R RIS A 96,043 (81,158) 14,885
Other revenue H A YA 1,904 — 1,904
Revenue from contracts with ~ ERESARKA
customers 2,125,069 (308,351) 1,816,718
Finance lease income MEHREWA 19,667 (12,797) 6,870
Financing component interest Bt & X% F B WA
revenue 12,334 — 12,334
Total revenue WA 5 2,157,070 (321,148) 1,835,922
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

6.3

186

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group’s revenue is mainly generated from
the sale of electricity, the provision of power
plant operation and maintenance services,
provision of agency service on sale of equipment,
the provision of design, technical and
consultancy services, engineering, procurement
and construction business and finance lease
income.

Revenue relating to the operation and
maintenance services is recognized over time
as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group as
the Group performs. Revenue for these services
is recognized based on input method which
recognizes the Group’s performance on the
basis of the time incurred by the Group, and in
the opinion of the directors, this input method
provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of
services.

Revenue relating to the sale of electricity is
recognized when control of the electricity has
been transferred, being at the point when
electricity is generated and transmitted to the
customer. Revenue from the provision of agency
service on sale of equipment is recognized
when the equipment have been delivered to the
customer’s specific location. Revenue from the
provision of design, technical and consultancy
services are recognized when the services
has been provided, being when the customer
acknowledges receipt of the Group’s drawing
designs and reports.

The revenue from the sale of electricity
comprises of basic electricity price and
renewable energy subsidy. The renewable
energy subsidy related to power plants not yet
registered in the List are classified as contract
assets. Such contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables upon the completion of the
registration in the List. More details are set out
in Note 23.

6.

LONE )

6.3 REFEIJEGRZBETEY

AEBERATZRAEERA - 1R
HEREZS MGERY - RBHLE
RIEIRTS - FRLRET - Bl ki
BR%5 - RET - B RIETARBE
HEWA -

RN E M RS 2 AR A R E N K
HIER  AATPEXMERAARSE
Bt 2 HEARBRRSEE - 5
LERIFU A Z FERERIRNOE - I
RASEZERAERGEER - 5
BEE7HHE - RRARRB T AME
ZIRBER 2 TAH -

ENHEWAZHEREENE &
KR 2 RHIEER - EEY
EZRRP R - REBHEEZRK
ERBBAZERARENREBEZX
AR EMBERMER o RaT R
A~ 50 R RE AR A A 2 HERE
ERNEPHANIAEEEEH IR
FHEIR G - RS RMEER
5 - WHERBMA -

EEWABEETEEBRALATH
ERERM RN - HR R AREANB
BECCHEMMEMA SRS
MBABBERAREE - HARE
EEENBETKELREARK
BHHE - BEEHIBRAME23 -
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HigA

An analysis of the Group's other income for the year RNEHMPA ZDFOT -

is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT

Interest revenue FLEUEA 10,964 9,605

Government Grants: BSHEE)

— Tax refunds (Note (i) — BBRE(H () 9,525 6,841
— Others (including amortization of — Hib(BIEHE39
deferred income in Note 39) PRI 2S5 ) 4,300 1,984

Guarantee income (Note( ii)) FERIA (BT 72 (i1)) 9,065 4,342

Rental income HE WA 5,920 1,166

Others HAith 1,567 7,731

41,431 31,669

Notes: Bzt -

() The amounts mainly represent refunds of value- () Z2BEXZERNTPEBBEANGZ
added tax and other taxes received from the PRC tax AR R H AT FORE -
authorities.

(i) ~ The amounts mainly represented guarantee fees (i) ZEeEIZRYUPBLELRRESH
earned for providing financial guarantees to two FERERELZ FERUA (5 40) -

associates (Note 40).
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Bt 35 R AR B

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

An analysis of other gains and losses, net is as follows:

8. HtWhmRER, #H

Hip s RERFE 2T

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Gain on disposal/de-registration of HEEHENBARZ
subsidiaries, net (Note 43(b)) Wz - 5
(Ktat43b)) 85,931 79,784
Gain/(loss) on disposal/de-registration of HEEHEAENEY
joint ventures, net (Note 43(c)) W,/ (E518) - F5E
(B1a£43(c) 24,594 (370)
Fair value gains on financial assets at BRAnBEFABRZ
FVTPL TREEZAAEE
HE) W 21,888 15,072
Exchange gain/(loss), net &5 s (BE) -
SRR 21,824 (2,791)
Fair value (losses)/gains on derivative AR EFRITESD 2
component of convertible loan (Note 36) AR BEEE(EE)
JWaas (15t 36) (5,771) 21,085
Write-down of property, plant and Wz - BB REERE
equipment (Note 17) (Hiat17) (23,427) —
Write-down of inventories FERE (3,669) —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERRE
equipment (Notes 43((d)) Z BB (K17t 43(d)) (4,239) (5,277)
Others Eh (804) (2,617)
116,327 104,886
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LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT 9. E=EHR{EEX

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEHT T
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognized on & R&EERE 2 (E@)
contract assets (Note 23) S TER(HaE23) (635) 6,970
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognized on  EWE SERFUREZ
on trade receivables (Note 24) (BE), TR
(H1zt24) (6,636) 4,312
Impairment loss on other receivables H A e YR IBR B
(Note 25) (Ma25) 16,970 29,469
Impairment loss on amounts due from JiE Uk B 1 ) BUOEDRE
associates — 2,307
Impairment loss recognized/(reversed) on  FEURA &> ¥ IERE
amounts due from joint ventures R,/ (HEE) 1,200 (2,498)
10,899 40,560

Details of impairment assessment of financial assets
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in

Note 49.

R2020F 12 A3 HILFESREEY
B E IS M 49 -
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 10. EEFEFNMXX(BEEEMS)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AREFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - -HFahl#Ee 343,200 268,812
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIREA — ERRM
plans (Note (i)) KETEI (BT () 26,317 39,666
Share-based compensation (Note 42) AR B EZE Z 5K
(Btat 42) 15,179 20,030
384,696 328,508
Less: Employee benefit expense capitalised i : B AL 1E B 1&F
(Note (ii)) F sz (A7 (i) (91,345) (75,345)
293,351 253,163
Notes: Bzt -
(i) Asat 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant (i)  P2020F12A31H  AEE®EAH

forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension scheme in future years
(2019: Nil).

(i) Employee benefit expense has been capitalised as
construction in progress under property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2020.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the current and prior year are
all directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 11.

RIRARRFEERASFERIZE
ROBY R (2019 « &) -

(i) M2020F12A831H EER/FMAX
BERNAADE BELEEBETZ

EREIR -

EEREHAT

AEBAFAR LFAEESHFALE
MBRES  HMeRBREMZ 11 229
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. BEERTRASTH

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the RNEBERTREBEE - BB EH
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules 7 FmBBREEDSTEH - BWEEWD
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as T
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BZE2020F512A31HLFE :
Employer's
contribution
toa
Share-based retirement
payment benefit
Name Fees Salary (Note (i)) scheme Total
BRAZE  BARERHE
#"E He e (HiE0) ZEIHR g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000
AEETT AREF7 AEETT AEEFR ARETT
Executive directors HTES
Liu Shunxing (Chairman) FIBR(2E) - 5,988 1,741 16 7,745
Liu Jianhong G ey

(Vice Chairperson) — 3,988 1,451 90 5,529
Yu Weizhou (Note ii) RN Bzt - 2,M 967 90 3,328
Gui Kai (Chief Executive TR ER)

Offiicer) (Note ii) (Hiztii) - 3,147 774 - 3,921
Niu Wenhui EiE - 2,676 774 90 3,540
Shang Li M - 1,203 774 123 2,100
Zhai Feng (Note iv) 2E(Mitiv) - 2,109 - 92 2,201
Non-executive directors:  ¥#{TEE
Wang Feng (Note vi) T&HEw) 32 — — — 32
Independent non- BUKHTES

executive directors:

Yap Fat Suan, Henry S 192 - 174 - 366
Jesse Zhixi Fang iy 192 - 174 - 366
Huang Jian Ef 192 - 174 - 366
Zhang Zhong s 192 - 174 - 366
Total am 800 21,382 7177 501 29,860
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1. ESRTRAREM &)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: HBZE2019F 12831 BILEEE -
Employer's
contribution
toa
Share-based retirement
payment benefit
Name Fees Salary (Note (i)) scheme Total
Riazs  REEHEE
#% g e (Wt () ZETEH ag
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFT ANEEFTL NEEFT ANREFT ANEEFTL
Executive directors HTES
Liu Shunxing (Chairman) 2B ) — 3,624 2,224 19 5,867
Liu Jianhong ARi(B2E)

(Vice Chairperson) - 3,265 1,854 144 5,263
Yu Weizhou (Chief Executive &M (778 #%)

Officer) (Note i) (W) — 2,527 1,237 144 3,908
Gui Kai (Note iif) wsl(Hitii) - 1,320 989 128 2,437
Niu Wenhui VR — 1,568 989 144 2,701
Shang Li Bk — 1,320 989 179 2,488
Non-executive director:  ¥HTES:

Wu Shaohua (Note v) RAEWsv) 2 — — — 32
Wang Feng (Note vi) T&Htv) 159 — _ _ 159
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors:
Yap Fat Suan, Henry ] 190 - 223 - 413
Jesse Zhixi Fang iy 190 - 223 - 413
Huang Jian Eh 190 - 223 - 413
Zhang Zhong RA 190 - 223 — 413
Total ke 951 13,624 9,174 758 24,507
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11.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) It represents amortization of the fair value of shares
award under the Scheme (Note 42) measured at the
grant date and charged to the profit or loss over the
reporting period.

(i) Mr. Yu Weizhou resigned as an executive director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect
from 18 August 2020.

(i)~ Mr. Gui Kai, an executive director, was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect
from 18 August 2020.

(iv)  Mr. Zhai Feng has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 16 January
2020.

(v) Mr. Wu Shaohua was appointed as an non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 9 February
2017 and resigned with effect from 28 February 2019.

(vi)  Mr.Wang Feng was appointed as an non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 28 February
2019.

Save as those emoluments presented above, no other
fees or emoluments were paid, have been or will be
paid to the independent non-executive directors in
respect of the current year (2019: nil).

The executive directors’ remuneration shown
above was for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

EERITHARTM &)

(if)

(iii)

(vi)

RREBEL B & 2 B R ARG
RE B2 TRERO ARE
EFF AR S HREERR A

MR202058 A18H » ML AR T
RABITES « 1THREH -

2020F8 A 18 HE » ARIIITEEE
JEEER T BITHRES -

BHREN202051 A16 HEEAR
FITTES °

2017F2A90B 8 RBELLEESL
FARNREEMITES © B2019F2
B 28 HEHT »

FIEFEN2019F2 A28 AEEAR
AERITES -

B ESCPRSIR 2 B 51 - AR F EEAE (A
Hpwes et &IBa N TEL
FEHITEE(2019: /) -

ERMTEREZ R AR EEARFM
AEEEH 2 RGHREM - LAIFRITE
EZHMNREERARRERZ RER
B o EiUBYIFMITEEZ WM EAE
RARBES 2 RIGIHRON -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. BEERATRASBEM 2)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the current and prior years, no directors of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments,
and no emoluments were paid to the directors of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

RERAREFE > ARBEBESRE
HAEREEAMHRH - BARARFRAAX
REEE X ERRMIEREINALAD
DA SR B2 B S A A BB 1B -

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BB
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Interest expenses on: FEXZH :

— Bank borrowings — IRITIERX 158,466 199,226
— Other borrowings — EMER 300,531 183,015

— Senior notes and bonds payable — BEZEBRESFZIE
(Note 35) RFRIE (K5 35) 116,905 130,331
— Convertible loan (Note 36) — B ER(AF36) 41,734 34,022
— Lease liabilities — HEEE 3,606 3,994
621,242 550,588
Less: Interest capitalised (Note) B FBER(H ) (216,822) (165,779)
404,420 384,809

Note:

During the year, borrowing costs have been capitalised at
various applicable rates ranging from 3.9% to11.76% (2019:
5.4% to 8.3%) per annum for qualified assets classified
as construction in progress under property, plant and

equipment.
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Hiat
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13.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging

the following:

13. FBRATISBLATER

BRATISEL AT A 2 F0RR T 5IS IR

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFITT
Cost of sales and services rendered 356 B on M ARG A AR
included: BIE:
Direct operating costs for power BWEECBFEET
generation DN 583,192 570,693
Cost of power plant operation and BRGET R ERTS
maintenance services AR 86,539 75,835
Cost of provision of design services FETAR TSR AR 5,269 5,693
Cost of provision of technical and By B 5 s AR 7 B AR
consultancy services 26,777 31,140
Cost of provision of agency service on BAEHERIBEAR
sale of equipment 9,876 6,549
Cost of engineering, procurement and A WERET
construction BN 46,259 22,535
Cost of finance lease EhEHERA 93 711
Cost of other revenue E A AR AR 1,695 1,686
759,700 714,842
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREEZ
equipment e 498,433 465,513
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEECHE 42,189 40,422
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hibfmp A 208 319
Total depreciation and amortization PrE N eE 540,830 506,254
Less: Amount capitalised as construction in J& - st A% - BE X
progress under property, plant and Rz ERIRE
equipment ZER e (4,818) (5,195)
Total depreciation and amortization FFABR 2 HTE R
charged to profit or loss 4azE 536,012 501,059
Amount included in cost of sales and FFAREIRTS MIES
services rendered Ip®Nc (515,424) (478,177)
Amount included in administrative FFAAEEERASEH
expenses 20,588 22,882
Auditor’s remuneration ZER S 3,200 3,510
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14. FIBHRAX

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Current tax EHFiE

— PRC corporate income tax — PP EMRER 79,107 45,012
— PRC withholding tax — FREITERL 11,090 490

Under-provision in prior years: BEFELFRES
PRC corporate income tax PP ERER 4,172 6,208
Deferred tax (Note 38) IR T (HT2F 38) (15,951) (12,623)
78,418 39,087

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been
made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising from Hong Kong during the year (2019:
nil)

PRC corporate income tax is provided for at the rate
of 25% (2019: 25%) for the year of the profits for the
PRC statutory financial reporting purpose, adjusted for
those items which are not assessable or deductible for
the PRC corporate income tax purpose.

Taxation arising from other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
During the year, no provisions for income tax have
been made in other jurisdictions as the Group had no
assessable profit generated from other jurisdictions
(2019: nil).

The law of the PRC on corporate income tax provides
that qualified dividend income between two “resident
corporates” that have a direct investment relationship
is exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such
dividends will be subject to 5% to 10% withholding
tax under the tax treaty or the domestic law. The
Group is currently subject to withholding tax at 5% to
10%.

REBRAFERNEEBRELTMH
RHEM MAUBBNNEGHAIREE
(2019 : f&) o

HABEEHMSEREmEME - PRCEA
BHIZBAFE R 225% (2019
25%) 2 B EREFHREE - WREFE
EFMBHATE  REEMBR AR
ZIEBELFAE -

REMAEAERMEEZHBEERE
BREREBEZBITBETE - AFEAR
SEEREEMEER 2 BH W -
AW RELHMBAILAEBERZHE
(20194 : #&) -

REBEFEARAMBEEERSTIER
o EERRBEBETMEIEREXRIZ
BETMERTFZBE DA AR -
BRI REVEREXBEAER - HH
Pt B 5% E 10% FT{SH - K&
B AFREEERNS% E10% FEHZ
MIE e
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities, in respect of the PRC
withholding tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these profits, have not been recognized
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is

14. FIEHHAX(E)

probable that such profits will not be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to

the profit before income tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

AN X B PR I P B 8 B 2 RBBUR
HAEREAABARZRRRAETED
FoE MR - Bt R RE LB
e N2 BEBEINRE B2 BLEMREH
BERARER o

FEMBHAXBEABRMER MR
BEANEFMERAT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Profit before income tax PR PR 1S T AT R A 762,626 652,206
Tax calculated at domestic income &b ML & 5 & 25%
tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%) (2019 : 25%) (K5t (i)
(Note (i) FTE 190,657 163,052
Effect of preferential tax rates of ETHBRARERHRR L
certain subsidiaries (Note (ii) (H1aE (i) (25,633) (6,567)
Tax effect of share of results of NEBERTIREEDERR
associates and joint ventures 2T & (28,570) (38,619)
Income not subject to tax MR WA (16,143) (11,645)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2
purposes 29,794 23,215
Under-provision in prior years WAFELFHEN R 4,172 6,208
Effects of tax holiday on assessable  FAH BIGE{ AL 32 FT B8 A 7] fE
profits of subsidiaries established AR ET Rz B2
in the PRC (Note (iii) (B2 (ifi)) (143,364) (142,748)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBBERB 2 HIBELE
recognized 37,851 44,210
Utilization of previously FRBTRERZHEBER
unrecognized tax losses and EREER
unrecognized temporary
differences (10,544) (14,264)
Tax effect of temporary differences  FRIERE R4 E R Y FIES 2
not recognized 29,108 15,755
Recognition of withholding tax in RNEEHER 2 TBINHIE
current year 11,090 490
78,418 39,087
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(i) The domestic tax rate (which is PRC corporate income
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the
Group is substantially based is used.

(i) Certain subsidiaries resided in western China or
engaged in high-technology industry are entitled
to preferential income tax rate of 9% and15%,
respectively (2019: 9% and 15% respectively).

(iiiy  Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC are entitled to preferential tax treatments
including three years exemption followed by three
years of a 50% tax reduction. The first year exemption
started from 2015 to 2020 (2019: 2014 to 2019).

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB673,405,000 (2019:
RMB604,293,000) by the weighted average number of
8,229,548,000 (2019: 8,365,771,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year, after adjusting the effect of
shares repurchased and held by the Company’s share
award scheme.

The calculation of the weighted average number of
ordinary shares is as follows:

14. FIEHHAX(E)

15.

Hfat

i) AEECHRELEEMEEENRZ
BRI EEEMSHE)

iy WOIBRPEABLERNESEH
RMEEX 2B REIDBZES9%
15% 2 EBFTSHE (20194 : 9% AN
15%) °

(iiy AEEBRFTBEANLETFHBEARES
REER BE-ZFeBBRREEE
SFEERE—FIE AL —F
#2015%220204F B 18(2019 : 2014
Z2019%)

BREF
EXZRER

EXGRAFESBBARARARGN 2
B ERErEECREZEE B
7 a) % R A s T AR 6 673,405,000 7T
(20194 + AR 604,293,000 7T ) K A
FARNBBEITEBRZ MMEFY R
8,229,548,000 f& (2019 £ : 8,365,771,000
BRFTEBH -

I E BB ENT

2020 2019

‘000 shares ‘000 shares

Fhig FHR

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1 A1 B#{72 T@mA% 8,504,575 8,550,585
Effect of shares repurchased/ Bl KR TFRD 2 FE

unvested (Note 41) (Hiat41) (275,027) (184,814)

Weighted average number of shares Z&77A% {5 HN#E T 159 &
in issue 8,229,548 8,365,771
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares from the share award
scheme and the convertible loan.

15. BREBRN(E)
BEESRERN
SRBERFRLABRBETERERZ

AHE T35 B RER IR SRR A 8 &
AR ERA AT AT L BREE -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AEEFIT
Earnings: wmA
Earnings for the purpose of basic BEXREGREF Z %
earnings per share 673,405 604,293
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary  EEHEEBE L BRMH ZFE
shares:
Adjustments on convertible loan AR E R B
(Note 36) (K17t 36) 47,505 24,837
Earnings for the purpose of BEERARZmF
diluted earnings per share 720,910 629,130
2020 2019
‘000 shares ‘000 shares
Fig Fhg
Number of shares: BRDE:
Weighted average number of EXREGREF 2 EBKkD 2
ordinary shares for the purpose hniEFE
of basic earnings per share 8,229,548 8,365,771
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary  EE#EEBE L BERH ZZE
shares:
Share award scheme I 0 R E) 79,515 45,381
convertible loan AR E K 862,610 758,883
Weighted average number of BREE RN 2 EiBRmE
ordinary shares for the purpose Fi58
of diluted earnings per share 9,171,673 9,170,035
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16. DIVIDEND

16. RE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETT AREFT

Dividends for ordinary shareholders ~ RAFERNARR 7 E B E

of the Company recognized as IR B DB HER

distribution during the year:
2019 Final — HK$0.025 (2018:
HK$0.02) per share

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 of HK$0.03 per ordinary share has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and
is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming general meeting (2019: final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of
HK$0.025 per ordinary share has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and approved by the
shareholders at the general meeting held on 1 June
2020).
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2019F K — §/%0.025/87T
(2018 : &M0.0287T) 190,971 149,673

RARERRE - AR ERCIREH
1F2020F 12 A31 HIEFEZ KK E
FEBAX0.0387T - WBRENENEE
TZRERBFRE LHE2019 : KA
RIEECIREE12019F 12 A3181E
FEZARBRESR0.0258T - WE
AR R 2020F 6 B 1 HE 1T 2R R E
FRELHE) -



2020 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE VBRI

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. W% - BERRE

Plant, Office
Leasehold  machinery and furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
Br  RENERE HE BARRE HiGE HE BRIR £5
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABRTE  ARBFR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARRFL AR
Cost: WA
Asat 1 January 2020 0051818 719,068 21,863 1,540,611 1338 54,083 2,027,610 10,441,573
Additions HE 9,19 - 20,247 3176 108 2,809,635 2,909,332
Disposals (Note 43(d) e 430) - - (5,867) (376) (5,807) (1,783) (13,833)
Reclassifications Epd 175,976 - 2,641,952 784 - (2.818.712) -
Disposal of subsiciares RENELT
(Note 43(b) (z43) (218.270) - (2,517.973) (5,.283) (3,611) (63,663) (2,808,300)
As at 31 December 2020 20205128318 685,966 27,863 1,678,970 10,639 51,741 2,013,087 10,528,212
Less: accumulted depreciation: 7+ EstiE
Asat 1 January 2020 A00%51818 102,941 26,158 1,006,769 46,393 31,m - 1219333
Charge for the year TEERY 87 1,705 438,419 231 1M - 198,433
Disposals (Note 43(d) e 430) - - (628) (319) (5,308) - (6,255
Disposal of subsidiares RENELA
(Note 43(b) (iz43) (32,950) - (503,792) (2,69 (3,100) - (542,532)
Asat}December 200 H2WENANA %718 863 940,768 65,695 3935 - R
Less: accumulated impaiment loss 5+ BEAE %R
As at 1 January 2020 R0F1 718 - - - - - - -
Impairment loss charged for e~ AEsHE 2 AER%
year (Note (d) i) (44) - (21,260) - - 2.13) (23.427)
Asat3December2020  HNERANE (#4) - (21.60) - - () B4)
Net carrying value: FHFE
As at 31 December 2020 HN0E1F31A 587,204 - 6,716,942 4,94 15,812 2,010,964 9,335,866
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GARBREME
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 17. V% BERRE(E)
Plant, Office
Leasehold ~ machinery and fumiture Motor ~ Construction
Buldings  improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
BT  REMERE HRE MARRE Hare nE kEIR %
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
NRETT NFRETT ANREFT ANREFT NREFT NEEFT NFEFT
Cost: ARG
As at 1 January 2019 R019E1818 824,261 27,863 8,209,447 70,783 58,854 203,97 11,224135
Additions HE 75 - 14,884 4,205 5377 1917259 1,942,481
Disposals (Note 43(d)) L&) (11,722) - (9,598) (389) (4529) 29) (26,259)
Reclassifications Epd 125,653 - 1,707,810 107 - (1833,570) -
Disposal of subsiciares RENELT
(Note 43(b) (W) (122,141) - (1,209.271) (981) (5,503) (88,977) (1426,873)
Recassfied to held for sale ENRERARE
(Note 16) (i 16) (97,739) - (1,172,661) (1391) (120) - (1.271.911)
Asat 31 December 2019 Ha019E 128318 719,068 g 150611 n3% S0 20600 104415%

Less: Accumulated depreciation: 7 - E5HTE :

Ao at 1 lanuary 2019 R19E1518 83992 2,124 748,928 3438 34547 - 97,09
Charge for the year TEERY 393 3 410,131 14,509 6,916 - 165,513
Disposals (Note 43(d)) e W40 (5,290) - (5,444) (321) (3704 - (14,759)
Disposal of subsiciares RENELT

(ote 43(b) (W4 (£434) - (é1,675) (679) (672 - (¢7.460)
Reclssified to held fo sale ENRERANE

(Note 16) (W1s) (5,250 - (105.171) (55¢) (15) - (1109%0)
As at 31 December 2019 R19E127318 102,941 26158 1,006,769 46,393 3701 - 1219333

Net carrying value: EHSE

s at 31 December 2019 R20198128318 616,127 1,705 6,533,842 25,945 17,011 2007610 922,240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE VBRI

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

For the above items of property, plant and
equipment, except for construction in progress,
depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:
Buildings 20 to 25 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of
improvements useful lives of 5
years and lease
terms
Plant, machinery and 20 years
equipment
Office furniture and 3 to 5 years
fixtures
Motor vehicles 5 years

For the year ended 31 December 2020,
depreciation of RMB3,301,000 (2019:
RMB2,958,000) has been capitalised as
construction in progress under property, plant
and equipment.

As at 31 December 2020, certain buildings
and power plant equipment with an aggregate
net carrying value of RMB389,431,000 (2019:
RMB473,881,000) and RMB5,675,261,000
(2019: RMB5,047,724,000), respectively, have
been pledged to banks and certain financial
institutions to secure banking facilities and other
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 33 and
Note 34).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of certain machines in
other segment and as a result an impairment
loss of RMB21,260,000 was recognized in
“Other gains and losses, net”. The estimate of
recoverable amount was based on the machine’s
fair values less costs of disposal by reference to
the quoted price. The fair value on which the
recoverable amount is based on is categorized as
a Level 3 measurement.

17. W% BERREE)

(a)

MEME  BERSRE  BERT
FR5h + 47 B TR A AT 62 PR 4E A4 L
RARERES BEERIBEET
T

BF
HEMERE

20F 254
BAFEAFRSF
iRl Y

BR55 - HE &
Gy
WAERL  3ESF

HE2020F 12 31 BEE - W% -
B RBBE TN CAREIRZAR
{bIrELE A AR 3,301,000
(2019 : AR¥2,958,0007T) °

2020128318 & &
AT hEMESREEBEERRE
HERGEEEUNEFRLMGB
AEERMZEERRFES A
E #389,431,0007T(2019 1 A
R #473,881,0007C ) & A R #
5,675,261,0007t(2019 : A R
5,047,724,000 7T ) (Bt 7£33 & K
5£34) °

MR2020F12 A31H A& EHF
it T HM DS KL 2 i m
o BRT ARKK21,260,000
TZBEBKREAIEMEBEZEF
B o ATl £ 5B 2 il FF E AR
ZARBERELEZREZREK
Ko A EISRBEAKIBE 2 AR EE
WHRBEAEZEE -
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A M| RME
18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FHAKEEE
Power plant Leasehold Total
equipment lands
BERRE HELH WA
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFIT
As at 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 100,389 448,427 548,816
Net carrying amount FREHE
As at 31 December 2020 2020612 A31H
Carrying amount BRMEEE 98,511 405,479 503,990
For the year ended BZE2019412A31H
31 December 2019 IEFE
Depreciation charge TEXH 14,025 26,397 40,422
For the year ended BZE2020612A31H
31 December 2020 IEFE
Depreciation charge TEXH 15,314 26,875 42,189
Expense relating to leases REZEMRSHMBRX
of low-value assets — 492 492
Total cash outflow for HEReMNERE
leases (Note (ii) (B3 (i) 38,396 100,153 138,549
Note: /}/?Lgéf .

204

@)

(if)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB123,576,000 (2019: RMB98,690,000).

Amount includes payments of principal and interest
portion of lease liabilities, for low value assets and
payments of lease payments on or before lease
commencement date (including leasehold land). These
amounts could be presented in operating, investing or
financing cash flows.

For both years, the Group leases various machineries
and leasehold lands for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 2 years to 49 years,
which do not have extension or termination options.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities
are set out in notes 37 and 49.

(@)

(if)

RAFR FREBEEESNARE
123,576,000 7(2019 : AR 98,690,000)

CHERHERABRAEND HER
BARZAXNEAENRZEEERE
RAF(BFEEE L) - ELSEA
ERELE  REIRERSRTINR -

RMER - AEBEEE TH AR
RtwtFrEgesm HEARZ
EE IR AMFEZM+AF - ETH
REIEPERZE - BhAaRZEERE
BEWGRE  RETRZ &R -
S0 R E A & HARR B YAl N AT R
REE AEEEAARAZEEETE
BRBITHIR -

HEBBZHEBHRY M BEHNM
FE37 K49 -
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mEMBHRRME
19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BRBEE
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
BE HtEEEE #zE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT AR TFT
Net carrying value as at M2019F1H1H
1 January 2019 ZEEmFE 1,000,060 4,229 1,004,289
Amortization 5 — (319) (319)
Disposal subsidiaries HEMB A RSN
(Note 43(b)) (K17#43(b)) (56,745) — (56,745)
Reclassified to held for sale BN EEHAFE (42,411) — (42,411)

Net carrying value as at 31 720194 12 A

December 2019 31 HZ BREHE 900,904 3,910 904,814
Amortization B — (208) (208)
Disposal subsidiaries HEHRBAREH

(Note 43(b)) (Ktat43(b)) (27,347) (3,000) (30,347)
Net carrying value as at 202012 H31H

31 December 2020 ZAREHE 873,557 702 874,259
Goodwill (GRS
Goodwill mainly arose from the acquisition of China HEZHARKEPRIREZERER AR
Wind Power Holdings Limited (“China Wind Power") ([HPERE ) RENE AR (G
and its subsidiaries (collectively “China Wind Power AEEE | )mES - WEE2007F8 A
Group”) which was completed on 1 August 2007. TAEK - FEEEEEREREER
China Wind Power Group was engaged in investment ®E - REH - RIE - EIUARERET
in wind power plants, engineering, procurement, R HecE -

construction and power plant operations and
maintenance.

Upon application of HKFRS 8 Operating Segment MR2009F EAB AU BmELEDFES
in 2009, the relevant goodwill was reallocated to SR ED R HEEERET SR
the respective groups of CGUs, which represent the EYHERSENEMEE ReELE
lowest level within the Group at which the relevant UAARKREASERNL R TRNHNERE
goodwill is monitored for internal management B AEMEETEE  BTRRE
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment. EREN Bz ZEER - EFDEER
The reallocation was based on the relative value of BB eEL B A 2 BEEE -

the relevant groups of CGUs.
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ma

19.

206

Bt 35 R AR B

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of goodwill are allocated to the

19. BEEEE)

BEZEEESEIEIEE TINER

groups of CGUs as follows: CIREELBMNEAD -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Investment in wind power plants B EEHRE 799,654 827,001
Engineering, procurement and FET - HERMET
construction (“EPC Business”) (TEPC I %7) 75,800 75,800
Power plant operations and BIHIET R HEE
maintenance 60,687 60,687
936,141 963,488
Less: Impairment OB ORME (62,584) (62,584)
873,557 900,904

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of

goodwill and determined that the goodwill has not

been impaired, apart from the impairment provided

for the EPC Business CGUs in the prior year as

explained below.

AEEEFERBZAILKRERE - BRT
TRBZEPCEBREELEUENE
FHR MBI EEXEELER
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ma

19.

Bt 35 R AR B

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED)
Investment in wind power plants CGUs

The recoverable amount is determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on
the financial forecast covering the forecast period
and pre-tax discount rate of 14.49% for operating
projects and 15.16% for under-construction projects
(2019: 14.56% for operating projects and 15.53%
for under-construction projects). Cash flows beyond
the forecast period are extrapolated at zero% (2019:
zero%) growth rate. The cash flows and discount rate
reflect assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the relevant CGUs. Key assumptions
include estimated sales volumes and on-grid tariffs
from the Group’s existing and forthcoming prospects
and discount rate. The management determined these
key assumptions based on past performance and
expectation on market development.

EPC Business CGUs

The recoverable amount was determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering the forecast
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was
15% (2019: 15%) and cash flows beyond the five-
year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of zero% (2019: zero%). Key assumptions include
estimated revenue growth rate and discount rate. The
management determined these key assumptions based
on past performance and expectation on market
development.

During the year of 2017, the directors of the Company
determine that the scale of the EPC Business will be
reduced in the foreseeable future and the Group
will principally focus on the provision of design and
consultancy services. Accordingly, an impairment loss
of RMB62,584,000 was recognized in the 2017.

19. BEEEE)

mE(E)

RERBIREMELELET

TW@ BIRARBERD SR ARG

HoEMARERER U BKE
B E S 18 B 2R A 14.49% 2 T Al
FIRE - HERZBEBKRA1516% 2
FRATHT IR R (2019 WES BB HA
14.56% 2B ATITIR X - HWAEREIEE &K
FA15.53% <2 FARIHTIRE) - HBiBTE R HA
MzBERENZ(2019: B)ERERRE
HE - RERMTHRERRETMSERE
EEYEBREeE L BT ETHER
BzBE- FARREIPEAEERER
KRREEBFEMNEE, FREE - BTER
FRE - TEEEARNBALRRETS
IR 2 TEAITETE = LRI R A% o

Rt FKEREIREELEN

ReELBMIWERSEERESME

AAEHZEREEMREE  MZRE
MIBRDERSREEEHECTBKIE
B-ReRBARBZBRAFTRES
15% (2019 : 15%) - @A FH 2R
© 7 BlIE 0% 12 K K & i k(2019 ¢
0%) - FRBREBEHARAEERR
FEE - EEERBEBERENHIHHE
ERIBEHEEZFARRK

M2017F  RAIEEEGRABEAER
ZHEIREE BRI TESZRES
B EEGEEEPERERTRE
MRS L o At 2017 FEERT AR
# 62,584,000 ST Z BB K -
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19.

208

Bt 35 R AR B

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED)
Power plant operations and maintenance CGUs

The recoverable amount of the CGUs was determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the
forecast period approved by senior management.
The pretax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 15% (2019: 15%) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated, using a
growth rate of zero% (2019: zero%). Key assumptions
include estimated service revenue, expected profit
margin and discount rate. The management
determined these key assumptions based on past
performance and expectation on market development.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, any
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the CGUs' carrying amounts to exceed their
respective recoverable amounts.

19. BEEEE)

e (E)

ERMELREET T ELEN

ReELBMAIKESEENESRE
AEEZEREEMRET - MZRE
BRI DERSREREMNEZVHE
Ho-RenBRERMRAITIREIS%
(2019 : 15%) * AFHZHE S RAIR
0% 2 18R = HEHMHK(2019: 0%) °
AR B eEMREYRA - HEBRAE
RITRE BEEBENBEEERTS
BERBHBEET T ZEHRMEE -

ARBEERR/EFNEANRATREDSE
BAREBRAIEZELEZEBEEHTSEHY
ReERETZRAEBRLEARES
B e
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ma

20.

Bt 35 R AR B

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH 20.

ASSOCIATES

The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement

of financial position are as follows:

REE QR 2B

EGAEERBRTER ZSEWT ¢

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETFr
Non-current assets kRBEE
Cost of investment in associates JiA RN B § 7 N 424,647 414,188
Share of post-acquisition results and JEEUREEE EE R E M2 M
other comprehensive income, net Wz - MRS
of dividends 52,167 57,884
Share of net assets of associates DEEERNB L FEE
(Note (i) (e 3) 476,814 472,072
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from associates JrE B 2 B FROR
(Note (ii)) (H1aE (i) 11,038 5,112
Other receivables from associates FEUS B & N B E b FE
(Note (iii)) (BT (i) 32,419 12,906
Finance lease receivables RERE R 36,710 23,423
80,167 41,441
Less: A
Allowance for amounts due from B2 N\ R FRIB AR A
associates (2,307) (2,307)
77,860 39,134

209



2020 £ %
HEHEREEERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH 20. REE AT ZEzR (&)
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: B
(i) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the 0) 2020 % 2019128318 =&
principal associates are as follows: N =2 - il N
Place of establishment Proportion of ownership
and operations and kind interest and voting rights held
Name of associates of legal entity by the Group Principal activities
BRI ES ]
i INCEY RiRERESE AEEBRRREELA TEEH
2020 2019
Changtu Liaoneng Xiexin Wind Power Co., Ltd.  The PRC, Sino-foreign equity 25% 25%  Wind power plant
joint venture investment and operation
EEESHEBRNETER, R RSRBRE BERRERET
Jilin Province Zhanyu Wind Power Assets The PRC, limited company 17.15% 17.15%  Wind power plant
Management Co., Ltd. (Note) investment and operation
EMEERESEELEERER, TR YN (it BERRE LET
Chaoyang Century Concord Wanjia Wind Power  The PRC, limited company 30% 30%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. investment and operation
FHHEERANEEERA hE - FRAA BERRE RET
Fuxin Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Fuxin Taihe"”) The PRC, limited company 30% 30%  Wind power plant
investment and operation
ENREBNEEERDA(EHRS]) - BRAF FERRE BT
Daoxian Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC, limited company 25% 25%  Wind power plant
investment and operation
R AN REARAA hE - BRAF RERRERE
Daoxian Jingtang Century Concord Wind Power  The PRC, limited company 25% 25%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. investment and operation
EEERARNEBARAA HE - ARAA RERRE BT
Fuxin Union Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, Sino-foreign equity 24.5% 24.5%  Wind power plant
joint venture investment and operation
BHBARNEEERLNA hE - R ELE AERRE RET
Fuxin Century Concord-shenhua Wind Power The PRC, Sino-foreign equity 24.5% 24.5%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. joint venture investment and operation
EHRERARNEEARAT R NS ERE BERRE RET
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mEMBRERME

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

Even though the Group holds less than 20 percent
of the voting power of this investee, the Group
demonstrates significant influences on this investee by
holding a seat on the board of directors for a board
with 10 members and the 10 members each represents
respective shareholders of this investee, and the Group
is the second highest percentage in total shareholding
of the investee while the largest shareholder hold
18.55% equity interest in this investee.

Amounts due from associates represent trade
receivables and are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable based on terms of the relevant contracts.

The ageing analysis of the above trade receivables net

20.

REENR 2 EH (&)

(if)

(%)
BIEAREBARRERARRERED
R20%  ANEEREE AT ABR

W ERRCEAFE SN £EF
BI10BKEBFE—FL - MI10BKE
B-RAURRBREESERE A&
ERFEREEARBEREE -_"SB
DLt ME&xEB DA 18.55% °

IR R B R

Y S RNAE S
ZIRMEBANOEZNR

R B BIWIE
EEHEE -

ERBEZAH 2 LB S EEINREE

of allowance for credit losses, based on the invoice FIBABEBRIBZEBRSTHT -
date, is as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR Fr
Within 3 months 3MEAR 8,731 1,696
3 to 6 months 3261AA — 317
6 to 12 months Z1218A — 475
Over 1 year 16U E — 317
8,731 2,805
Other receivables due from associates are unsecured, (i) HAEWREE AR NIEAEETE
interest-free, non-trade in nature and repayable on R28 - EESREETFERE

demand.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of associates

Set out below is the summarized unaudited financial
information for Fuxin Taihe, a principal associate
of the Group in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, prepared under HKFRSs which is accounted
for using the equity method.

20. REHE DT z#H(E)

EABE QT 2B EMBR

TRINRERM GRS ERRAETRE
REZBMERNRBRFZA(KARAES
RRZABRBAEEZIEHRZRA)
ERREERAMBEM

Fuxin Taihe =F 3=
Summarized statement of

financial position EEAGERHEM 2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Current assets MEEE 247,615 234,238
Non-current assets IEREEE 477,327 508,716
Current liabilities mBEE (52,986) (56,744)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (204,100) (246,900)
Net assets BEFE 467,856 439,310
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mEMBRERME

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH 20. REAZE AT RS E)
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of associates EARBE ARSI EZ)
(CONTINUED)
Fuxin Taihe (CONTINUED) BiFEL(E)

Summarized statement of

profit or loss and other REBER

comprehensive income Hih 2 KRk gt 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Revenue WA 102,962 109,167
Depreciation and amortization e REE (34,450) (37,547)
Finance costs B 7% X AR (13,323) (15,972)
Other expenses HEmfx (10,164) (9,892)
Profit before income tax PR PS5 AT A 45,025 45,756
Income tax expense PRSI X (11,479) (11,609)

Profit and other comprehensive REERMRAMEEKR
income for the year BEE 33,546 34,147

Dividend received from the associate ZNEE U BB N FIR% 2

during the year 2,324 —
Share of profit and other B A R H A 2

comprehensive income by the WD E8

Group 10,064 10,244
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH 20. REENTIZES(Z)
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of associates BEABE AT B ERBM(EZ)
(CONTINUED)
Fuxin Taihe (CONTINUED) EBFEA(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial LA A EA M SR PE
information to the carrying amount of the interest in RN ENREREREZHEN
the associate recognized in the consolidated financial T
statements:
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Net assets of Fuxin Taihe as at EHFAN12A3182
31 December EEFE 467,856 439,310

The Group's shareholding in Fuxin REBEFREFRE 2R

Taihe 30% 30%
The Group's share of net assets of ~ AEBEEILHENTAEZFEE

Fuxin Taihe 140,357 131,793
Unrealised profits, net REBRRF - 558 (2,158) (2,001)

Carrying amount of the Group’s ZAEBREHFHREERZ

interest in Fuxin Taihe BREE 138,199 129,792
Set out below is, in aggregate, the carrying amounts Tl AKREBEA#EREAR ZRE [
of the Group’s interests in all individually immaterial B E A E NG 2 EREEMESE -
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method.

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBETT

Aggregate carrying amount of REEEEBERRERACK
the Group's interests in these EEE
associates 338,615 342,280

The Group's share of (loss)/profit FEEAREE 2 AFE(EE),/

and other comprehensive income i ) R EAth 2 T U s 48 R
for the year (14,051) 7,162
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21.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES

The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position are as follows:

21.

REELE I EE

FAREERABKRTHEIAZSENOD

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current assets FREEE
Cost of investment in joint ventures & &> 2% AR 1,417,062 1,462,199
Share of post-acquisition results and  JE{5 UK BE 18 48 I H b 2 mE U
other comprehensive income, net &= FIRARE
of dividends received 92,879 197,571
Share of net assets of joint ventures B A EDEEEFE
(Note (i)) (K152 (1)) 1,509,941 1,659,770
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from joint ventures FElE B EFIA
(Note (ii) (K132 (i) 36,345 43,236
36,345 43,236
Less: B -
— Allowance for amounts due — EWEE D EFIBEER
from joint ventures (Note (i) B (17 i) (2,181) (981)
34,164 42,255
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to joint ventures JER & EERIE (4,873) (53,943)
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 21.
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

REEREzBE(E)

Notes: Bt -

2020 2019412 A31H - £ &
AHOEHEMT -

(i) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the (i)
principal joint ventures are as follows:

216

Place of Proportion Proportion of
establishment of ownership voting right
and operations and interest held by held by
Name of joint ventures kind of legal entity the Group the Group Principal activities
ERMALR
RELEER EXMERERERER rEERECEELS FEEGERERLA ITER
2020 2019 2020 2019
Jilin CWP-Milestone Wind Power Co.,Ltd. The PRC, limited company 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
and operation
EHERGRRNEEARARA hE BRAA RERRE RET
Erlianhaote Changfeng Century Concord The PRC, limited company 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Wind Power Exploiture Co., Ltd. and operation
CEERREBEESFEERAT HE ARAR FSRiTE RET
Jilin Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
and operation
ENEERNEEERAA HE - BRAT RERRE LB
Tongliao Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
and operation
BRFRENETERAA TE - BRAT RERRERET
Mengdong Century Concord New Energy The PRC, limited company 32.16% 32.16% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Co., Ltd. and operation
SRBAMERERAR HE - ARAR BEmRERET
Gansu Guazhou Century Concord Wind The PRC, limited company 51.45% 51.45% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Power Co., Ltd. and operation
FRIARAENSEERAT hE - BRAT BERRARENT
Suzhou Century Concord Wind Power Co.,  The PRC, limited company 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Ltd. and operation
BMBARNEEERAT TE - ERAA EEFRE RET
Xiaoxian Century Concord Wind Power Co.,  The PRC, limited company 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Ltd. and operation
BERRENEEERAA HE BRARA RS/ RET
Jianghua Yao Autonomous County Century  The PRC, limited company 59.3% 59.3% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment

Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.
TERERREHAENEEERAT

HE - BRAT

and operation

BERRERET
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mE VBRI

21.

WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the
principal joint ventures are as follows:

Re&

Hiat (%)

(0)

¥ s (E)

2020 2019412 A31H - £ &
AHOEHEMT -

Proportion Proportion of
Place of of ownership voting right
and operationsand interst held by held by
Name of joint ventures kind of legalentity the Group the Group Principal activities
ERALR
RELEAR EXMERERERER rEERECEELS FEERERERLA ITER
2020 2019 2020 2019
Jingmen Century Concord Wind Power The PRC, limited company 59.3% 59.3% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Co., Ltd. and operation
FRGARNEEERAA TE - ARAF RERRELET
Hebi Century Junlong Wind Power Co., Ltd.  The PRC, limited company 59.3% 59.3% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
and operation
BEGLAERNEEARAA HE - ARAR REFRERET
Yantai Yihao New Energy Development The PRC, limited company 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Co., Ltd. and operation
EEERMERREARLA HE - ARARA RERRE RET
Taipusigi Century Concord-Shenhua Wind -~ The PRC, Sino-foreign equity 49% 49% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
Power Investment Co., Ltd. joint venture and operation
KESHEOERARNEERARRAR 78 PhaELE RERRERET
Taipusigi Union Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 51% 51% 50% 50%  Wind power plant investment
and operation
RESERERNEEARAA HE - ARAR BERTEARET
Wuchuan County Yihe Wind Power The PRC, limited company 46% 46% 50% 50%  Wind powerplant investment
Co., Ltd. and operation
HIESRRNEEERAA HE - ARAR BEmRE RET
Sugian Century Concord The PRC, limited company - 49% - 50%  Solar power plant
New Energy Co.,Ltd. (Note 43(c)) Investment and operation
BEGAMBEERAA hE - BRAT (it R ERRE RET
43(c)
Tianchang Century Concord The PRC, limited company — 49% — 50%  Wind power plant Investment
Wind Power Co. Ltd. (Note 43(c)) and operation
REBERNETERAF HE - ERAF (it BEFREREN
43(c))
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

Amounts due from joint ventures included
trade receivables from joint ventures amounted
RMB16,431,000 (2019: RMB41,202,000), which
were netted of impairment loss of RMB2,181,000
(2019: RMB981,000), are unsecured,
and repayable according to the terms of the relevant
contracts. The remaining balances of RMB17,733,000
(2019: RMB1,053,000) are unsecured,
and repayable on demand.

interest-free

interest-free

The movements in impairment loss on trade receivables

from joint ventures during the year are as follow:

21.

REE

(i)

¥ s (E)

(#)

FtiHSZA%ﬁ%mIE BIEAEDE R

FRFRINBM AR B S AR 2,181,000
75(2019¢ © AR #981,0007T ) 14 7%
%8 AR ¥ 16,431,00070(2019 : AR
41,202,0007T) © % @ FE M PER -
R BWIRREE REITHEE - FIRESHE
AR #17,733,00070(20194F + ARME
1,053,000 7T ) AHEEAER - 28 KA
IRESRKEE o

AEERELEREE
REHHERWT

ZHERER

Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)

EEFESANEREAEX
(B A= FRE)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT ARBFr
At 1 January HM1A1H 981 —
Impairment recognized during the NEATERRE R X
year, net 1,200 2,502
Write-off during the year NERIZ 8 — (1,521)
At 31 December W12 A31H 2,181 981

An ageing analysis of the above trade receivables from
joint ventures, net of allowance for credit losses based
on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEREBZ=AH LilEFEWER
BREABREFEZRBROTET ¢

218

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFr

Within 3 months 3EA A 6,603 9,103
3 to 6 months 3%6MEA 838 915
6 to 12 months 6= 121EA 1,634 2,113
Over 1 year 1F LA E 7,356 29,071
16,431 41,202
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mEMBRERME

21.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of joint
ventures

The Group’s joint ventures are involved in either wind
or solar power plant investments and operations and
related activities in the PRC, and each joint venture
involved in wind or solar power plant investments and
operations has similar risk and return. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company have considered that
it is appropriate to aggregate the disclosures in
accordance with HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities and present the summarised financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures engage in
the same principal activities on an aggregate basis.

Summarized aggregate financial information of the

21.

REEREzBE(E)

BELEZHMBESHE

AEEZALEEETEBERNEERE
RAOHAGREHBEISIRE - EE KA
BEH SRRNEIKAGREEESED
XEARURRRD®R - FiEL - NAF]
EEZRABEELERREBYBRE
HRIFE12RA ML m 2 KEETE
HEBEEEAHER L2RALELRE
BUBELREED -

ARERERBEBNEBZABLE

Group’s joint ventures engaged in wind power plant I RRETEAINT ¢
investments and operations is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFT ARETF T
Current assets MEVEE 2,033,619 2,154,438
Non-current assets EREEE 6,038,810 6,914,411
Current liabilities RBBE (1,336,478) (1,784,592)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (4,040,449) (3,633,777)
Net assets BEFE 2,695,502 3,650,480
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Bt 35 R AR B

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 21. R
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarized financial information of joint
ventures (CONTINUED)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the
following:

BRbX R (E)

BELRZHBEEHMEE)

bR EEFABZEEEE ML

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents B FReEEEE 296,515 453,000
Current financial liabilities (excluding ##& R BE&E(TEEENEZ
trade payables and other payables) S BEZ RE MR ) (911,346) (998,798)
Non-current financial liabilities EmBEHEAE (4,040,449) (3,633,777)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Revenue WA 1,091,203 1,101,270
Depreciation and amortization e (431,134) (456,316)
Interest expense FEER (193,117) (226,123)
Other expenses HMRx (144,306) (77,969)
Profit before income tax bR TS B AT A 322,646 340,862
Income tax expense FriSHi 2 (52,289) (48,475)
Net profit and other comprehensive  AREE %% F & E b 2 mE UL
income for the year 4EEE 270,357 292,387
Dividend received from these joint ~ ZREEFU DAL DENL
ventures during the year 198,350 5,820
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22.

23.

Bt 35 R AR B

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22.

PROFIT OR LOSS

RAABEFABRECZEREE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETFr
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFAEZZE/M
BE
Unlisted equity securities, at fair WAREBEFEZ R EMER
value (Note (i) MBS (B 30) 17,629 12,277
Investment in a convertible bond Al 8ENEASINE (BT (i)
(Note (ii)) 32,787 22,568
50,416 34,845

Notes:

(i) The unlisted equity securities represent investment in
equity securities issued by private entities established
and operate in the PRC.

(i)  The convertible bond is issued by a private entity
established and operate in the PRC.

e
() 3ELTIMERE SRR EA T RE
2B CERBIT RS BRRE -

(i) FWHEREFZEBEETBEKIRELZ
—HKIEDEMRET -

CONTRACT ASSETS 23. EREE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T AE#HTFT
Tariff adjustment amounts (Note) JEW S (B T B SR IE (M at) 329,385 867,605
Retention money LRE 374,504 416,696
Construction contracts BEAR 13,892 15,127
717,781 1,299,428
Impairment loss on contract assets & B &ERME — (6,970)
717,781 1,292,458

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  AZIHOMLT :

Current assets ROEE 669,655 594,913
Non-current assets FERBEE 48,126 697,545
717,781 1,292,458
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Bt 35 R AR B

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Notes:

Tariff adjustment amounts represented government subsidies
on renewable energy for ground projects to be received from
the state grid companies based on the existing government
policies.

As mentioned in Note 4, pursuant to the Tariff Notice, a
set of standardized procedures for the settlement of the
tariff subsidy has come into force since 2013 and according
to several new notices issued in 2020, approvals for the
registration in List on a project-by-project basis are required
before the allocation of funds to the state grid companies,
which then would make settlement to the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
recognition of accrued revenue on tariff subsidy is proper
based on their judgement and taking into account the
opinion from the Group’s legal advisor, that all of the
Group's power plants of which tariff subsidy is recognized
as revenue but yet to register in the List had been qualified
for, and had met, all the requirements and conditions as
required according to the requirements and conditions for
the registration in the List. The directors of the Company
are confident that all of the Group’s operating power plants
(including power plants operated by the Group’'s joint
ventures and associates) are able to be registered in the List
in due course and the tariff subsidy are fully funded by the
PRC government but only subject to timing of allocation of
funds from the PRC government.

As at 31 December 2020, the tariff adjustment amounts of
RMB329,385,000 (2019: RMB 867,605,000) was recognized
in contract assets by the power plants which have not been
included in the List.

Tariff adjustment amounts classified under contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the Group’s
respective power plants are registered in the List pursuant
to the prevailing national government policies on renewable
energy.

In respect of the revenue from the sale of electricity by
power plants not yet registered in the List, the directors of
the Company have evaluated the terms and conditions of,
and the counterparties to, the contracts which may impact
revenue recognition. The related receivables are mainly from
the PRC state grid companies, which would normally be
settled within two years based on past experience.

23.

BREEE

EEAERARRERITRARE  EBIEHE
REWBATWERZAIBERRER ZBUTH
Bl

o

WMt sEARE  RIBEEERM BEME
REZESERANB2013F EXR% - BRI
2020 F BHMAEIENBAH  EE2 AR
TRBEREMEAFZA - ZRIARZREER
HESLI T BERREENNESHEE
B 2BRBEAEBEETHEE -

ARBEZRR ARAEEZ2HELE
BERFELHEEEERREZMBERRK
ettt - Bib - EZBAKBERZBRER 2
Eit L REBEEFHEHEREEHDTIREK
ARBERN - ARBEZRE  AEEZH
BREN(BEAEEAEERBERRE
R EBEERAETRSER WA -
EZRIBERREHLREIEREE - BE
EMPABRRBTAE EEHPAINEER
o AEFEETEBNZE S D B
e

2020128318 HAWABEZE
BMERNEREEZEEBHDERTSE
& AR #329,385,000L(20194F « AR
867,605,0007T) °

RIBEBIZRBETABERREE  EAEEE
EMECEANBERE - HEEERAERA
EHAREENHERKESFAT -

BRRMABEZESELEZEERA 2
RIERCEAREYRRAERZERZE
BARSR &M RS FE - BRI E
EXRETHRBEREEAR - BREBEATER
BEE2FLARE -
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FEMBHRRMET
24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 24. EWESRIAREE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Trade receivable, at amortized cost  JEUE SRR 1R &4 K

(Note (i) (Bt ) 237,437 202,975
Tariff adjustment receivable , at JEUR B EFHERE - RE#H
amortized cost (Note (ii)) A (B 72 (i) 777,749 420,476
Bills receivable, at FVTPL (Note (iii)  [EWERE  H AR EBEE
st AR (A2 (i) 143,385 33,903
1,158,571 657,354
Impairment loss on trade receivable &Y EE 5 8k FORIE (4757 (1)
(Note (i) (9,983) (11,487)
Impairment loss on tariff adjustment J& U B (B s ZIERE
receivable — (4,524)
1,148,588 641,343
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEMINTEOT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTFTT AEETT

Current assets MEEE 1,148,588 612,547

Non-current assets IEREEE — 28,796
1,148,588 641,343

The Group does not hold any collaterals over trade AEEWARFEEMNERESERRE

and bills receivable as security. B2 IR mIEER o

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivable M2020F 12 A31 HEWKE SERFURE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in FHEFFIE R MIEE49 -

Note 49.
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 24. EWEBSRIANRERE(Z)

Notes: Yoz

(i) Trade receivable (i) FEKRESEX
The Group's trade receivable include receivables from REFEWZE SERDFES -« 124
the sale of electricity, provision of construction and MIRHMWREZEWRED - AEH
other services. The Group’s credit terms granted to FTEPIZNZH{EZEHA30KXZEI180
customers ranging from 30 to 180 days. For certain Ko BN HwEIER  A&EHBFE
construction projects, the Group generally grants Py RBREARERAAREFHRT
project final acceptance period and retention period PRITART Y EZSHIWZB#L1E2
to its customers ranging from 1 to 2 years from the £ o

date of acceptance according to the contracts signed
between the Group and customers.

The movements in the impairment loss on trade WS SESIEERESESH OTOT :
receivable during the year are as follows:

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT AEHFT

At 1 January ®R1A1H 11,487 11,906
Impairment reversed during the REFEED - FFE

year, net (1,454) (212)

Written-off during the year AN i 6 (50) (207)

At 31 December m12A31H 9,983 11,487
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(ii)

Trade receivable (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the ageing

24. ERESHRAREE(E)

Biet (&

(i)

analysis of the

trade receivable, net of allowance for credit losses,

presented based on invoice date, is as follows:

FEWE 5 BRFK(42)

HR2020% 12 A318 - BWE S EXR
R ME AR F R 2 Rl 4T (A%
SHHERE)WMT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBTFr

Within 3 months 3MEALAR 181,130 127,319
3 to 6 months 3Z6fEA 21,611 17,434
6 to 12 months 6= 1218A 6,251 7,788
1-2 years 1225 17,536 13,164
Over 2 year 2FE 926 25,783
227,454 191,488

Certain of the Group's bank borrowings (Note 33) are

pledged by the cash receipts from the sale of electricity

by certain of the Group’s power plants.

Tariff adjustment receivables

The movements in the impairment

(ii)

loss on tariff

adjustment receivables during the year are as follows:

BOEEBLEEHR 2K EERLE
BERSAEEE T ZRTHERGE
33) FEIRIEEH -

R EEFEERE

EWEEFARKARRBELHOMN
s

Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)

BEEEHENAABEREX
(RBEERFRAEE)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHEFT
At 1 January ®1A1H 4,524 —
Impairment (reversed)/recognized RNERE(EE) R - F5E

during the year, net (5,182) 4,524
Transfer from contract assets ERAREE 3,032 —
Disposal of subsidiaries BEWEAR (2,374) —
At 31 December ®12A31H — 4,524
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

226

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Tariff adjustment receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the tariff adjustment receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses, based on the

revenue recognition date, is as follows:

24. ERESHRAREE(E)

Biet (&
(i) EREEARREE)
EWEEFHEFBAMRERERRZ

FREC DT (AURARER A HIREE) AT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFT

Within 3 months 3@ AR 87,171 57,306
3 to 6 months 3E61@A 68,329 55,266
6 to 12 months 62 121EA 374,667 136,476
Over 1 year 1L E 247,582 166,904
777,749 415,952

The Group’s tariff adjustment receivables from the
sale of electricity are mainly receivables from the state
grid companies. The collection of the tariff adjustment
receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalisation of the allocation of funds
by relevant PRC government authorities to the state
grid companies. See Note 23 for tariff adjustment
receivables recognized by the power plants which have
not been included in the List.

FEEENHERKEBIRREIE
REWEREH QR FIA - EHET
B HETKAEREFRE 2K
Eobk  BREPEQFBEEEE
BEFAER - RIABEZEESHH®
R EWEBRERFT RMEE23 -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

Bills receivables

As 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to these suppliers with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB335,074,000
(2019: RMB 1,001,928,000). The Bills had a maturity
of one to six months at the end of the reporting
period. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards relating to the Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognized the full carrying amounts of the Bills and
the associated liabilities.

All bills received by the Group are with a maturity
period of less than one year.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, the Group’'s bills
receivable were reclassified as financial assets at FVTPL
because the bills receivables are held in a business
model whose objective is to sell.

24. ERESHRAREE(E)

Biet (&

(iii)

FEWRE

HI1E2020F12A31 8 AEEEE
o EARERITAI AN 2 EKEE
((ZEDGEEIARGEERIR &
8 5% A AR#335,074,0007C
(2019 : A X #1,001,928,0007T ) °
ELEZEENAREHRE —Z=MEA
REH - ARAIEERAE SEEE
BEBZEEE 2 HE R ERE
Bt » ARV AEREEREZ 2
EmeEEEAE -

REBWIREZHREZIBMBEHIRN
—fF o

REEEMBRSEREIRZRE -
MREBRETRREBERERART
i SERURBESEEROAE
BEf ABSE 2 ERMEE -
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. EfNHE - REREMEWRFIE
RECEIVABLES

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Deposits paid for purchase of TArTE - BRI
property, plant and equipment BB 184,574 448,269
Deposits paid for project BHMIZERES
investments (Note i) (H1at () — 37,860
Other prepayments HAm a1 BRI 113,956 67,726
Deposits for other borrowings HEMERRES
(Note 34) (Hi7#34) 79,986 49,515
Other deposits Hinlz e 68,022 62,647
Sales proceeds receivables from BB B A F R RIE
disposal of subsidiaries 314,247 123,191
Receivables from former subsidiaries UL R B A 578 550,799 60,089
Other receivables Hoth FE U GRIR 49,268 65,026
Value-added tax recoverable A Y O] (B A 737,160 786,209
Premium receivable for financial W ERE B2 BIEIE
guarantee contracts 31,141 38,232
2,129,153 1,738,764
Less: Impairment loss on sales R REWB AR EWEIE 2
proceeds receivables from A
disposals of subsidiaries (11,001) (13,093)
Impairment loss on other E At e W R IER B
receivables (Note ii) (Htaz i) (30,951) (15,575)
2,087,201 1,710,096
Less: Non-current portion JR < JEmENER
Deposits paid for purchase TERE - ER R
of property, plant and BB R
equipment 184,574 448,269
Deposits paid for project BT ERES
investments —
Deposits for other borrowings HMERRES 79,986 49,515
Other deposits and Hitniz & RIE IR
prepayments 42,053 45,788
Sales proceeds receivables B B MY 8~ 7] B W kI8
from disposal of subsidiaries 47,933 59,797
Premium receivable for B ER A B EGRIE
financial guarantee contracts 23,054 29,384
Other non-current receivables E 0 3Em B e SR IE 26,858 24,636
Value-added tax recoverable ATk BB R 615,919 544,338
1,020,377 1,021,727
Less: Impairment loss on sales B EEMRBA R EWRFIEY
proceeds receivables from RIE
disposals of subsidiaries (10,104) (13,093)
Impairment loss on other H A & YRR 2 BB
receivables (21,561) (13,197)
Non-current portion classified kRS2 ER
under non-current assets FRBEE 988,712 1,175,437
Current portion classified under FREWBIPEERBEE
current assets 1,098,489 534,659
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25.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

25. AN HE BE R HE M EKRKE

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) (&
Note: Kzt -
(i) Deposits paid for project investments (i) EBRRERIL
The deposit at 31 December 2019 relates to certain 2019 12 A31 B Z B 2% & Bl 44
service agreements in prior years for a term up to FHUERBEHE  BREE20214F1
January 2021, for introducing and soliciting solar A BREA A 2t FEE RS
and wind power projects, other new energy or new EMAZE K G MEEER - EME
technology projects in the world apart from China to BEBESKETEINIEE LWEEETRE
help the Group expand its business. The agreement has ik NAEER AP EDIRATLR
been early terminated this year and the outstanding I B EARED 2 LS -
deposit has been fully settled.
(i) The movements of the impairment loss during the year iy AEEZEBESHSINOT :
are as follows:
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
BREFENRNEREREX
(BEFERRE)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
At 1 January ®1A1H 28,668 18,494
Impairment recognized during REWRZIBRRME  F5
the year, net 16,970 29,469
Written-off during the year AN e (3,686) (19,295)
At 31 December ®12A31H 41,952 28,668

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
Note 49.

R2020512 B31 B Hib U 3k 2 R
ERHE B RME49 -
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26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 26. MEHESEEKEE
Certain machinery of the Group are leased out under REB R LMD EURERE TR L
finance leases. All interest rates inherent in the leases e TAHEARNEREARZESI ZH
are fixed at the contract date over the lease terms. AR ABERNE o
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  AZIRAOMLT :

Current assets MEVEE 5,326 4,276
Non-current assets FEREEE 18,814 13,578
24,140 17,854

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEHENRE REEENRERE
2020 2019 2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT ARETT AREFT ARETT

Finance lease receivables REESRIGRBEE :
comprise:
Within one year 1TE LA 6,910 5,350 5,326 4,276
In more than one year but 1824
not more than two years 6,555 5,005 5,201 4,030
In more than two years but 2 ZE54F
not more than five years 12,818 10,603 11,139 9,548
In more than five years S5FE 2,605 — 2,474 —
28,888 20,958 24,140 17,854
Less: unrealized finance o RERBERA
income (4,748) (3,104) N/A N/A
24,140 17,854 24,140 17,854
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27.

Bt 35 R AR B

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26. BMEHERWRE(E)
Effective interest rates of the above finance leases LM EREZERNEAETFT3%
range from 7.3% to 9.5% per annum. £95% °
Finance lease receivables are secured over the plant BEEREWZBARE Z HE &
and machinery leased. The Group is not permitted to HEAER EEABEASEBEENOZER
sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default T KEBEANALFFHE S BEPZEA
by the lessee. S o
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE ZREF
31 December 2020 are set out in Note 49. EeFBE M40 -
LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. BEIRER
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFr
Variable-rate loan receivables FEIFIEEWE K 29,394 84,047
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  A&ZFRHOMTNT
Current assets mBEE 9,146 14,476
Non-current assets FEREBEE 20,248 69,571
29,394 84,047

During the year, the Group engaged in several sales
and leaseback transactions as a buyer-lessor, in
which the transfer of an asset did not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a
sale. Therefore, the Group recognized the transfer
proceeds as loan receivables.

RAFE  AEBUNET—HBAHH
ETETERBRER S HFBEESE
TREEBMBmELERSE 155 M AREE
BR—IEEE - Bt - AEREREZER
SHERRERER
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27. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 27. EWER(E)
The exposure of the Group's variable-rate loan NEBEZFHANEREKERZFEER
receivables to interest rate risks and their contractual SENEERASDIEHALT

maturity dates are as follows:

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBTT

Variable-rate loan receivables FEREERER
Within 1 year 1A 11,010 20,669
1 to 5 years 1&54F 22,093 65,759
Over 5 years S5FEMN 505 20,487
33,608 106,915
Less: unrealized finance income O REREERA (4,214) (22,868)
29,394 84,047
Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables HZE2020FE 12 A31HILEERKEH
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in B E IS R 49 ©
Note 49.
28. INVENTORIES 28. FE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Raw materials E MR 224 4,039
Work in progress ERm 7,204 5,088
Finished goods SRR o 4,720 3,831
12,148 12,958
The cost of inventories recognized as expense and FELEARKA4,070,000 (2019 :
included in profit or loss amounted to RMB44,070,000 ARM 41,620,000 ) EEBENER S
(2019: RMB 41,620,000). B o
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

29. BELRBRESZEEER

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT AREFITT

Cash and bank balances B & KIRTTA G 2,608,069 1,605,128
Less: Restricted deposits (Note) i XREITFER (M) (327.610) (143,046)
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSFEY 2,280,459 1,462,082

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents that are

denominated in foreign currencies that are not

respective entities’ functional currencies are set out

below:

AR E DA JEARB 2 W) e M 2 SN B
E2RERASFENWER LT :

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FoT AREFT

Denominated in: ARSI & E
— RMB — AR 3,351 3,501
— HKD — B 66 1,356
— US$ — %7 97,681 46,203
101,098 51,060

Note: The restricted deposits mainly represent bank

acceptance bill deposits and electricity sale guarantee

deposits.

As at 31 December 2020, the weighted average

effective interest rate on the Group’s bank balances is

0.3% (2019: 0.4%) per annum.

M ZBRHFREZRRITELERIAH
FRERENHERTS

MR2020%12 A31H » REBIRITHEH%
ZMEFHEERFEAE03%(2019:
0.4%) °
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Bt 35 R AR B

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE

30. ENESRIRAREE

2020 2019

Trade payable JERTE 5 BR K
Bills payable N ERE

Included in trade payable as at 31 December
2020 were retention money held in respect of
construction contracts of RMB398,615,000 (2019:
RMB372,614,000). Apart from the retention money
which is normally repayable after one year, the
average credit period on purchase of goods is
approximately one year (2019: one year).

As at 31 December 2020, the maturity date of bills
payable was within 6 months (2019: within 6 months).

An ageing analysis of the trade payable, based on
invoice date, is as follows:

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTT AREFT

533,037 946,651
426,933 134,981
959,970 1,081,632

202012 A831H EfNE 5
ERFPEREsEEARACRESAR
A R #398,615,00075(2019 4 :
AR¥ 372,614,000 L)  Br—FE S
ZRED  RBUWEZFHEEHRALY
AB—F(20194F : —F) -

MN2020F 12 8318 > EMNZEHRREA
6@ AMN(2019: 61AAR) o

FENE SRR Z BRI DT (A EE B H
RE)IMT

2020 2019

Within 3 months 31E AR
3 to 6 months 3E61EA
6 to 12 months 6Z121@A
1 to 2 years 1E24F
Over 2 years 2F AL

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT

102,595 120,979
9,950 12,012
10,519 375,320
55,786 55,806
354,187 382,534
533,037 946,651
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31.

32.

PAYABLES FOR CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS, 31, BEERESENES  HEAZ

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS ERESER
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Payables for construction in progress I8 B i2i& 7 fE < 78 1,445,417 1,071,429
Retention money payables REBECETER 552,669 348,363
Deposits received for disposal of e B P BB A B TR MR AR A 3K
subsidiaries 2,500 38,600
Other payables and accruals H At A< 5RIE R FE R RUB 297,962 394,162
2,298,548 1,852,554
Less: Balances repayable after one  J& - —F1&ER 2 B
year and shown under non- RIERBEBEZ R
current liabilities (518,552) (489,799)
Current portion classified under B DEERBBE
current liabilities 1,779,996 1,362,755
A=
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. aRAR
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ABRBFr
Receipt in advance TEUER K 63,681 95,471
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33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. SRITER
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Secured EIRERER 1,334,961 2,923,747
Unsecured EHEARERER 172,286 403,782
Total borrowings ERBEE 1,507,247 3,327,529
The secured bank borrowings are secured by certain KRERRITERCERMAREEY
buildings and power plant equipment of the Group ERERMEERE (M 17) - RAEHE
(Note 17), cash receipts from the sale of electricity HoBEHZENHEE(WE24) B 2R
by certain of the Group’s power plants (Note 24) and & REDME A E 2 BRAE -

certain equity interests in subsidiaries.

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are A FERz eBERR T EREER
repayable*:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AR TT

Within 1 year 15R 171,245 506,364
Between 1 and 2 years RENEFE2FH 161,318 314,836
Between 2 and 5 years RE2EFS5FMH 568,886 997,251
Over 5 years 5FME 605,798 1,509,078

1,507,247 3,327,529

Less: Amounts due within one year  Jif - WRBEFEE TR
shown under current liabilities —FRNBE S5 (171,245) (506,364)

Amounts shown under non-current  RIEREIBEIEB NHR2

liabilities Gk 1,336,002 2,821,165
* The above amounts due are based on scheduled * N EFEIHSEERSERERR
repayment dates set out in the respective loan EZETEIERE -
agreements.
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BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follows:

33.

TR (E)

AEBRITERETRMETOMA -

2020 2019

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

Fixed-rate borrowings BT M ERER 224,194 220,490
Variable-rate borrowings FEFIEMER 1,283,053 3,107,039
1,507,247 3,327,529

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

REERTERZIBEERENE 2 $E 0
N

2020 2019

Effective interest rate: B =
Variable-rate bank borrowings FENFIRIRITIE K
Fixed-rate bank borrowings & 7E R R IRITIE

The fair values of the non-current borrowings are
estimated using discounted cash flow calculations
based upon the Group’'s current incremental
borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings
with maturities consistent with those remaining for
the debt. The carrying amounts of the non-current
borrowings approximate their fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

2.9%-6.9%
1.0%-4.4%

2.9%-6.9%
2.7%-5.9%

FERBERZAAEE ERAEED
HIHARR BRI BT — B2 SR LA SR B Al
ZBEBRAE - AR RFTRGE
FHSHE - R|EHR - FERBER IR
ASHEEQAREERES -
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238

OTHER BORROWINGS

34. HMER

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BRI OMFAT :
Current liabilities mENAE 412,819 164,388
Non-current liabilities FERBAERG 5,834,431 4,349,758
6,247,250 4,514,146

During the year, the Group has entered into
agreements (the “Agreements”) with certain PRC
financial institutions (the “Financial Institution”)
and the Group drew down RMB2,907,076,000
(2019: RMB2,984,836,000) in aggregate from the
Financial Institution of which RMB733,790,000 (2019:
RMB1,400,805,000) was received in the form of
bills. Such borrowings are to be repayable in 2021 to
2031 and carry interest ranging from 5.0% to 5.9%
per annum (2019: ranging from 5.4% to 6.5% per
annum).

As collaterals for the above financing:

(i) The Group transferred the ownership title of
certain property, plant and equipment to the
Financial Institutions.

(i)  The Group entered into financial guarantee
contracts in favour of the Financial Institution for
the due performance of the Group’s obligations
under the Agreements.

AEREEEFEE AN BEE (AT
BIEREEDETHBECATERBIR
AR 4asE A ARE 2,907,076,000
J0(2019 : A R #2,984,836,0007T )
H i AR #733,790,00075(2019 © A
R #1,400,805,0007T ) = B B B UK
Bl ZF B A E202122031F 15
NEE ERFERNEARE50%2£59%
(2019 : EHRFMEAE54% E6.5%) °

Lt g E 2 ERTERY -

iy AKEDHBIVE - BEMERE
ZFEREBRESREE -

() AEEITITARRE R
ERRAONHRAKEEYET
T -
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34. OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

Upon the discharging all the Group's obligations
under the Agreements, the Financial Institutions
will return the ownership title of those property,
plant and equipment to the Group for minimal
consideration. Despite the Agreements involve
a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted
for the Agreements as collateralized borrowing
in accordance with the actual substance of the
Agreements.

An aggregate amount of security deposits of
RMB193,928,000 placed with the Financial
Institutions as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB178,045,000), of which RMB113,942,000
was offset with certain repayment instalments as
agreed with the Financial Institution (2019: RMB
128,530,000).

Other borrowings are secured by certain equity
interests in subsidiaries with an aggregate
investment cost of RMB1,948,219,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB1,842,239,000).

The maturity profile of the above borrowings is as

34.

HtpfER (&)

(iii)

EAKERTTTHEROERLE
TREBEUFREZRERER
BAEE EAYE - BELREZ
FrEHE - BEME S MAN LR
B AEBEREHEZEL K
ERRERETZH -

MR2020F 12 A3 B X & A
R #193,928,0007c(2019 : AR
¥ 178,045,0007L) ~ H & @
RS EABEMNREERE S
A AR 113,942,0007C(2019
F: AR#128,530,0007T) °

M2020F 12 A31 H E b & 3k &
RKEMBRARICREER €8 A
A R #1,948,219,000 (2019 :
AR® £ 1,842,239,0007T) °

B EFRBIRERAT

follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT AREFT
Within 1 year 1R 412,819 164,388
Between 1 and 2 years REBEI1EFE2FMHE 522,962 512,412
Between 2 and 5 years RE2EFESFR 1,845,904 1,628,187
Over 5 years S5 E 3,465,565 2,209,159
6,247,250 4,514,146
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SENIOR NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE

The movements of senior notes and bonds issued by

35. BARBREZZENRE

AEEFACBRTERARBERESZE

the Group during the year are as follows: NEEEEHINT
Senior Senior Medium term Green
notes notes bonds bonds Total
(Note (i) (Note (i))
BEEE BAZE THEE BEE% &t
(W) (W)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTFLT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT
Carrying amount at R2019F1 A1BE
1 January 2019 KEEBEA — 1,363,253 199,519 99,909 1,662,681
Interest charge (Note 12) Mezmz2) - 119,881 3742 6,708 130,331
Interest paid ERHE - (108,934) (3,261) (6,617) (118,812)
Principal repayment EEre — - (200,000) (100,000) (300,000)
Exchange differences ]S — 18,741 — — 18,741
Carrying amount at 31 #2019F 12831 AF
December 2019 REHEE - 1,392,941 - - 1,392,941
Repurchase of senior notes BEELEE (20,767) - - - (20,767)
Issue of senior notes, net of BREE BT NBE
issuance expense TER 595,922 (567,680) - - 28,242
Interest charge (Note 12) FMEZHME12) 17,647 99,258 - - 116,905
Interest paid FEFIE — (62,383) - - (62,383)
Exchange differences ]S (23,510) (67,410) - - (90,920)
Carrying amount at 31 R2020F 12831 BER
December 2020 REEE 569,292 794,726 — - 1,364,018
Less: Amounts due within i —ERE#Z
one year shown under REAE
current liabities (16,489) (794,726) — — (811,215)
Amounts show under non- FRBBENNLE
current liabilities 552,803 — — — 552,803
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SENIOR NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Notes:

()

The senior notes (the “Notes A”) were issued by the
Group on 16 January 2018 and its principal amount of
is US$200,000,000 with maturity on 23 January 2021.
The Notes A bear fixed interest at 7.9% per annum,
payable semi-annually. The effective interest rate of
the Notes A is 8.3% per annum.

At any time prior to 23 January 2021, the Group may
at its option redeem the Notes A, in whole but not
in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the Notes A redeemed plus the
applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date.

At any time and from time to time prior to 23 January
2021, the Group may at its option redeem up to 35%
of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes A
with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of
common stock of the Company in an equity offering at
a redemption price of 107.9% of the principal amount
of the Notes A redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date; provided that at least 65% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes A originally issued on
the original issue date remains outstanding after each
such redemption and any such redemption takes place
within 60 days after the closing of the related equity
offering.

On 24 September 2020, US$82,373,000 in the
principal amount of the Notes A together with its
accrued and unpaid interest amount of US$1,075,000
have been exchanged for US$83,448,000 in the
principal amount of the Notes B issued (see Note
35(ii)).

35. BARBRESZEAREAE)

Hfat

(@)

M20184F 1 A16 H » AEBHEITAR
#£200,000,000 & 7t 2 BEEH(RIE
A) - BIHAR A202141 231 %=
BAZHEBETEFNEATF7.9%  FF
EFN—K - ZHREANBRIXAETE
8.3% °

7202141 A238 Z B E A B & -
AE@AEEELO2LETEIESZ
BA BRERSERERREARS Y
100% ' MM EBZEEHEBUETEE
ERIHH) ZERGE  AREER
AFE(WE) -

AEETE2021F1H23820ERE
EOR(BETREER) ZEWERE L
PERSF AR HIBIERE  EERNEHFALR
©.2107.9% 2 fERIE - I LFERT &
AEFME(E)  FEHARERESH
E-SHSZEARALARAEES
EBRE BEE%35% 2 EEALNES A
B GG REVRBTBENBRENTE
1L 65% 2 EHAR S LI T NS
ZEBELRBDAEMN  BZFERD
ABRS R B THR R B Z 60 RINEEAE ©

M2020F9A824H @ ZEEAKXRSE
82,373,000k L R HEF AR F B
1,075,000 TE LB AD#HITE
BBAR4E83,448,000% T (B M &
35(ii)) ©
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SENIOR NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

The Company issued the senior notes of US$6,552,000
on 24 September 2020, aggregated with the
exchanged amount of US$83,448,000 mentioned
above, form the new senior notes (the “Notes B")
with principal amount of US$90,000,000 and maturity
date on 24 September 2023 unless earlier redeemed in
accordance with the terms thereof. The Notes B bear
fixed interest at 10.75% per annum payable semi-
annually. The effective interest rate of the Notes is
11.76% per annum.

At any time prior to 24 September 2023, the Group
may at its option redeem the Notes B, in whole but
not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the Notes B redeemed plus
the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date.

At any time and from time to time prior to 24
September 2023, the Group may at its option redeem
up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of
the Notes B with the net cash proceeds of one or
more sales of common stock of the Company in an
equity offering at a redemption price of 110.75%
of the principal amount of the Notes B redeemed,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the redemption date; provided that at least
65% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
B originally issued on the original issue date remains
outstanding after each such redemption and any
such redemption takes place within 60 days after the
closing of the related equity offering.

35. BARBRESZEAREAE)

Biet (&

(if)

M202069F248  ARAEBITT
6,552,000F T2 BEEE L L
it 83,448,000k T 2 M & - ¥
X 78 4 /490,000,000 7T - 2| H#1 H
2023 9R24 Bz HEEERTER
Al BRIEBIBEZRIRANER - %E
BREEEENEAREF10.75%  §F
FIM—K - ZEBEBENEAEF
11.76% °

7202349 A24 HAT » REEAEE
BE2BEATEIHHZESE - BOER
ERERZEBAESZ100% « M1 EE
EEOAHEREEEEBH) 2E
ARE - UREFRARAFE(E) o

REBA£2023F9A24BZAHEE
BEOR(ETREER) ZEMEME
BERE AR ER  RERESBAS
2110.75% 2 BB - N EER &
AEAFE(ME)  FERAREREP D
E—SRZEARAERBRMBERES
FE BREZEZ35% 2 EEBASHE
B K REVEEITENRETE
L65% 2 EHFBAREBELETNHET
ZEBLRBDAREMN  BZFEET
AERAR IR B TAE R 18 2 60 KN EE A o
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36. CONVERTIBLE LOAN

(1)

IFC Convertible Loan

On 23 May 2018, the Group issued convertible
loan (the "IFC Convertible Loan”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$233,800,000
(approximately RMB189,938,000) to
International Finance Corporation (“IFC"),
which consists of three tranches: (i) Tranche |
being HK$93,480,000; and (ii) Tranche Il being
HK$70,110,000; and (iii) Tranche Il being
HK$70,210,000. IFC has the right to convert all
or any part of the outstanding amount of the
Convertible Loan into the ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of (i) HK$0.5
per Share (for Tranche I); (ii) HK$0.55 per Share
(for Tranche 1I); and (iii) HK$0.6 per Share (for
Tranche Ill) (subject to the adjustments as set out
in the agreement for the Convertible Loan dated
28 December 2017 (the “IFC Agreement”)).

The outstanding principal of the IFC Convertible
Loan bears interest at a rate of (i) 2% per
annum for the period commencing on the date
of the Agreement until the date falling on the
third anniversary of the date of the Agreement;
and (ii) 5% per annum thereafter. The maturity
date of the IFC Convertible Loan is 27 December
2022 (the "IFC Maturity Date”). If the whole or
any part of the Convertible Loan is not converted
into the ordinary shares of the Company by
the IFC Maturity Date then the relevant non
converted portion of the IFC Convertible Loan
shall be repaid in full together with an amount
required to provide IFC with an Internal Rate of
Return (as defined in the IFC Convertible Loan
Agreement) in respect of such non-converted
portion of the IFC Convertible Loan of 7%.

36. AIRIRER

(1

IFCT# R E K

M2018%58230 A& H @
BB & @~ m (R 8IIFC]) 17
7N & #8 %E /5 233,800,000 78 7T (49
A AR #189,938,000 7T ) A] 4 %
Ex(EHEIaTmiRER] - %%
AMBREFRRES A= ()VFE—
Hf /93,480,000 JT - ()& 2 81
7%70,110,0007% 7T - (i F 38 &
70,210,000 7T  IFC B #EHZ T il
ERERGZETRRER 2D
L ARESBEERARNAT 2T
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1

IFC Convertible Loan (CONTINUED)

IFC may serve a written notice on the Group
requiring the Group to (a "IFC Prepayment
Notice”): (i) at any time during the period
commencing on (and including) the third
anniversary of the date of the IFC Agreement
and ending on the fourth anniversary of the date
of the IFC Agreement (the “First Prepayment
Period”), prepay the non-converted portion
of the Loan within 45 days of the date of the
relevant IFC Prepayment Notice in the amount
specified in the IFC Prepayment Notice, provided
such amount is not, when aggregated with
all other amounts prepaid in response to IFC
Prepayment Notices during the First Prepayment
Period, greater than one-third of the total
amount of the Loan; or (i) at any time during
the period commencing on (and including)
the fourth anniversary of the date of this IFC
Agreement and ending on the fifth anniversary
of the date of the IFC Agreement (the “Second
Prepayment Period”), prepay the non-converted
portion of the Loan within 45 days of the date
of the relevant IFC Prepayment Notice in the
amount specified in the IFC Prepayment Notice,
provided such amount is not, when aggregated
with all other amounts prepaid in response
to IFC Prepayment Notices during the First
Prepayment Period and the Second Prepayment
Period, greater than two-third of the amount of
the Loan. Any prepayment made shall be applied
pro rata across Tranche I, Tranche Il and Tranche
M.

The IFC Convertible Loan contain two
components, debt component and derivative
(including conversion and early redemption
options) component. The effective interest rate
of the debt component is 10.23% per annum.
The derivative component is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss.

36. TERRER(EZ)

(1

IFCAT R ER(Z)

FCRIgt g MASEEBE L EmMB
M BRAEE(HHEFENRE
M- OVE=FAFA(BEER)
AR EREENATE B &R
BIEXBNRER]D 2 EM@E
M LB E 228 - £
B FUBAABRE Z45KRA - T8
NERZ KBRS - GHR - Z
SR _ER & IRTEN KRB 3K
BAFEMZBEEMETE M -
TARERBEZ=02— 3%
(WRZHhEENAFER(BREE
HRBEZBEERAFTE A (H
BIBEZRBRREBDERZFE
AEEA UERBAREZS
% - {CAERBAT OB AN A BT 2 45
A ERBERZARERIS - E
2 RSNy R TEN FREARE
K& ZIRFE SR AR BLTE A FUm A
Ttz BEMSE AN - T K
RERSEN=02= - X2
AT IR FlIE AN E — 8 -
FE_HFIE =8 -

RBRERBIEMEARTS &
B RITE(BREERRRERE
ELIEEE IR D - BHEKD 2ER
FERMEE10.23% ° FTEKRDEA
REFE BAREESHERANE

o

/

B



2020 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ma

36.

Bt 35 R AR B

CONVERTIBLE LOAN (CONTINUED)

(2)

Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan

As at 1 April 2019, the Group issued the total
amount of convertible loan (the “Goldman Sachs
Convertible Loan”) principle of US $30,000,000
(approximately RMB199,839,000),
under the convertible loan agreement signed
with Goldman Sachs Asia Strategic Pte. Ltd.
("Goldman Sachs”) on 13 December 2018. The
Goldman Sachs convertible loan consists of three
tranches: (i) Tranche | being US $12,000,000;
and (ii) Tranche Il being US $9,000,000; and
(iii) Tranche Il being US$9,000,000. Goldman
Sachs has the right to convert all or any part of

which is

the outstanding amount of the Goldman Sachs
Convertible Loan into the ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of (i) HK$0.5
per Share (for Tranche I);(ii) HK$0.55 per Share
(for Tranche Il); and (iii) HK$0.6 per Share (for
Tranche 1ll) (subject to the adjustments as set
out in the agreement for the Convertible Loan
dated 13 December 2018 (the “Goldman Sachs
Agreement”)).

The outstanding principal of the Goldman Sachs
Convertible Loan bears interest at a rate of (i)
2% per annum for the period commencing on
the date of the Goldman Sachs Agreement until
the date falling on the third anniversary of the
date of the Goldman Sachs Agreement; and (ii)
5% per annum thereafter. The maturity date
of the Convertible Loan is 1 April 2024 (the
“Goldman Sachs Maturity Date”). If the whole
or any part of the Goldman Sachs Convertible
Loan is not converted into the ordinary shares
of the Company by the Goldman Sachs Maturity
Date then the relevant non converted portion
of the Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan shall be
repaid in full together with an amount required
to provide Goldman Sachs with an Internal Rate
of Return (as defined in the Goldman Sachs
Convertible Loan Agreement) in respect of such
non-converted portion of the Goldman Sachs
Convertible Loan of 7%.

36. TERRER(EZ)

(2)
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(2)

Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan (CONTINUED)

Goldman Sachs may serve a written notice (a
“Goldman Sachs Prepayment Notice”) on the
Company requiring the Company to: (i) at any
time during the period commencing on (and
including) the third anniversary of the date of
the Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan Agreement
and ending on the fourth anniversary of the
date of the Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan
Agreement (the “First Prepayment Period”),
prepay the nonconverted portion of the
Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan within 45
days of the date of the relevant Goldman Sachs
Prepayment Notice in the amount specified
in the Goldman Sachs Prepayment Notice,
provided such amount is not, when aggregated
with all other amounts prepaid in response
to Goldman Sachs Prepayment Notices during
the First Prepayment Period, greater than one-
third of the total amount of the Disbursement
made on the Disbursement Date; and (ii)at any
time during the period commencing on (and
including) the fourth anniversary of the date of
the Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan Agreement
and ending on the Goldman Sachs Maturity Date
(the "Second Prepayment Period”), prepay the
non-converted portion of the Goldman Sachs
Convertible Loan within 45 days of the date of
the relevant Goldman Sachs Prepayment Notice
in the amount specified in the Prepayment
Notice, provided such amount is not, when
aggregated with all other amounts prepaid
in response to Goldman Sachs Prepayment
Notices during the First Prepayment Period and
the Second Prepayment Period, greater than
twothird of the amount of the Disbursement
made on the Disbursement Date.

36. TERRER(EZ)

(2)
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36. CONVERTIBLE LOAN (CONTINUED) 36. AMREH(E)
(2) Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan (CONTINUED) 2 BRIUBBREHR(E)
The Goldman Sachs Convertible Loan contain AR ESBIERELKIED : &
two components, debt component and derivative FER D RITE(BIFER IR E
(including conversion and early redemption ELEBREK D © BEKD 2B
options) component. The effective interest rate FREAE10.23% ° STEKDIER
of the debt component is 10.23% per annum. SEFE - BARBEEEHERNE
The derivative component is measured at fair 25 o
value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss.
The movements of the debt component and derivative RER » A EEFERK D fET
component of the convertible loan during the year are D2 E2FHmT
as follows:
Goldman Sachs
Convertible Loan IFC Convertible Loan
BETERER ERERARNTARER
Debt Derivative Debt Derivative
component  component  component  component Total
R’EHS frERs b frEHS CHI
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFZ
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 4318 191,760 11,978 211,114 3,380 418,232
Interest expense (Note 12) e H(HE12) 19,958 - 21,776 - 41,734
Interest paid ERH & (2,411) - (4,104) - (6,515)
Fair value changes DMBEEE - 385 - 5,386 5,771
Exchange differences & i % (13,249) (344) (13,691) (273) (27,557)
At 31 December 2020 #20205 124318 196,058 12,019 215,095 8,493 431,665
Less: Amounts due within one & - —F R E|
year (1,794) - (71,770) (2,831) (76,395)
194,264 12,019 143,325 5,662 355,270
Binominal valuation model is used for valuation of PTHER DA Z X EHHERI T
the derivative component. The key inputs used in the 1B o FZAET AR T R 2 B8 A
model are disclosed in Note 50. BEHARWFES0 °
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Bt 75 3R 3% BT &
LEASE LIABILITIES 37. HE&SE
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFT
Within 1 year 195N 10,562 11,502
Between 1 and 2 years RENVEF2FH 10,891 11,292
Between 2 and 5 years MNE2ZEE5FRH 34,784 36,047
Over 5 years S5E F 19,877 33,866
76,114 92,707
Less: Amount due for settlement B RBBEEBETIRZ
with 12 months shown under KE12MEMAAREZ
current liabilities ok (10,562) (11,502)
Amount due for settlement after 12 FEREBEE NIRZ
months shown under non-current AKR12EAREZE 2
liabilities k- 65,552 81,205
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38. DEFERRED TAX 38. ELEBLIEA
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax RIS REERELERSEHABEZD
liabilities is as follows: T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Deferred tax assets RIEFSHEE 37,650 40,686
Deferred tax liabilities BLEMSHARE (4,626) (12,390)
33,024 28,296

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities ARENELEFEHEELBGB SN
during the year are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets BELEFEBBEE

Accumulated Unrealised inter- Deferred

deductible loss companies gains government subsidy Total

ZiTENER AERME EERAHE st

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTE NEETT

RMB'000  RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTE NERTT ARRTT ARRTT ARRTZ ARETL

At 1 January ®A1A 8,875 - 29,379 34,316 2432 2,582 40,686 36,898
Credit/(debited) to the profit 1 /(3 \) B85

or loss (Note 14) (it 14) - 8875 8,337 2711 (150) (150) 8,187 11436
Disposal of subsidlaries ~ HEMEAT

(Note 43(b) (Wit 43()) - - (mm) (19 - - (mm) (19
Disposal group held for sale REEHEHFE — — — (5,657) — — — (5,657)
At 31 December M12B318 8,875 8,875 26,493 29,379 2,282 2,432 37,650 40,686
At 31 December 2020, the Group had tax losses of R2020F 12 31 8 » ANEER SR ARE
RMB290,128,000 (2019: RMB367,758,000) arose in E4 7 BIEEE A AR 290,128,000 7T
Mainland China that can be carried forward to set (20194 : AR #367,758,0007T) * .4
off against future taxable income which will expire KRB ERETINA - BoRIR1E
within 1 to 5 years. No deferred tax asset has been SENTNH - AR FRKRIMARES A T8
recognized due to the unpredictability of future profit SR R IERE IREFIE & E ©
streams.

249



2020 £ %
HEHEREEERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRMHE
38. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 38. EIERIE(4Z)
Deferred tax assets (CONTINUED) EEFEHREEE)
The unrecognized tax losses within mainland China AR A AR EEEENUTE
will expire in the following years: EiEm
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T AR TT
To be expired on: 17 T3 B BRI
31 December 2020 —E-FF+-A=+—H —_ 10,071
31 December 2021 —_E-_—9+-A=+—H 11,194 13,067
31 December 2022 —E--F+-HA=+—H 29,395 65,111
31 December 2023 2 =F+=-A=+—H 127,673 165,336
31 December 2024 _?_m¢+ A=+—H 91,758 114,173
31 December 2025 —E-hRF+=ZA=+—8H 30,108 —
Total unused tax losses ABABEBRERE 290,128 367,758
At 31 December 2020, the Group had estimated R2020%12 A31H  AKEREBE
unused tax losses of RMB302,633,000 (2019: HEZBIEBER AR 302,633,000 7T
RMB240,003,000), subject to the agreement of the (20194 : AR 240,003,000 7T) 7]
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong, arose in HEHB®RF o BRREKZ & MR EE
Hong Kong available for offset against future profits. TER - WARIEHIEERIBEERR © It
No deferred tax asset has been recognized due to the b5t TE 5 18 AT MR R BR A4S
unpredictability of future profit streams. The estimated
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
Deferred tax liabilities ELEREHAR
Unremitted earnings Unremitted interest Total
KERNE KERAE @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTE ARETT ARETZ AREFT ARETT ARETL

At 1 January MATE 5,180 4,773 7,210 8,804 12,390 13,577
Debited/(credited) to the 5 A/ (1K) BB

profit or loss (Note 14) (Hi14) (554) 407 (7.210) (1,594) (7,764) (1,187)
At 31 December R12A31R 4,626 5,180 - 7,210 4,626 12,390
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38. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

39.

The deferred tax liabilities recognized relate to
temporary differences arising from the unremitted
earnings of joint ventures and associates, and the
intercompany interest payable from certain PRC

subsidiaries to overseas subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB133,446,000 (2019: RMB129,959,000) have not
been recognized for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the undistributed retained earnings
of subsidiaries of the Group, as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are received from the PRC
government and the government of the United
States of America (“US"”) by the Group as financial
subsidies for the promotion of the development of
renewable energy and investments in the PRC and
the US. Government grants from the PRC government
are recognized as income over 20 years based on the
expected useful lives of the relevant non-current assets
including property, plant and equipment invested in
certain areas in the PRC, while the government grants
from the US government are recognized as income
over 5 years as the relevant properties continue to
qualify as specified energy properties as defined by
the US Department of the Treasury.

38.

39.

IESERR ()

ERABELCHBARBEERBAZELER
BERRZABERNBELE ZERKME
2ER - ARF LR B EFING B R A
ZERBRZFE

B PA N 62 (B B2 S 45 il AE R TH B R 1 =
HED yH BERNEEZEEEANER
ZARNARA T g E - PR20205 12
A318  XEEWBARRD KRER
FPERT 2 FEIR T R H M T TR AT 1530
B E A AR 133,446,0007C(2019 :
AR ¥ 129,959,000 70) I R IEFHER ©

TR B 7 AN S [ X R B e 3 B TR
A RUBGH B2 TR 5 3 R T fe 2 IR B
BRh - REPEBN 2 HeLREXE
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39. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS (CONTINUED) 39, BEERFEE(E)
The movements in deferred government grant during REXNBELEHFT/EBZ ST -
the year are as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREFT
At 1 January K1A1H 15,643 23,273
Government grants obtained REBEIS BT
during the year 710 330
Credited to profit or loss during BRI 48 Bh 8 55
the year (1,660) (1,984)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 43(b))  BREME AT (At 43(b)) — (5,976)
At 31 December R12A31H 14,693 15,643
40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT LIABILITIES 40. BIRERCREE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREFT
Current mE 8,599 9,098
Non-current IERD 22,542 33,808
31,141 42,906

During the prior year, the Group disposed its 75%
equity interests in certain wholly-owned subsidiaries to
independent third parties, and retained the remaining
25% equity interests as interests in associates.
Financial guarantees were provided by the Company
to certain leasing companies for the associates’
finance lease arrangements. In return, the associates
shall pay premium to the Company at 2% of the
outstanding debt balance under the finance lease

arrangements.

252

REFE  AEBLEBHZEWER
B2 75% RIETEILE=T7  WEFH
#225% RIEERREE AT 2 s o A
NERZHERTCREREZ R
BERNRRHBMBER - R2 - BERF
BYNARFRMERETHZ REER

RBBEZ2% FEER -



2020 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

40.

B R M A

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group has recognized financial guarantee
contract liabilities and corresponding premium
receivables based on the fair value of the guarantee
provided, which is the present value of the premium
to be received within the leases term.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount
of guarantees was RMB461,547,000 (2019:
RMB494,570,000), which represented the amount
(including principal and interest) that could be
required to be paid if guarantees were called upon in
entirety, of which RMB461,547,000 had been utilized
by the associates as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB494,570,000).

41. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares issued of HK$0.01 each:

40. MBEREREE(E)

41.

AEBEERTHMBRERARBBEREZ
HRzERREERZAABEZTFE
BrRERWHIE  EEHAKESWRE ZE
REMZHRE -

EHZE2020F12A318  ERAEAA
K #461,547,000 (20194 : AR ¥
494,570,0007T) » BIAJREESKIER T
Hra2ErEReBE(BERASRAE) -
B A R #461,547,0007T(20194 © A
R#494,570,00070) B 20205 12 A
31 BEBERAER -

IR A F0 {5t 48

(a) K=&

ERTEBEER0.01ET

No. of Nominal

shares value

RGO EE HE

000’shares RMB’'000

Fhg AEETFIT

As at 1 January 2019 M2019F 1A 1 H 8,550,585 74,049
Cancellation of ordinary shares FTiE EimAR

(Note (i) (K152 (1) (159,010) (1,409)

Issue of ordinary shares (Note 42) 1832 @AX (Hfat42) 113,000 1,012

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A318 8,504,575 73,652
Cancellation of ordinary shares RSl

(Note (i) (HTaE (i) (137,720) (1,240)

As at 31 December 2020 R20205 128310 8,366,855 72,412
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41. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

254

(a)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

During the prior year, the Group repurchased
a total of 147,170,000 ordinary shares of
the Company from the market with total
consideration of RMB47,540,000, 159,010,000
ordinary shares of the Company with total
par value of RMB1,409,000 were cancelled,
the related costs of repurchase were
RMB49,313,000 and the exceed of costs of
repurchase over the par value of the shares of
RMB47,904,000 was charged to share premium.

During the current year, the Group repurchased
a total of 111,690,000 ordinary shares of
the Company from the market with a total
consideration of RMB33,274,000. 137,720,000
ordinary shares of the Company with total
par value of RMB1,240,000 were cancelled,
the related costs of repurchase were
RMB41,854,000 and the exceed of costs of
repurchase over the par value of the shares of
RMB40,614,000 was charged to share premium.

(b) Treasury shares for the purpose of share

awar

d schemes

During the year ended 31 December 2015,

151,500,000 ordinary shares were repurchased

from
HK$0

market at a price of approximately

.55 per share for a total consideration of

RMB66,572,000 and held as treasury shares for
the purpose of the Group’s share award scheme

(the “Scheme"), of which:

(i)

The directors of the Company approved
an aggregate number of 61,700,000
shares under such scheme and all of these
shares have been awarded to the relevant
participants of the scheme up to 31
December 2018.

41.

BAFFHE(E)
(a) BA&(E)
it -

(b)

(i)

(if)

RE—FERN AEBRTS
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47,540,0007T + 7 84 ¥ @ &
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41. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Treasury shares for the purpose of share
award schemes (CONTINUED)

(i) As at 4 April 2019, the board of directors
approved to grant an aggregate number of
33,000,000 shares under the Scheme two
directors. 8,250,000 shares were vested on
15 February 2020 (see Note 42).

(i)  On 22 April 2019, the board of directors
of the Company approved a special share
award scheme of 6,000,000 shares to be
awarded to employees of the Company
and all of these shares were vested on 26
April 2019.

(iv) On 29 April 2020, the board of directors
of the company approved a special share
award scheme of 4,000,000 shares to be
awarded to employees of the Company
and all of these shares were vested on 30
April 2020.

On 2 April 2019, the board of directors resolved
to grant an aggregate number of 113,000,000
shares under the Scheme to the employees of
the Company. 28,250,000 shares were vested
on 15 February 2020 (see Note 42).

As at 31 December 2020, 156,300,000
ordinary shares are held as treasury shares for
the purpose of share award schemes (2019:
196,800,000 shares).

41.

RAEMEE(E)

(b)

BB 8 EFR(E)

(i) F2019F 4848 ARQA
EEERBEZETE B E
33,000,000 % F3 A 42 B 44 7K
NAElZMBEES - R20204F
2HA15H8 B #% T8,250,000
IR (RBIE42) ©

(i)  H2019%F4H228 © AR A
¥ =2 i1/ 6,000,000 B% 45 Ik
Batn ST 8l - AR A
BEGARRIZEL TR
20194 4 26 HFERE T »

(iv) P2020F4F298 @ KR 7
T =2 ) 4,000,000 B 45 2R
i B2 T & - ZAR (D A A
BELAQRZET TR
20209F 4 B30 HEAE T »

20194828 & F & k&
RZTEI TRRARIEBR TR
113,000,000 f% < % 13 © 720204
2 A 15 BB ¥ 28,250,000 J& (5K
5E42) -

M 2020512 A31 8 156,300,000
I 3B P A 1 M B T AR R VRIS R IR
BB =t 21(20194F : 196,800,000
B&) °
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41. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

256

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus brought forward
represented the excess of the fair value of the
shares of the former holding company acquired
pursuant to the group reorganization in prior
years, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof.

Other reserves

Other reserves mainly represent share-based
payments reserve and included share-based
compensation recognized of which the related
share options have forfeited after the vesting
date or were still not exercised at the expiry
date.

Retained earnings

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the PRC, each of
the subsidiaries established in the PRC is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax to the
statutory reserves fund until such fund reaches
50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilized, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of the subsidiaries, provided that such
fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the subsidiaries’ registered capital. As at 31
December 2020, retained earnings of the Group
comprised statutory reserves fund amounting to
RMB697,202,000 (2019: RMB568,447,000).

RAEMEE(E)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BABER

RATEEL 2 BARBRIERIEIA
AEEEESHEIG Z RIER AR
Bz 2nE  BHARBERR
‘BTN ZEELZ &Y

Htvf# s
HtFEEEERUEFERRZ A
B RERZN  ZFEXMZK
RENTERARTURESBEERX
A ERITE

RERF

LRPBIAEEERE  PRRAAR
BMEANERAGTFMNEZ10%E
EERBAE  BEEUABEIR
RIFEMEARZ50%  ZESHER
EHER - REABRBTORA
RBIFEMEAR25% @ AT RSB ATER
WiE AR R BB IOE AR
&A% - 20209128318 -
AEERESETRBABZER
Wz & % A A R %697,202,000 7T
(2019 : AR¥5568,447,0007T) °
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42. SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

According to the share award scheme approved on 15
June 2015 by the board of directors of the Company,
under which shares of the Company will be awarded
to the Group's employees as an incentive (the
"Scheme").

On 4 April 2019, the board of directors approved to
grant an aggregate number of 33,000,000 shares
under the Scheme to two directors.

On 2 April 2019, the board of directors resolved to
grant 113,000,000 New Awarded Shares to not less
than 30 Selected Persons by way of allocate and issue
of the New Awarded Shares pursuant to the Specific
Mandate, out of which (a) 55,600,000 Connected
New Awarded Shares will be granted to 12 Connected
Grantees by way of allocate and issue of new Shares
pursuant to the Specific Mandate and (b) 57,400,000
Non-connected New Awarded Shares will be granted
to not less than 18 Non-connected Grantees. The
resolution was adopted by the special general meeting
of shareholders on 20 June 2019.

The vesting dates of the above aggregate
146,000,000 award shares are as follows:

On 15 February 2020(or in the Event that 1
5 February 2020 is not a Business Day,
the first Business Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2021(or in the Event that
15 February 2021 is not a Business Day,
the first Business Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2022(or in the Event that
15 February 2022 is not a Business Day,
the first Business Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2023(or in the Event that
15 February 2023 is not a Business Day,
the first Business Day thereafter)

42.

IR A0 R Bt &

KIE2015F6 4158 AR AlEFS
oz —EREERETE - BIEZTE
RARGBIELEERIR TFEBE T([5
21

MR2020F4 48 KRAREESRIE
7t 2036 33,000,000 A% A LA 28 B 46 A
NAEIZLES -

MN2019F4A2F EE €2 2R 8
REBEFRNRERE REITHEBRN
ZHANBMADRI0ZEFEA TR
113,000,000 8% ¥ 22 B) g 15+ E A (a)
55,600,000 A% 8 328 #T 42 B A% 10 15 38 1B 1R
BRI R BEITHRG 2 5
T 12 B EARA  K(b) 57,400,000
% FERRE T AR I TR 18 %
IEREAR A o IWRZEE N 2019F 6 A
20 AR RFRIA S @B -

Lt 485 146,000,000 I EEEN AR 10 < #%
TRHET :

20202 A 15 B (INRBE)
20202 A1sBT2E%R
JEREZE T —REEZEH)

20214E2 A 15 B (R BE|
2021%F2 A15HT=RE%¥AH -
JEfEE T —EE%8)

202242 A 15 H(IREE
2022F2 A1SATREER
JEfEE T —EE%H)

202342 A15 B (INEEE
202342 A15BTREEA -
JEREZ T —E=%H)

25%

25%

25%

25%
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B R M A

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the 146,000,000 shares awarded
on the grant date was valued at HK$0.3236 to
HK$0.3510 each share.

36,500,000 shares were vested on 15 February
2020. The related fair value of the vested shares of
RMB11,337,000 was released from other reserves
to eliminate the related cost of treasury shares of
RMB3,878,000. The difference of RMB7,459,000 was
credited to share premium.

On 29 April 2020, the board of directors approved to
grant an aggregate number of 4,000,000 shares under
the Scheme to two employees of the Company, of
which one is the senior management of the Company,
and all of these shares were vested on 30 April 2020.
The fair value of the shares awarded was HK$0.29
each share on the grant date, which were based on
the market value of the Company’s shares. The related
fair value of the vested shares of RMB1,052,000
was released from other reserves to eliminate the
related cost of treasury shares of RMB1,758,000.
The difference of RMB706,000 was charged to share
premium.

Movements in the number of awarded shares during
the year are as follows:

42.

MR 10 S =t & (42)

ERE T H & F 146,000,000 8
BEZALNMEASR03236ELE
0.3510/87T °

7202042 A15H © 36,500,000 % &
ERBEE EHBERMNZEBEARE
AR #11,337,000 70 #¢ £ b 15 & = 40
B DREF AR 2 B A AR
3,878,0007T » A R % 7,459,000 2
EEGT ARG IRE °

R2020F4 8298 AARIEEFSH
/E 4,000,000 R Bk IR (0 B2 ED R &) 0 3%
KO BUNEEGE AR MBET
HEbh—RARAeE  WHK2020%4
A30BZEAE T - ERETFAHRARK
EZEomE BTRODZAREEARS
029t EEBRHD ZMEBE AR
E AR 1,052,000 T #E A5 40
Bro MEBEGFRMD ZEERKEAARE
1,758,000 T °» A R # 706,000 7T 2 =
BT ARDRE °

BERGZBELHIT -

Number of shares

RO BE
2020 2019
As at 1 January M1HA1H 146,000,000 —
Granted during the year ER T 4,000,000 152,000,000
Vested during the year BB EE (40,500,000) (6,000,000)
As at 31 December »12 A31H 109,500,000 146,000,000

The Group recognized total expense of
RMB15,179,000 (2019: RMB20,030,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 in relation to the Scheme.

B Z2020F12A31BILFEE - A&
Ept AN QR 2 BB R S A
A AR 15,179,000 T(2019 : AR
20,030,000 7T) ©
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

43. REREREBERMETE

(a) REXBFBZHRE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARBFTT ARKFIT
Profit before income tax KR ETS R R G F 762,626 652,206
Adjustments for: B
Finance costs AR 12 404,420 384,809
Interest income A EUA 7 (10,964) (9,605)
Depreciation of property, M - HEREE
plant and equipment e 495,132 462,555
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ {F AR EEIE
assets 40,672 38,185
Amortization of other Hmp & ERH
intangible assets 208 319
Release of deferred TRIEBUT 1 B8 55
government grants 39 (1,660) (1,984)
Write-down of inventories FERE 8 3,669 —
Impairment loss on M - BEREE
property, plant and HIE
equipment 17 23,427 —
Impairment loss on ﬁ? IE
(reversed)/recognized o), R
contract assets 9 (635) 6,970
Impairment loss (reversed)/ EUE 2R FURE
recognized on trade CENG
receivables 9 (6,636) 4,312
Impairment loss on other Hh e BR TR E
receivables 9 16,970 29,469
Impairment loss on amounts  FEUREAE D FIFUE
due from associates B 9 — 2,307
Impairment loss recognized/ — JEIA &R
(reversed) on amounts RERER,(E[E)
due from joint ventures 9 1,200 (2,498)
Fair value gains on financial BARBEFAEREL
assets at FVTPL TREEZEHNE 8 (21,888) (15,072)
Fair value loss/(gains) on REES AL EE
derivative component of ggEE, ()
convertible loan 8 5,771 (21,085)
Share-based compensation PARR 1) A B2 2 1 3R 42 15,179 20,030
Share of loss/(profit) of FE(HEB 2 R AEE,
associates, net &) - FEE 3,987 (17,406)
Share of profit of joint BhashEER
ventures, net SFER (118,265) (136,889)
Gain on disposal/ HE EEMBRARZ
de-registration of Weas - 5
subsidiaries, net 8 (85,931) (79,784)
(Gain)/loss on disposal/ HE FIEAENEY
de-registration of joint (Wezs) /K598 - F5
ventures, net 8 (24,594) 370
Exchange (gain)/loss, net FE 3, (s ) /18
YEER 8 (21,824) 2,791
Loss on disposal of property,  HEWME - FE N & E
plant and equipment Z 518 8 4,239 5,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

43. GERERERMEE)

(@) Cash generated from operations (a) REEBREZRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 AR¥TFT AREFr
Operating profit before EEESRB I 2LE
working capital changes: A 1,485,103 1,325,277
(Increase)/decrease in FEGEM),/®>
inventories (3,247) 7,525
(Increase)/decrease in trade EWE SRR REE
and bills receivables (140),/F (1,043,155) 15,730
(Increase)/decrease in AR - e REM
prepayments, deposits and JEWFRIE (3 )R
other receivables (434,055) 118,688
Decrease/(increase) in contract & RIEER L (3EHN)
assets 393,920 (304,974)
Decrease/(increase) in loan FEWE TR ()
receivables 54,653 (40,184)
(Increase)/decrease in finance JEWRIETHE
lease receivables (), md (6.286) 538
Increase in amounts due from  JEUEE & N B ZEIE AN
associates (39,550) (37,413)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts JEUA L2 HIE
due from joint ventures S (3Ean) 29,876 (4,004)
(Decrease)/increase in trade JENE SR NEE
and bills payable CRA),/ 0 (413,852) 34,366
Increase/(decrease) in other H {th < 0B R FEET
payables and accruals FIEE N, CRd) 1,099,591 (215,452)
(Decrease)/increase in contract &RBAGECHD), 1L
liabilities (31,790) 33,979
Decrease in amounts due to JE (B R BRI R
associates — (234)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts JEfTA & DEHKIE
due to joint ventures CR),/ 18 m (49,070) 34,106
Cash generated from REXBHBzRE
operations 1,042,138 967,948
(b) Disposal/de-registration of subsidiaries (b) HE FHHEHELQF

During the year, the Group disposed certain
equity interests in its wholly-owned subsidiaries
to independent third parties for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,425,226,000 (2019:
RMB300,087,000), and resulting an aggregate
gain on disposal of RMB87,634,000 (2019:

RMB84,761,000).

During the year, the Group deregistered certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group and
recorded an aggregate loss on de-registrations
of RMB1,703,000 (2019: RMB19,991,000).

KEE  AEBBRELE2EN
BRAZEZHBREUARK
1,425,226,00070(20194F : A R
¥ 300,087,000 ) 2 B L E 4
BUE=H  WHILESRTAR
#87,634,0007C(20194F : A K
#84,761,00070) 2 R E WS °

AFEE  AEBFHETASE L
EWNBRAR  FHELEEE
A FR#1,703,00070(20194 © A
F#19,991,0007T) °
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43. #®
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

ERENEBRMEE(E)

(b) Disposal/de-registration of subsidiaries (b) HE SHEMEBARE)
(CONTINUED)
The gain on disposal/de-registration of HeE S BE ARz - JFRE
subsidiaries, net, is as follows: mE

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFr
Consideration: HHE
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHT B ARSI F 5 1,425,226 505,686
Proceeds from de-registration of FESEMT B A R TS RURF R
subsidiaries 1 7,156
1,425,227 512,842
Carrying amount of net assets of ~ FrHEWB AR 2 HEE
subsidiaries disposed of: 2 BRHEE -
Right-of-use assets PHEESE 186,767 36,584
Property, plant and equipment M - R MR 3,505,653 1,379,413
Trade receivables JEUE 5 8RN 616,566 13,486
Contract assets ERIEE 256,856 59,632
Prepayments deposits and other TERIE - e REM
receivables FEUL FRIE 261,973 191,735
Amounts due from fellow JEUR B BB A &) 2 FUIB
subsidiaries 49,315 47,695
Deferred tax assets RIEFTISTREE 16,880 1,991
Intangible assets mpEE 3,000 —
Inventories FE 388 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEER 73,107 69,773
Other borrowings HAm a3 (1,166,601) (478,768)
Bank borrowings RITEK (1,434,735) (270,000)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JEfIMIEB AT Z K (711,102) (462,948)
Deferred government grants TEE R F ﬁﬁﬂ — (5,976)
Other payables and accruals Hib et I8 M et R (305,065) (141,169)
1,353,002 441,448
Realised profits on transactions AEBENBARMER S
between the Group and these EER K
subsidiaries 78,464 10,060
Fair value of interests retained as B1725% B & N R
25% of associates ZRnfE — 55,075
Fair value of interests retained as ~ #77 33.34% Bt & A 7]
33.34% of an associate WmZ ANREBE 5,000 —
Goodwill released upon disposal BREEHEENF19)
(Note 19) (69,758) (56,745)
Gain on disposal/de-registration of H& FHIEMEB AR Z
subsidiaries, net Was - F 85,931 79,784
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43. SABERBRME(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal/de-registration of subsidiaries (b) HE SHHBATRE)
(CONTINUED)
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal and HE MM B AT TSR IE %8
deregistration: BE:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFIT
Consideration for disposal of HE M B A RIEHE
subsidiaries 1,425,226 505,686
Proceeds received upon de- Mt A RIFHIHFT 1
registration of subsidiaries 1 7,156
Consideration not yet received and 7 W B K2 5+ A E A fE U k1A
recorded in other receivables 2 HE (230,542) (41,397)
Deposits received in prior years VARTF E BN E R (21,530) —
Cash and cash equivalents RRNGRE M SRR 2
derecognized from the RELREFEER
consolidated financial statements (73,107) (69,773)
1,100,048 401,672
Consideration for prior year's AEEEWRTFELE
disposals received in the current FIHZHE
year 39,486 12,500
1,139,534 414,172
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

43. GERERERMEE)

Disposal/de-registration of joint ventures () HE Segix
During the year, the Group disposed of joint REE  KEBLHESLSDE
ventures for an aggregate consideration of RE AR 52,196,000 7T I #E R
RMB52,196,000 and resulting in aggregate gain HE F Iz AR 25,032,000 7T ©
on disposal of RMB25,032,000.
During the year, the Group de-registration of REE  NEEFZHE 620D E
a joint venture, received RMB9,381,000 and W@ 4% & 2 A K% 9,381,000 7T
recorded an aggregate loss on de-registration of B EE AR 438,000 °
RMB438,000.
Disposal of property, plant and equipment d HEME BELSEE
An analysis of the cash proceeds from the SEBeRERT  HEME K
disposal of property, plant and equipment is as ENRERESFIEEREAS
follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Net carrying amount (Note 17) BREFEMZ17) 7,578 11,500
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HEWE « BEM&EZ
and equipment (Note 8) BB (K7 8) (4,239) (5,277)
Consideration for the disposal HEHE 3,339 6,223
Less: Settled with other receivables & : HEfth e Ut zk 8 (944) (50)
Net cash proceeds received W BI38 & W e ) F 58 2,395 6,173
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44. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 44, RERBEIHIABIYHESR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s TEREHFM TAEERERBRETEH A
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BE2EE BIERESNIIERSES - &
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising RRETHELE EE HBEBR ST
from financing activities are those for which cash ERAKBESTEEREEANEFRS H#
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in ReREXPTREITHELE RS RE
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as B o
cash flows from financing activities.
Senior
notes
Bank Other and bonds Convertible Lease Interest
borrowings borrowings  payable loan liabilities payable* Total
(Note 33)  (Note 34) ~ (Note 35)  (Note 36)
/= % + E{#Ejﬁ ES &
gEEY RpAR EERMY TRRER EERM AGRE: g
(We£33) (Wit 34) (WiE35) (Wi 36)
RWB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RWB'000 RWB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBFL ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETRL AREFR
At 1 January 2020 %2020?1315 3,327,529 4,514,146 1,392,941 418,232 92,707 75715 9,821,270
Changes from financing cash HERERED:

flows:

Proceeds from bank borrowings {7 EFFE5R 314,840 - - - - — 314,840

Repayment from bank BERTER

borrowings (1,100,483) - — - - — (1,100,483)

Proceeds from other EfiEFAENE

borrowings » — 2,173,286 - - - — 2,173,286

Repayment of other borrowings ~ EEEMEF —  (549,888) - - - —  (549,888)

Deposits placed FES - (30m) - - - - (3301)

Repayment of lease liabilities EREERE - - - - (11,005) - (11,005)

Issue of senior notes, BERZE

net of issuance expenses NEEITEA - - 824 - - - 84

Repurchase of senior notes mEEEZE — —  (20,767) - - - (20,767)

Interest paid I8 (157,982) (272,203)  (62.383) (6,515  (3476)  (75715) (578,274)
Disposal of subsidiaries MEMBAAET (1,034,282)  (619,401) - - - — (1,653,683)
Bills received yEge — 733,79 — - — — 733,79
Interest expenses (Note 12)¢ MEXE (Wit 12)* 158,466 300531 116905 41,734 3,606 - 1.4
Fair value changes NpBEER — - — 5,771 - - 5,771
Exchange differences ERZE (841) — (90,9200 (27.557)  (5718) —  (125,036)
At 31 December 2020 ®2020512A318 1,507,247 6,247,250 1,364,018 431,665 76,114 — 9,626,294
At 1 January 2019 ®2019%151R 4,371,622 2,690,255 1,662,681 200,825 101,120 71,856 9,098,359
Financing cash flows BERLTA (373919) 1,403,639  (300,000) 199,839 (13,7100 (502,744) 413,105
Disposal group held for sale Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BE (400,453)  (547,200) — — — —  (947,653)
Disposal of subsidiaries LERRARED (270,000)  (478,768) - - - — (748,768
Deposits placed RES — 7569 - — — — 7569
Set off with deposits placed RESERMH45)

(Note 45) — (30,280) — — — — (30,280)
Bills received W2IRiE — 1,400,805 - - - — 1,400,805
Interest expenses (Note 12)* ISS MM 12) - - - - — 550588 550,588
Difference between coupon SEFENERFREE

interest and effective interest ) — — 11,519 26,753 — (38,272) —
Fair value changes DHEERE — - — (21,085 — — (21,085
Exchange differences Eiz2 279 — 18741 11,900 5,297 (5,713) 30,504
At 31 December 2019 #2019 128318 3,327,529 4514146 1392941 418232 92,707 75,715 9,821,270
* The movements of interest expenses attributable to * SEENIBITER HME - EMAE

bank borrowings, other borrowings, senior notes and %TTFWTE%&—IL% A NEE
bonds payable and convertible loan are group under RERERNENFIBEET -

interest payable.
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45. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

46.

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into
financing arrangements with the Financial
Institution in respect of property, plant and
equipment and drew down an aggregate
amount of RMB2,907,076,000 (2019:
RMB2,984,836,000) from the Financial
Institution, of which RMB733,790,000 (2019:
RMB1,400,805,000) was received in the
form of bills. Further details of the financing

arrangements are set out in Note 34.

As at 31
amount of security deposits placed with the
Financial Institution of RMB113,942,000 (2019:
RMB128,530,000) was offset with certain

repayment instalments of other borrowings as

December 2020, an aggregate

agreed with the Financial Institution.

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

At 31

December 2020, the Group had capital

expenditure contracted for but not provided for in the

45. FEZIRERSH

(a)

46. i

TRFRN NEERDE - BE

FEESREBIT T RE B
FUNERMEBEATIERAR
#2,907,076,0007(2019 1 A R
#2,984,836,0007L) *+ A AR
# 733,790,000 T(2019 : AR ¥
1,400,805,000 7T ) M Z= 85 72 = Ik
B o BEBEFIBIENMIFE3S -

B E2020F12A831H ¥15%
MUEBERESINGEREE
RESZT AR 113,942,000
(20194 = AR™ 128,530,0007T)
WRAREE R LRz D HE

e
AN

BRARE

R20205F12 A31 HigA BB KD
AEBERIAREBINMAEEZEXRRH

consolidated financial statements is as follows: T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR TT
Acquisition of property, BEWME  WEIEE
plant and equipment 2,441,692 1,471,579
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

266

47.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the following material

transactions were carried out by the Group with

related parties during the year:

BBAEX5
(a) BRAHZEHBHRERFTREEEIN

AT RRAHANERERITET IR
5

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFor
Sales of goods and services to MEtE R REGEDE
associates and joint ventures HE B m & R%
(Note (i) irz30), 64,668 62,808
Guarantee income from associates B4 A AR UL A
(Note (ii) (Baz (i) 9,065 4,342
Finance lease of associates BN a sEIRA
(Note (iii) (B (i) 3,070 1,957
Notes: Bt -
(i)  The terms and conditions of sales of goods and () HEEREREEEFREZE
services were mutually agreed by both parties. FARFRELRN A -

(ii)  Further details of these guarantees are set out in

Note 40.

(iii)

Finance lease income arose from associates bear

interest at 8.5% per annum during the year.

In addition, a deposit paid for project investments
of RMB37,860,000 was guaranteed by a senior
management. Such deposit had been settled in the

current year.

(i) ELERFBRANHEA0 -

ABERARREERZBERE R
REMFKB.5%:TE °

(iii)

[N
37,860,000 TH —H = &
R ZERSCOHAFLHEE -

EXNBEBEREREARE
BEABE
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47.

48.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Key management compensation

Key management personnel are those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the
Group. The total remuneration of the key

management personnel is shown below:

47. BHRAERS (&)

(b) BHREEEHH

REIEABREARE
aHE - ARSI
B BREEAEH

I B FHETT
SEESHZA
PaazEm T -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT AEEFIT

Salaries and other short-term FehEMEHESREF
employee benefits 36,247 21,186
Share-based compensation AR 19 BB 2 3R 9,817 12,257
46,064 33,443

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

R TEER

B-HENERHEE-BERTANK

financial instruments at the end of each reporting EEEMT
period are as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR TFr
Financial assets SEMEE
Fair value through profit or loss BAREEFAEBD 325,465 142,939
Amortized cost LSRR E 4,674,538 2,711,705
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortized cost ABEERA ANET 2 12,790,557 12,587,019
Derivative financial instruments AR EEFEZITE
at FVTPL (Note 36) eI AT 36) 20,512 15,358
Financial guarantee contract liabilities BA#5¥E(RA R & & (K152 40)
(Note 40) 31,142 42,906
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
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POLICIES

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of
financial risks. The management periodically analyses
and reviews measures to manage its exposure to
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit
risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding its risk management and has not
used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging

purposes.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s major financial
instruments include trade and bills receivable, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and current account balances with associates and
joint ventures, cash and cash equivalents, restricted
deposits, trade and bills payable, lease liabilities
payables for construction in progress, other payables
and accruals, bank borrowings, other borrowings,
senior notes and bonds payable, and convertible loan.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

49.

Bt % LB E 2R

AEBEARZZBRYBRR - EEEEH
D MRETREEERTSAREE
SRR HERERAREBENXME
f2) mRBUESRABREEERRZE
Mo —MmME  AEEERRERR
HRSTRES - WA ANMERERNITETA
A T AEEIPAE -

M2020F 12 A318 ' AEEz&/mT
AEXERERKEZIERRER - &
MEMEWTIE - BARBETAEBZ
ZEBMEE/AE - B EMBEA
AIE - U RN A ERERIE - B
W,/ ERHEECE2ER Be kB
Z£EEL  XRHIGFER EFEIEXR
RERE - HEBE  HiEARIERE
TR - RITER - EMER - BEAR
BREMNES  TERER - @8I A
2 BLBEET RABFERT R o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign
exchange risk arises from monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies.

The Group operates mainly in the PRC, the
United States of America and Hong Kong.
Majority of revenue and cost of goods
sold and operations are denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"). Almost all of the
revenue and costs are denominated in
the group entities’ respective functional

currencies.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily with respect to the changes
of exchange rate of United States dollars
("US$"”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is pegged with US$, against RMB,
which is the functional currency of most
of the Group’s operating entities. As at
31 December 2020, recognized assets
or liabilities that are denominated in a
currency that is not the entities’ functional
currency include cash and cash equivalents
(Note 29) and senior notes (Note 35).

49.

MERREE(E)
() WHEB
(i) IMNEmAE

SNERBREERTIAEZAR
BEIARKBSRESHE
REHMBEB 2R - HME
RmsEHECERERE
REBBEESE -

AEBERAEPEARKM
CRXBERBFELE X2
WABRBEEY R FERAR
AARKEE - BFHRENR
ARKAZEEEER 2

BRI -

AEEINERRFEEZHET
MBETHAREBAEARF
ZEEEY - DARBZE
KEEER - EEITTEM o
HZE2020F12A31H B
BRAINEHEZEENE
BIERAZTERBEEE S
EZEREReRREEEE
B (M 5229) A& 5t = & (b
F£35) o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (CONTINUED)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in
RMB to US$/HK$ exchange rates ("RMB —
US$/HKS ™),
constant, of the Group's profit after tax

with all other variables held

due to changes in the carrying value of

monetary assets and liabilities.

49.

MHERERE(E)

(a)

miSRAE(E)

(i)

SHEEm B ()

TREBRNMERBMAR - ER
FrEEMBEHEETE A
REBEERBEZREB
BEEE  EHAEEREF
HHARERLET BT
Ex(TAR® — Ex/#8

TBEEGBBETEH 2 H

2020 2019
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in profit after tax

in profit after tax

BigeFmEEm . BEMEENS
OR2) O )
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB — US$/HK$ ARMESET, B
Appreciation of RMB by ~ AR¥FES%
5% 63,481 92,218
Depreciation of RMB by AR E5%
5% (63,481) (92,218)

Cashflow and fair value interest rate
risk

Cashflow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk
is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate as it is issued at

fixed interest rates.

(i) BERBRAAEEFER

4

RengMERk AT
ARKBAZRESET SN
REPMBEB2EE - DR
BENXREBRATEBTAE
18 A 170 B E M R E M
(e
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RE VIR
49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 49. BiEREREIE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Market risk (CONTINUED) (a) THBEKEE)
(ii) Cashflow and fair value interest rate (i) B2rERAAEBEFER

risk (CONTINUED)

The Group's cashflow interest rate risk
arises from bank balances, loans to joint
ventures and bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cashflow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by bank balances held at
variable rates.

The Group's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's bank balances
and interest-bearing bank borrowings
with a floating interest rate. The effective
interest rates and terms of repayment of
the interest-bearing bank borrowings of
the Group are disclosed in Note 33. No
sensitivity analysis has been presented for
the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances as the directors of the Company
consider that, taking into account that
the fluctuation in interest rates on bank
balances is minimal, the impact of profit or
loss both for the current and prior years is
insignificant.

The following analysis demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates for floating rate bank
borrowings, with all other variables held
constant.

B (&)

AEBERSRMERRERKA
RITHE - TREDLEZE
RN IRITER » REBE T
FHNERT2ERAEERS
MM EREE - AJREE ZF
B RIRITERER AR (D 1K 5K -

AEBEHTHE M XEFHER
TERAEEMNRITE
AERTEERFBNNEE
B MR BEAEEG
BRITEFNERMNERE
ARG - ARAREERE
RE - RITEHNEEH A
R B AFEREGENTZE
TR B2 B HIRITHERR
M RETEREME D o

TRAWER T ERMFB
BRRHETEZHRT -
CEESIEPAS:LET 1)
ESHBEH -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

272

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Cashflow and fair value interest rate
risk (CONTINUED)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2019: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit after tax for the year ended
31 December 2020 would have decreased/
increased by RMB34,710,000 (2019:
RMB36,484,000).

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year.

As at 31 December 2020, The Group is
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to financial assets at FVTPL. No
sensitivity analysis has been presented as
the directors of the Company consider that
the impact to profit or loss for both the
current and prior years is insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
measured at FVTPL. The Group invested
in certain unquoted equity securities for
investees operating in renewable energy
industry sector for long-term strategic
purposes which are stated at FVTPL. The
Group monitors the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

49.

MRREBERE)
(a) WEEMRE)
(i) BEzREBRAILEEFER

B (%)

HEHEEFTRESOEER
(2019 : 50fE & 25 ) - M Fr
EEMBEHFTE AKX
EBEE 202012831 H
IEFEZB®FNERL
# 51 A K # 34,710,000 7T
(2019 : A R % 36,484,000
TT) °

bl b SRR E D ATES - R
REBEHRREEZSHBT
AREFEFRIDAREE -

MR2020F12 A31H &
EEBRIEREANEMETA
BREJERMEETRKZAR
BEMNERR KNARES
REZRABEAER FFIE
mEBATE  FURET
BURERIE -

(i) R E#EERE

AEBAEHZARAREE
AEAEEHTAEHES
SRS A MRERE
RIERERER - N EEE
FHBRZBNKRER DA
BARRITEZIFLMER
HES BRARARBEFE
BEEZHFABRRIE - K
SHEEZERRER - f[HZR
Gk 3B R AREEGE
BERRERBE -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other price risk (CONTINUED)

No sensitivity analysis has been presented
as the directors of the Company consider
that the impact on profit or loss for the
current year is insignificant, taking into
account that (i) the carrying amount of
the investments is insignificant; and (ii)
the impact to profit or loss is not material
based on a reasonably possible change in

fair value of 10%.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash reserves and banking facilities deemed
adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows and match maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. In
addition to the currently available facilities,
management expects that further banking
facilities will be available by pledging those
newly completed power plant equipment.

The table below analyses the financial
liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity
groups based on the remaining period at the
reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest

rate at the end of the reporting period.

49. MBEMBER(E)

(a)

(b)

mEER(E)

(i) RE%ERE(E)

HRAR Tﬁ%%)‘éxﬂ(')a
EFREZIREBBERN

(I ERRAEEI0% E’\]/—\ﬁ
BEEE  HMERRRY

BENFETEAN ARE
b (B AR R 2 AN E £ B a5 Y
FER) - A REHERE

DITEITHIR -

RBE SRR
EHRREERE - AERERSEER
ﬂ#ﬁ“ﬁ’ﬂfﬁi\&fﬁ/\g{ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BEE AR RA RS
mE ﬁ:rﬁiﬁ’i\ﬁi/&%bﬂ’ﬂ%;
ThEeetREERBENIHE
Koo K%*WT%Z%EFWI\ C EIRE
HIZmBE M E TN EMRE
NESBEINRITERREE -

E/‘ /L

TRETAEEZETEESRE
& RRAEERHER - BEHRE
F ERESRIER 2 FIeREARE

ETON - ERARBESALERN
AEEHRERZFEFRARAED
REFHR 2 ERARENE - ZRE
FEHEMARESIBEM o ARFETR
RFBFE - ARMRSFRE R
EHRZHFEK -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

49. MBEBER(E)

(b) Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (b) REBESER(E)
As at 31 December 2020 7A2020F12A31H
Weighted On
average demand
effective or less Total Total
interest than 6to0 12 1to2 Over2 undiscounted  carrying
rate 6 months months years years  cashflows amount
iETH it
ERAZE  OR6ER  6128R 126 2f0E  RERER REEAE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABRTE  ARETT ARBTL  AREFZ  ARRTT  ARETZ
Trade and bills payable ~ ERESERLER — 819569 140,401 - — 959970 959,970
Payables for construction in R k2 &l
progress, other payables  EHEMNFER
and accruals fEst R — 1,423,806 356,190 155,600 362,952 2,298,548 2,298,548
Amounts due tojoint  ERAELENA
ventures - 4,873 - - - 4873 4873
Senior notes and bonds ~ ENEXRERER
payable 8.3%-11.8% 873,255 31,564 63,128 633,247 1,601,194 1,364,018
Convertible loan THRER 10.3% 23,910 6910 249411 232192 512423 431,665
Bank borrowings BRR 10%53% 114103 122070 224116 1,347,289 1807578 1,507,247
Other borrowings AR 4.8%-6.1% 336,231 431,723 845,640 6,708,574 8322168 6,247,250
Lease liabilities BERR 4.00% 6,781 6,781 13474 60917 87,953 76,114
— 3602528  1,095639 1,551,369 9345171 15594707 12,889,685
Financial quarantee issued BT ZRAR
maximum amount (Hiit40)
quaranted (Note 40) - 461,547 - - - 461,547 31,14
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 49. BIRBEE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (b) REBELEAKE)
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
Weighted On
average demand
effective or less Total Total
interest than 6012 Tt02 Over 2 undiscounted carrying
rate 6 months months years years  cashilows amount
g ENiE]

ERHE  JnefA 61fEA 2% 1% ReR#E  REEME
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB00  RMBO00  RMB000  AMB'00
NRETE  ARETT ARETL ARETL ARETT  ARRTZ

Trade and bills payable ~ ENZESEFREE — 673,057 55808 276933 75834 1081632 1,081,632
Payables for construction in Rk &l
progress, other payables  ZHEFFER

and accruals R — 1005573 257182 239346 250,453 1852554 1,852,554
Amounts due tojoint  ERAELENA

ventures — 53,943 - — - 53,943 53,943
Senior notes and bonds BN BEEERER

payable 8.3% 55,112 55112 1450352 — 1560576 1,392,941
Convertible loan RREER 102% 401 4,234 3054 513813 554772 418,232
Bank borrowings GENCE 2.7%-6.9% 415248 236,131 40519 2,987,047 4078945 3,327,529
Other borrowings Hfrfest 50%-65% 200,777 222309 744109 4403546 5572741 4,514,146
Lease liabilities HERE 4.0% 7571 7571 14,500 79,536 109,178 92,707

— 2517482 838347 3198283 8310229 14864341 12,733,684

Financial quarantee issued BT ERAR
maximum amount (f:t40)
quaranted (Note 40) - 504,666 - - - 504,666 42,906

275



2020 £ %

HEHEREEERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MW AR M EE
49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (CONTINUED)

The amounts included above of variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ from those estimate
of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to

the guarantee.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties or
debtors provided by the Group is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognized
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the amount
of financial guarantees provided by the Group as
disclosed in Note 40.

49.

MRREBERE)
(b) REBESEARE)

(c)

J:LL%‘F?ETE%EEE%T%%J?—IEL

Z BRI BN R B ERE R
EEEEZ%'J%EEHEZE@J%%W
@,

PRERERAOTREZSER
BRTREERER  2EERL
BT ARE A RERBRER 2 &K
T o

FERERKREFE

B E2020F128318 A& E
X FEFHEBARERITEE
ARAREBARERMEMAE &KX
EERBR(BERAEBRELNT
EE)RHREAUBMRRIER L2
EEERACHMEECREABEEE
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REMBHRMHE

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 49, BIEREBREE(EZ)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (0 ERRBERESGE)

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group generally
does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets, except for financial lease
receivables and loan receivables whose credit
loss can be mitigate by the underlying leased

assets.

The Group's credit risk primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, contract assets
and amounts due from associates and joint
ventures which is arose during the course of
the Group's business operations. The Group has
policies in place to review the recoverability of
these receivables on an ongoing basis and assess

the adequacy of provision for impairment.

For trade receivables, the management of the
Group limit credit risk by assessing the credit
quality of the customers, perform ongoing
credit evaluation taking into account its financial
position, past trade experience and other factors.
The Group's trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally
30 to 180 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group has concentration of
credit risk because trade receivables from its
top five customers accounted for 49% (2019:
49%) of the Group's trade receivables as at 31
December 2020.

R2020912 A31 8 &K £ B &
BB AR G B A (S A
T LREEERSREERRBNE
AR - Hi 2 aiHE ERGIE
FEWE R BRAN - HAZ BB AI LB
BIEEAEEERE -

rEBEGFERREEZRRNE HHM
Hipfel sk - EREEARERSE
BEBEEBEPEERE QAN
BECERWIE - AEESIET
BOR - NFHEET L RYGRET]

W - PR B A -
RELE DERTE - AREESE

BBaBIHEFEERERHIE
ERR - &R EMBRR - BEE

S B R B R = ETTIREE ERT
e NREBERF ZZXFEMEE

ZhRiE- ERH—MA30E180
KXo BREEFPHE —EAZAEARE
E-&SBEERRE+T BARAHE
F2020F12A31H IABEF
ZEWE SFhEERKE 550
49% (20194F : 49%) °
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

278

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

For the amounts due from associates and joint
ventures, financial positions of the associates
and joint ventures are regularly monitored in
order to minimise the credit risk associated
with receivables due from associates and joint

ventures.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables to minimize credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances based
on provision matrix or individually and other
debtors individually. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks of the Group's bank balances are
limited because these balances are placed with

reputable financial institutions.

The credit risks on financial guarantee provided
by the Group and finance lease receivables are
limited as the counterparties have no default
in the past and the management of the Group
does not expect any loss arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.

49.

MRREBERE)
(o) FRARRBEBERNMEGE)

FLIEUHE 2 AR A BB RFAM
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 49. BIRBEE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (0 ERRBERESGE)
(CONTINUED)
The Group's internal credit risk grading REBRIR= AR D HL(EBHE
assessment comprises the following categories: LATREER

Trade receivables,

Internal credit contract assets and
rating Description finance lease receivables Other financial assets
ERRKR - GREEM

RHERSER  HA MEHERKR HittEREE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default  Lifetime ECL — not credit-  12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts impaired

ERE RHUFZEHRRRE REEMAH EEFENANESEREL NEARBEREX
i — REEERAE

Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — not credit-  Lifetime ECL — not credit-
in credit risk since initial recognition impaired impaired

through information developed internally
or external resources

N AFFNBRENERET - BNREZRN  BEFEHAEHERAREL BEFEBNEHERAEX
RIEERBREBZEM — REEERRE — REEERRE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-
credit-impaired impaired impaired
BE FRERAEERLETEARA REFEHNENEREL BEFESNEHERREX
— A ERARE — ¥EERRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
% BEBRABRBAGERENIHAE - B 2EEHKH RO
SERAREFIENH B A8
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

280

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(CONTINUED)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures

of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject

to ECL assessment:

49. MBABRER (&)

(o) FRARRBEBERNMEGE)

TRHFAIL TARENSREE
MiERARRKO - EEmRT A
ERRRHENTE

Gross carrying

Internal Credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
R R NEAREEFENERERAX BEE
RMB’000
AE®FT
Financial assets at amortized
costs
BESRAARTEZERHEE
Trade receivables (Note 24)
BB B (N7 24)
— Sale of electricity Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL 895,246
—ENiEE ERR (17 b) BEFERNEAEREL
— Others Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL 103,952
—Efb ERR (12 b) BEGEENBAEREL
Loss Credit-impaired 15,988
Bk ERRE
1,015,186
Other receivables (Note 25) Low risk 12-month ECL 823,736
Et I (M7 25) {iNE NEARESREREX
Doubtful (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 41,497
RE(H b)) BETERNEAEREL
(REEERAE)
Loss Credit-impaired 65,425
Bx ERRE
930,658
Amounts due from associates
(Note 20)
L A=YNSI RN 0,
— trade nature Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 8,731
—B5ME BRRMEZ D) BEGEENBRERER
(REEERAE)
Loss Credit-impaired 2,307
Bk ERRE
— non-trade nature Low risk (Note (a)) 12-month ECL 32,419
—FEHMHE BERB (Wi () 12 BANEBEREL
Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 36,710
ERR(H17b) BEFERNEAEREL
(REEERAE)
80,167
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49.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(CONTINUED)

49. MBABRER (&)

(o) FRARRBEBERNMEGE)

Gross carrying

Internal Credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
mE BER NEAREEFENERERAX BEE
RMB’000
AE®FT
Amounts due from joint ventures
(Note 21)
ERAEEREFTRNF21)
— trade nature Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 9,529
—B5ME BERB (W b)) BAGEENBERERER
(REEERAE)
— non-trade nature Low risk 12-month ECL 17,733
—FEHMHE Rk NEARESREREX
Loss Credit-impaired 9,082
Bx ERRE
36,345
Loan receivables (Note 27) Low risk (Note (a)) 12-month ECL 29,394
BWER(H##27) BERB (W) NEARESREREX
Cash and cash equivalents Low risk 12-month ECL 2,280,459
(Note 29)
ReRBeSENWH29) ERER NEANEHEREX
Restricted deposits (Note 29) Low risk 12-month ECL 327,610
REIEER (M2 29) KRR NEARESREREX
Other items
HitgE
Contract assets (Note 23)
BRAEMNFH23)
— Tariff adjustment amounts Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 329,385
— EREERER BERB (b)) BEFEENBERERELR
(REEERAE)
— Others Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 374,504
— Htt ERR (A1) BEFEENBAERELR
(REEERANE)
Doubtful (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 13,892
REMEDG) BEFEENBAERELR
(REEERAE)
717,781
Finance lease receivables (Note 26) Low risk (Note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 24,140
BEMERRFIEWH26) ERR (A7 b) BEGTERNEAEREL
(REEERHE)
Financial guarantee contracts Low risk (Note (c)) 12-month ECL 31,141
(Note 40)
PBERAR(HE40) ERR(AZ () NEARESREREX
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 49, BIEREBREE(EZ)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EARBEBETMEE)
(CONTINUED)
Note: Hiat
(a)  For the purposes of internal risk management, (@ RAXEBREREZE® FAEEH
the Group uses past due information to assess FRABABAEMTEERRR
whether credit risk has increased significantly BRERAREEHEEAER -
since initial recognition.
Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
K@,
\EE
B BRIk mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 2020 AREFIT AREFT AR FT
Amounts due from JE Wi B R B SRIE
associates — 32,419 32,419
Amounts due from joint  FEWA E{EEFIE
ventures — 17,733 17,733
Other receivables F A IR 41,497 823,736 865,233
Loan receivables JEME TR — 29,394 29,394
2019 2019
Amounts due from JE Wi B i R R SRIE
associates — 12,906 12,906
Amounts due from joint  FEW AL EFIE
ventures — 1,053 1,053
Other receivables E fth RE U R 36,583 157,107 193,690
Loan receivables FEWE R — 84,047 84,047
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For trade receivables (including trade-related
amounts due from joint ventures and associates),
finance lease receivables and contract assets,
the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items on an individual
balance basis, except for trade receivables
and contract assets in relation to its sales of

electricity which are based on provision matrix

(b) BEREURBEZEF(REEZRA
BZREEELERBERRZ
R MEMERKRERA
REE ASERBEEMHR
SEANE IR 2B ERER
A AEAE MR Z B AR
1 o NREBE R ELERZ A
TAHAE A B R R R HME R 3R E 2
. REHEENHEBZEK
HEHEFMAREERERAE
=
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mEVBBRRME

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The trade receivables arising from sales of
electricity are mainly due from the local state
grid companies in various provinces in the PRC.
The management considered the probability
of default of trade receivables is remote since
the local grid companies are state-owned and
taking into account the past payment histories
of the debtors, adjusted for general economic
conditions of the new energy industry and an
assessment of both current as well as forecast
direction of market conditions at the reporting
date. Accordingly, the management is of the
opinion that the credit risk of trade receivables
arising from sales of electricity is limited.

In relation to contract assets of tariff adjustment
amounts, as detailed in Note 4, the management
considered that all of the Group’s power plants
of which tariff subsidy is recognized as revenue
but not yet to register in the List currently in
operation had been qualified for and had met,
the relevant requirements and conditions for
the entitlement of the tariff subsidy when the
electricity was delivered on grid. The directors
of the Company are confident that all of the
Group’s operating power plants are able to
be registered in the List in due course and it's
highly probable that the accrued revenue on
tariff subsidy will be received but only subject
to timing of allocation of funds from the PRC
government.

49.

MHERERE(E)

(c)

ERER KRB (E)

Hist - (%)

(b)

(%)

FEWE 5 BRRE 2 HORNE B
FAZEMAMENRIRE &
WENHERIE - RAIEEEH
Bz e B 5 RFGENB R ER
By BAEHENRRHEE
REZENRR - YRBBEE
SLATERERER - FTREIRITE A
RIEFGIE - MRAEANEY
35 K 0 B i 0 b 2 B o R
It BEERAZENIHEEE
ZEWRB ZERERAREER
H o

BMRNaREE 2 SERYIGIER
HFARERKEs BREH

HAMEAREZEEITZRER
e AREREAMFERR
RIEHIGBAE RN L BEERH
R ARRE R T ARERE - EE AL
AR AR BB - KRFE
EHRMEREEELHERA
VAR 3 N B B RO A ALE B
REELH - EFZEPBEEA
DEHEESRHTYZTE -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

284

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

The Group writes off a receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the
trade receivables are over two years past due,
whichever occurs earlier.

The following tables shows the movement
in lifetime ECL that has been recognized for
contract assets under the simplified approach:

49.

MRREBERE)
(o) ERARBMBENMEGE)

EEEMRABEHBARREE M
KR A EERWE AT RE - A&
Bz AR - Bln - EEAELR
RBERDEAWERN - HEE
Wa BB ER - URFEE
ERAE -

RIS R B A E AR AR

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
BEFERA
TEEERER
(R¥EAE
ERRIE)

As at 1 January 2020
Impairment losses reversed
Transfer to trade receivables
Disposal of subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2020

7202041 A1 H
N ERTERRR E a0
= EIGROR

REMBEAREL

M2020%12 A31H

RMB’000
AREFT

6,970
(635)
(3,032)
(3,303)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 49. BIRBEE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (o) ERRBMPEDGE)
(CONTINUED)
The following tables shows the movement in TRERTIRBE(L AR E
lifetime ECL that has been recognized for trade W SR EFEHANTESE
receivables under the simplified approach: Bk s &F) -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total

EEFESNES REFESAEY
ERRX(REE ERBX(BE

{ERRE) fERAME) it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
AEETFIL ARBTT ARHTL
As at 1 January 2020 20206 1A1R 4,524 11,487 16,011
Impairment losses reversed  JFIfEEME (5,182) (1,454) (6,636)
Transfer from contract assets BHAREE 3,032 - 3,032
Disposal of subsidiaries EEMENRIES (2,374) - (2,374)
Wirite-off during the year TR - (50) (50)
As at 31 December 2020 20205124318 - 9,983 9,983
For financial guarantee contracts, the gross HNBKIERAR  EEASHEA
carrying amount represents the maximum XEEREHEBARERY RS
amount that Group has guaranteed under 2. AR ARMEREY BE
the relevant contract. The maximum amount 20012 A31MBY&EE A&
that the Group has guaranteed under the BREBALYPIER Y EASES
relevant contract was RMB461,547,000 as AR 461,547,000 © & & 3
at 31 December 2020. At the end of the LHIK » AN BB B EITREST
reporting period, the directors of the Company EWELLEHRTEE VBB S
have performed impairment assessment, and PEARS LA - ZFHRB MR E
concluded that there has been no significant KIBIE o ©RIERS 42 B
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of 40

the financial guarantee contracts. Details of the
financial guarantee contracts are set out in Note
40.
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50.
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Bt 35 R AR B

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities, the Group uses market-observable
data of the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements and works closely with the
qualified valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
technigues and inputs to the model.

50. €T AZARENE

AEBERBEAIESZMISEN ZABE
REERAEREELERABERAE
B MREBEZEBF -—EBERXBAE X
SEKERBEE 2 EERMMEA
BETRARENE  WBBABTH
AR R B EE 2 hERMME A
=30
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50.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined.

50.

ERMIAZAARBIHEE)

TRMIAZAABEESREREET

o

AEEFLERHEEMT R B EMN
BEE X TRELTOREESE
MEEMTRABEIAABEZEM -

DA
g

Fair value hierarchy

DABEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2E %38 @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT ANREFT  AREFT  AREFT
At 31 December 2020 ®2020512A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL R EEGABRZ
PHEE
Unlisted equity securities FLETRE — — 17,629 17,629
Investment in a convertible ARGEHFRE
bond — — 32,787 32,787
Contingent consideration in ~ IREEZHHALHE
disposal of subsidiaries — — 131,664 131,664
Bills receivable i ES — 143,385 — 143,385
Financial liabilities EHEE
Derivative financial liabilities ~ $14¢ & E — — 20,512 20,512
At 31 December 2019 W2019F 128311
Financial assets at FVTPL BEARBEGTA RS
Unlisted equity securities FETRE — — 12,277 12,277
Investment in a convertible MRREFEE
bond — — 22,568 22,568
Contingent consideration in ~ [iEEE R ALE
disposal of subsidiaries — — 74,191 74,191
Bills receivable EWER - 33,903 — 33,903
Financial liabilities EHEE
Derivative financial liabilities #7144 @&E — - 15,358 15,358
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50. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

50. eI EACZAREFE(E

Fair value of financial instruments that are

=1/

SHMIAZAABHERSEREREET
measured at fair value on a recurring basis 2(5E)
(CONTINUED)

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, and
there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during

H E20206E12 8318 %2019 12 A
BMAVEEEFIBRE2ER B E
B EEMFP RAEARHEHES

both years. 0
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
Financial liabilities (RMB'000) hierarchy and key input(s)
SREE/SREE MERE MERE HERER EXFERESZER
(AR®TT) ER Bign
2020 2019
Unlisted equity securities 17,629 12217 | Level 3 Income approach - in this approach, the | Long-term pre-tax operating margin,
S LmRE 2B discounted cash flow method was taking into account management’s
used to capture the present value experience and knowledge of market
of the expected future economic conditions of the specific industries,
benefits to be derived from the ranging from 65% to 67% (2019:
ownership of the investees, based 65% 10 67%).
on an appropriate discount rate. RERASLH B ZRIEEEL
WAE - WHERRE R - ER EENgEEnETAER ER
RREEFRE  BIHRERRE f65%2167% £ % (20195 : 65%
NFRERB ART RN EN S 367%) -
MALBE
Discount rate of 12% (2019:12%)
determined using a Capital Asset
Pricing Model (Note (a)).
ERERBANEETEREA12%
(2019 12%) (Kt (a)) °
Investment in a 32,781 22568 | Level3 Price (P) to net income (E) multiples An estimated price to eamings multiple
convertible bond £2E method was used to determine the of a group of listed companies
ERERRE fair value of the investment since the operating in comparable business,
method reflects the going concern adjusted for the uniqueness of
of the subject group’s business, and the subject group’s business being
there exist a group of comparable valued.
companies in the market in the —REEANER ERAF T
similar business as the subject group BE  URERTREAAEK BE
that provided direct reference on the [HEfTRE .
PIE multiples.
EREFHIROELZENBTREL | The netincome of the subject groups
MHEE RESEEE BRI business for the year 2021.
R TEFFE-ANERRES | EEANEEBLEHA -
EMREREL A LA AR E
g -
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mEVBBRRME

50. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are

50. eI EACZAREFE(E

EMIACAABEESREREET

measured at fair value on a recurring basis 2(E&)
(CONTINUED)
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
Financial liabilities (RMB'000) hierarchy and key input(s)
SREE/SRER MfEE MfEE HEFER EXFERESCER
(AR%TT) ER Bign
2020 2019
Derivative component 20,512 15358 | Level3 Binomial option pricing model Expected volatility, ranging from 26%
in relation to the E= VB EETEER 0 28% (2019: 23% 10 39%), taking
convertible bonds into account of the historical stock
issued by the Group price of the Company with duration
HASERT TEAG similar to the lfe of the convertible
BRE RS bonds (Note (b)).
REREE1 26% 21 28% 752019
B%I39%TE) ZRIRARE
*RERERRRTERF R
(Ft3E (b)) ©
Contingent consideration 131,664 74191 | Level 3 Discounted cash flow method was used | Probability to meet the conditions
in disposal of £=E to capture the present value of the set out in the share purchase
subsidiaries expected future economic benefits agreements, including whether and
hEEERIEHE that will flow into the Group arising when the disposed power plants
from the contingent consideration, could be registered in the Catalogue
based on an appropriate discount (Note (c)).
rate. HRRhEERETRE FE o
RENBRSRE: REEE R It AEREREERRAKTE
¥ ARARUERRAREE R FRSENMASHYASTED
BRREEN RE - (B (o) -
Bills receivable 143,385 33903 | Level2 Discounted cash flow method was used | N/A
EUEE 52E to capture the present value of the | TfE
contracted cash flows discounted at
a rate that reflects the market credit
risk.
RenEMRiRRRE TS ERER
%Wﬁ%%ﬁﬁélﬂiﬁﬁiﬁzfﬁ
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290

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

An increase in the discount rate used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement
of the unlisted equity securities, and vice versa. A
5% increase/decrease in the discount rate holding all
other variables constant would decrease/increase the
carrying amount of the unlisted equity securities by
RMB1,312,000 and RMB1,390,000 respectively (2019:
RMB661,000 and RMB703,000 respectively).

An increase in the expected volatility used in
isolation would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of the conversion option derivatives,and
vice versa. A 5% increase/decrease in the volatility
holding all other variables constant would increase/
decrease the carrying amount of the conversion option
derivatives by RMB8,615,000 and RMB7,853,000
respectively (2019: RMB7,943,000 and RMB6,555,000
respectively).

An decrease in the probability for the power plants to
be registered in the List sooner used in isolation would
result in an decrease in the fair value measurement of
the contingent consideration, and vice versa.

50. ERMIBCZAAREFEE)

TRMIAZAABEESREREET

B(#)

e

(a)

E-LEMREEERRLTRER
AEEAENRD  RZ2TFR - £H

$ A% BER EMIRE 2 IRE(E
BRI A R 1,312,000 7T
B ARY1,390,0007T(20194 : AR
¥ 661,000 TTFIA K% 703,0007T) ©

B-ABEHESREE R EIREY
BOTAETAARBEAEZEN R
2R MBHEMEETE 2 KX
BN 5% ¢ i fEF AT E R HA AR £T
EREEEEED RSN R ARE
8,615,000t & A R #7,853,0007T
(20194 : AR# 7,943,000 LM AR
# 6,555,000 7T ) ©

BREMEEEEAFEEECATE
ERRREBMMESHBIEE Z AR
MR BRI EHEZRAAEE
SHERD  R2ZIA -
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50.

B R M A

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(CONTINUED)

50.

ERMIAZAARBIHEE)

TRMIAZAABEESREREET

B(#)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement 3ERABEFE L
Contingent
Investments in Consideration Derivative
a convertible in disposal of  Unlisted equity ~ component of
bond subsidiaries securities  convertible loan
hEEER TERERZ
TRRESRE HEHE FLTRE fiEsa
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT NRETT ANREFT NEETT
Balance as at 1 January 2019 R019F 151848 — 66,013 8,545 10,169
Issue of convertible loan THRESR - - - 25379
Purchases BE 24,667 - - -
Capital injection HARR - - 2,621 -
Addition i - 4854 - -
Settlement W3 - (40,364) - -
Fair value changes MEEEY (2,09) - 1,111 (21,085)
Exchange differences EiER - - - 895
Balance as at 31 December 2019 R2019%12 431888 22,568 74,191 12217 15,358
Purchases BE 10,320 - - -
Capital injection HABR - - 2,734 -
Addition Hik - 80,588 - -
Settlement e - (23,115) - -
Fair value changes RAEER 2,000 - 2,618 5171
Exchange differences EiER 2,101) - - (617)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 R2020%E12 831 BHE 32,787 131,664 17,629 20,512
Fair value of financial instruments that are not FEREMURNAEBETEZZHTAZ
measured at fair value on a recurring basis AAEE

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position, together with the
interest accruals, approximate their respective fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

RRARBERR > AFPBARIEZT A
BHRRAEZEREEMNBEZRE
BE  EFREHE  ZREEHPRFA
Z AR EERU -
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51. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

292

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders' returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
liability-to-asset ratio and the gearing ratio. The
gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total capital. Total borrowings represented bank
borrowings plus other borrowings, senior notes and
bonds payable, convertible loan, and lease liabilities.
Total capital is calculated as total equity plus total
borrowings, excluded borrowings reclassified to hold
for sale.

The Group's total borrowings and total capital
positions as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

51.

EXxmEmEE

AEBEAEEZTEAR/RELE
B RHEKERN  EEREKE®
H R E AR RKEYE Z BRNE
BRAEKRARGHE  HERRRE
H Bl b A At 7 s AR B 7 SR AR o

AEEBGBEHREREEREARE
B NS EREFURERSMES
ZESBEREHERFERRR TR Z
BEMRE 22T TIRREES
LB EREBIELRE

AEBUNEERBERRERNBBLEES
EREREN - BEAREH KA EHRE
BRABRNEREFERL - (ERER
RITERMEEMER  BANBRERE
MfEFm  JEBRERNHEERE - EX
RERERAREN ERARTESH
TEERFESKBREZMERK -

M20204F K 201912 A831H KA &
EE @ N E R BB R T

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETFTT AREFIT

Total borrowings &R sa%E 9,626,294 9,730,197
Total equity B 6,494,502 5,969,201
Total capital B 16,120,796 15,699,398
Gearing ratio BEREEHL R 59.71% 61.98%
Liability-to-asset ratio RERER 66.74% 69.99%
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52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
At 31 December 2020

52. ARDRZMBARRE

7R2020%12 A31H

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB000
k2 AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Assets: BE:
Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 3 1,756,036 3,000,879
Deposits & 563 599
1,756,599 3,001,478
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due form subsidiaries FEUTHTE A 7 KB 906,783 93,922
Amounts due from joint EUE & (IR
ventures — 287
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRESEFEIEE 105,599 55,291
1,012,382 149,500
Total assets BEEAR 2,768,981 3,150,978
Liabilities: =it
Non-current liabilities FARBEE
Senior notes and bonds BEEERES
payable ‘ 552,803 1,392,941
Convertible loan HERER 355,270 418,232
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFTIS — 7,209
Financial guarantee contract ~ BAEERARBE
liabilities 73,650 61,630
981,723 1,880,012
Current liabilities neeE
Senior notes and bonds BEEBERES
payable ‘ 811,215 —
Convertible loan AR E K ‘ 76,395 —
Other payables and accruals E b e 5008 & BT R 4,589 57,044
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEN I B A R FRIE 38,058 39,439
930,257 96,483
Total liabilities BEAE 1,911,980 1,976,495
Net current assets REBEEFE 82,125 53,017
Net assets EEFRE 857,001 1,174,483
Equity EsE
Share capital (Note 41) WA (et 41) 72,412 73,652
Reserves (Note (a)) (KT (a)) 784,589 1,100,831
Total equity AR 857,001 1,174,483

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of
directors on 9 March 2021.

Liu Shunxing
2 )Ig 5
Chairman and Executive Director

EFRTRERITEF

R-ZE-_—F=—AhhBE=EE=gitER

AT -

Liu Jianhong
24
Executive Director

HITEF
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Bt 35 R AR B

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note (a): Reserves movements of the company

52. RQBZBMBMRRRGE)

BiEt(a) - RATIREEE T

Share Treasury  Contributed Other  Accumulated

premium Shares Surplus reserves losses Total

RHEE BER N Rt ZithR ag

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ANEEFT  AREFT  ARETT AREFT ARKFT ARETx

Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019E1R81R 396,199 (10,355) 2,359,063 86,797 (1,524,638) 1,307,066
Loss and total comprehensive income TEEFERENZENAAE

the year - - - - (26,813) (26,813)

Share-based compensation HRHBEEEZFT - - - 20,030 - 20,030

Vesting of shares under share award RERH 58

scheme (654) - - (1,982) - (2,636)

2018 final dividend W18EERE - - - - (149,673) (149,673)

Repurchase of ordinary shares (Note 41)  EEREE(Hi41) - (48,552) - - - (48,552)

Cancellation of treasuryshares HHREER (47,904) 49313 - - - 1,409

Balance at 31 December 2019 R20195128318 347,641 (9,594) 2,359,063 104,845  (1,701,124) 1,100,831
Loss and total comprehensive income the ~ AEEBEMEM2EREEE

year - - - - (100,295) (100,295)

Share-based compensation R BEEZ R - - - 12,440 - 12,440

Vesting of shares under share award RERH 58

scheme 6,753 254 - (12,389) - (5,382)

2019 final dividend WI9EERE - - - - (190,971) (190,971)

Repurchase of ordinary shares (Note 41)  EEREE(Hit41) - (33.274) - - - (33.274)

Cancellation of treasury shares HRERR (40,614) 41,854 - - - 1,240

Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020%128318 313,780 (760) 2,359,063 104,89  (1,992,390) 784,589
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53. SUBSIDIARIES

53.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the

principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

o)

72020912 A31 A R20194F12 4318 -
FEMBARZFMERDT -

operations Percentage of equity
and kind of legal Registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
FMARYL/ ERE
EEBER
£ ERERER HERAZHE APBEERERSL TEXEK
Direct  Indirect
Ef# &
Century Concord Wind Power The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd company RMB3,100,000,000
HEREREBRAR HE - ARAAE AMERARY REER
3,100,000,000 7
Haotai New Energy The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Sales of Solar power
Equipment Ltd company RMB500,000,000 equipment and
new energy
equipment
AR REEBRAR hE - BRAA T ERARYE WNEECPE
500,000,000 7 REHE
Concord Power Consulting & The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 70%  Power system design,
Design (Beijing) Corp., Ltd. company RMB50,000,000 research and
exploitation
FRENIRR (R)RD e ARAA A ERARE REZGRE - AR
BRAT 50,000,000 7 RFE%
Beijing Century Concord The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 80% Wind power plant

Operation and Maintenance
Co., Ltd.
ERBaERRERMARAR

company

HE - ARAR

RMB60,000,000

EMEAARE
60,000,0007C

operation and
maintenance
AERBETRAEE
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

53.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

MEAR(E)

72020912 A31 A% 2019512 A31H -
FEMBARZFHMERNT - (&)

operations Percentage of equity
and kind of legal Registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
SMEL R
BEBER
A% EEBRESR HEMRAZEHE ARREERETSL FEXR
Direct  Indirect
Ef# A&
Naidong Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB146,150,000 investment and
operation
DRHBERGHEERR AT HE - BRAT AMERARE KEEEBRER
146,150,000 7 &1
Eryuan Century Concord Solar The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB48,000,000 investment and
operation
BRBAAGREEARAA hE - ARAA A EARARE AGREERIRE R
48,000,0007C EfT
Fuchuan Century Concord Wind ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB 140,500,000 investment and
operation
ElHaRNEERRAA HE - BRAT AMERARY BERIEE RETT
140,500,000 7T
Yongzhou Jiepai Century Concord The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant

Wind Power Co., Ltd.

KNREBERNETERAF

company

HE - ARRAE

RMB1,901,834,000

EMERARR
1,901,834,0007C

investment and
operation
BEBEE RET
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53.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

53.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

MEAR(E)

72020912 A31 A% 2019512 A31H -
FEMBARZFHMERNT - (&)

operations Percentage of equity
and kind of legal Registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
EME R
EXBER
£ ERERER HEfRAZHE APREERERSL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
=84 &
Wuhe Century Concord Yinmahu The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company RMB110,630,000 investment and
operation
TABAERSHRNEE hE - ARARAE A ERARE BERRE RETT
BRRT 110,630,000 7C
Yongzhou Qiaotoupu Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. company RMB133,920,000 investment and
operation
KNERREHARNEE hE - ARAA AMERARE RERERE RET
AR 133,920,000 7€
Suzhou Deren Wind Power Co.,  The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Ltd. company RMB70,000,000 investment and
operation
BMECRNEEERAF e ARAA AfMERARE REMIRE RETT
70,000,000 7T
Tianjin Green Energy The PRC, sino-foreign  Registered capital of — 100% Equipment Lease
International Leasing Co., Ltd. Equity joint venture ~ RMB1,000,000,000 operation
AEEFHREARHEERAA  PE PHRERE  EMEAARK REHEE
1,000,000,000 7T
Jilin Century Concord Wind The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant

Power Investment Co., Ltd.

EMHRRENEEREBRAAF

company

HE - ARRA

RMB 195,820,000

i ERARE
195,820,000 70

investment and
operation
EER T
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53. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

53.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

MEAR(E)

72020912 A31 A% 2019512 A31H -
FEMBARZFHMERNT - (&)

operations Percentage of equity
and kind of legal Registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
SR
EXBER
A% TEERER HMRAZHE APREERERSL TBER
Direct  Indirect
Ef &
Wuhe Juhe Wind Power The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. company RMB78,000,000 investment and
operation
TIRERNEERRAR mE - ARAA AMERARE AEBRERES
78,000,0007T
Jingmen Shengjingshan Wind The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB97,100,000 investment and
operation
FFERILENEERRAF hE - ARAA A ERARE RESRERES
97,100,0007T
Yanyuan Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB56,000,000 investment and
operation
ERHEARREEFRAR e - ARRA AMERARY AEEEBRRER
56,000,000 7T EfT
Jingmen Lixi Wind Power The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. company RMB37,800,000 investment and
operation
FIFIRERNEERRAR hE - BRAT A ERARE BERKRE RETT
37,800,0007C
Fuchuan Century Concord Xinzao The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant

Wind Power Co., Ltd.

EIHaHERNEEARAR

298

company

PE - ARAT

RMB94,000,000

A ERARE
94,000,000 7

investment and
operation
RERIRE RETT
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53. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

53.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

M8 B (45

72020912 A31 A% 2019512 A31H -
FEMBARZFHMERNT - (&)

operations Percentage of equity
and kind of legal Registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
AL/ ERER
EEBER
£ ERERER HEfRAZHE APREERERSL ETEXEK
Direct  Indirect
HiE ik
Xiangyang Xiangzhou Century ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Wind power plant
Concord Yushan Wind Power company RMB91,000,000 investment and
Co.,Ltd. operation
EMEMNBABLENEE e - BRAF AMERARE RERMRE RETT
BRAT 91,000,000 7
Yongzhou Hongtang Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of - 100% Wind power plant
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. company RMB80,000,000 investment and
operation
KNEEBERNEEFRR E - BRAT AMERARK BEREE RETT
80,000,0007C
* The English translation of the names of the subsidiaries * MBFAFIZABAELEMD

are for identification only. The official names of these

entities are in Chinese.

The table above lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,

principally affected the results for the year or formed

a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no non-wholly

owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material

non-controlling interests.

A EEIEX BB AP R -

NERERES TESRARERNFELE
EETENERASEEEFEEZ
MM B AR - #1E20205F12 A 31
A AKBEFE2EAKNB AR ZIEEHE
BEEEATE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFMBEHME
RESULTS E45
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 31 31 31 31
December December December December December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 F 20194 20184 2017 4 2016 F
12A31H 12H31H 12HA31H 12H31H 12HA31H
IEFEE WFE IFFE IEFE WEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMTFRT ANRETFT AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT
Revenue and other W A K E At A
income 2,042,095 1,867,591 1,444,748 1,079,560 1,834,355
Profit for the year RAAIERRER
attributable to equity (G A
shareholders of the
Company 673,405 604,293 502,406 200,036 457,815
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES EE -BEBENRER
As at As at As at As at As at
31 31 31 31 31
December December December December December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
M2020F 20194  HR2018%F 20174 20164
12A31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT ANRETFT AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT
Total assets BEBTE 19,528,281 19,892,437 18,412,808 14,807,138 14,339,349
Total liabilities BB (13,033,779) (13,923,236) (12,866,069) (9,551,992) (9,113,599)
Net assets BEFE 6,494,502 5,969,201 5,546,739 5,255,146 5,225,750
Equity attributable to AR FIHEZSAE
equity shareholders of  fE{E#ERS
the Company 6,419,868 5,943,303 5,518,228 5,157,796 5,070,277
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